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;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL yk hfgsf/L M

!=	 o; ;+:yfsf] ;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef, ;~rfns lgjf{rg / gub nfef+z ljt/0f k|of]hgsf nflu o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ 
bflvn vf/]hsf] sfd @)*! ;fn kf}if dlxgf !! ut]sf lbg aGb /xg]5 . g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh ln= tyf l;l8P; P08 
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;do leq o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L Pg=cfO{=Pd=la= P; Soflk6n lnld6]8sf] sfof{no nflhDkf6, sf7df08f}df 
k|fKt z]o/ gfd;f/L lnvtsf] cfwf/df z]o/wgL lstfadf sfod z]o/wgLx?n] ;f] ;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu 
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;do eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufj} o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L Pg=cfO{=Pd=la= P; Soflk6n lnld6]8sf] sfof{no, 
sf7df08f} jf o; ;+:yfsf] /lhi6f8{ sfof{no, çsf/ ejg, gofFjfg]Zj/, sf7df08f}df k|f]S;L kmf/fd btf{ u/L ;Sg' 
kg]{5 . ;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/L ;s]kl5 pQm k|ltlglw ab/ u/L cs}{ d's// ug]{ ePdf 
;f] sf] lnlvt ;"rgf ;d]t tTsfn o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L Pg=cfO{=Pd=la= P; Soflk6n lnld6]8sf] sfof{no, 
sf7df08f} jf o; ;+:yfsf] /lhi6f8{ sfof{no, çsf/ ejg, gofFjfg]Zj/, sf7df08f}df btf{ u/L ;Sg' kg]{5 .

#=	 o; ;+:yfsf] ;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm ul/ ;s]kl5 ;DalGwt z]o/wgL ;efdf 
pkl:yt x'g' ePdf z]o/wgLsf] k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ :jtM ab/ x'g]5 .

$=	 gfafns tyf czQm z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ nut lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ?kdf gfdbtf{ ePsf] JolQmn] 
;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng jf k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ tf]Sg ;Sg' x'g]5 .

%=	 z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] ;'ljwfsf] nflu xflh/L k'l:tsf ;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g] lbg !) ah] b]lv ;ef rfn' 
/x];Dd ;fwf/0f ;ef :yndf v'Nnf /flvg]5 .

^=	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltdf ;+:yfks ;d"xsf z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 lgjf{lrt ;~rfnsHo"x? # -tLg_ 
hgf / ;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xsf z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 lgjf{lrt ;~rfnsHo"x? dWo]sf ! -Ps_ hgf ul/ $ -rf/_ hgf 
;~rfnsHo"x?sf] sfo{sfn @)*! kf}if d;fGtaf6 ;lsO{ pQm kb l/St x'g] ePsf] x'Fbf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgodfjnL 
adf]lhd l/St /xg] pQm $ -rf/_ hgf ;~rfnsx?sf] lgjf{rg ;DjGwL lgjf{rg sfo{qmd lgjf{rg clws[tsf] sfof{no 
/xg] o; ;+:yfsf] /lhi6f8{ sfof{no, çsf/ ejg, gofFjfg]Zj/, sf7df08f}sf] ;"rgfkf6L tyf ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6df ;d]t 
lgjf{rg x'g' eGbf !% lbg cl3 k|sflzt ul/g]5 . ;fy} lgjf{rgsf ;DjGwdf yk hfgsf/L cfjZos k/]df o; ;+:yfsf] 
/lhi6f8{ sfof{no, çsf/ ejg, gofFjfg]Zj/, sf7df08f}df ;Dks{ /fVg' x'g ;d]t o;} ;"rgfaf6 cg'/f]w ul/G5 .

&=	 o; ;+:yfsf] ;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf ;DaGwdf cGo cfjZos hfgsf/Lsf nflu o; ;+:yfsf] /lhi6f8{ sfof{no, 
çsf/ ejg, gofFjfg]Zj/, sf7df08f}df ;Dks{ /fVg'x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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Global Economic Outlook
Current Global Economic Trends
The global economy has shown resilience in 2024, 
despite facing numerous challenges. According 
to the IMF, global GDP growth is projected to 
be 3.2% in 2024 and 3.3% in 2025. This growth is 
driven by a combination of factors, including the 
easing of inflation, recovery in consumer demand, 
and stabilization in global supply chains. However, 
significant uncertainties remain, such as geopolitical 
tensions, persistent inflation in some sectors, and 
potential financial market volatility.

Inflation and Monetary Policy
Inflation has been a critical issue globally, but there 
are signs of moderation. Headline inflation has eased 
in many countries due to declines in food, energy, 
and goods prices. However, inflation rate (average 
consumer prices) remains stubbornly high, averaging 
around 6.3% in South Asian countries (World 
Economic Outlook October 2024). Central banks 
worldwide have been adjusting their monetary policies 
to manage inflation, with many maintaining higher 
interest rates to curb price increases.

Labour Market Dynamics
Labour markets have shown mixed signals. While 
unemployment rates remain low, labour and skill 
shortages persist, particularly in sectors like healthcare 
and information technology. These shortages are 
exacerbated by demographic changes, such as aging 
populations, which could hinder long-term economic 
growth. Addressing these issues requires significant 
investments in education, upskilling, and reskilling of 
the workforce.

Risks and Uncertainties
The global economic outlook is clouded by several 
risks. Geopolitical tensions, such as conflicts and 
trade restrictions, could disrupt economic stability. 
Additionally, the potential for persistent inflation and 
financial market volatility poses threats to sustained 
growth. Policymakers need to remain vigilant and 
adaptable to navigate these challenges effectively.

National Economic Outlook: Nepal

Recent Economic Performance
Nepal's economy has shown signs of recovery in recent 
years. In 2024, Nepal's real GDP growth accelerated to 
3.1%, up from 2% in 2023. This growth was primarily 
driven by a robust performance in the services sector, 
which benefited from a significant increase in tourist 
arrivals. The tourism sector's revival boosted activities 
in transportation, accommodation, and food services.

Key Economic Indicators
1.	 GDP Growth: Nepal's GDP growth has been on 

an upward trajectory, supported by the recovery 
in tourism and services. The World Bank projects 
continued growth, albeit at a moderate pace, as 
the country navigates post-pandemic recovery 
challenges.

2.	 Inflation: Inflation in Nepal has been relatively 
stable, but it remains a concern due to external 
factors such as global commodity prices and 
supply chain disruptions. The government and 
central bank have been monitoring inflation 
closely to ensure it remains within manageable 
levels.

3.	 Employment: The labour market in Nepal faces 
challenges like those seen globally, including 
skill shortages and underemployment. Efforts 
to improve vocational training and education 
are crucial to address these issues and enhance 
workforce productivity.

4.	 Foreign Trade: Nepal's trade balance remains 
a concern, with imports significantly outpacing 
exports. The government has been working on 
policies to boost exports and reduce dependency 
on imports, particularly in essential goods and 
services.

Sectoral Analysis
1.	 Agriculture: Agriculture remains a vital sector 

for Nepal, employing a significant portion of the 
population. However, productivity challenges and 
climate-related risks continue to affect output. 
Investments in modern agricultural practices and 
infrastructure are needed to enhance productivity 

CHAPTER-1
Global and National Economic Outlook 
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and resilience.
2.	 Industry: The industrial sector in Nepal 

is gradually recovering, with growth in 
manufacturing and construction activities. 
However, the sector faces challenges such as 
inadequate infrastructure, energy shortages, and 
regulatory hurdles. Addressing these issues is 
essential for sustained industrial growth.

3.	 Services: The services sector has been a 
key driver of economic growth, particularly 
tourism. The surge in tourist arrivals has had a 
positive impact on related industries, including 
hospitality, transportation, and retail. Continued 
efforts to promote Nepal as a tourist destination 
and improve infrastructure will be crucial for 
sustained growth in this sector.

NRB Monetary Policy
Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) unveiled its monetary policy 
for FY 2024/25 on July 26, 2024. The main objectives 
are to achieve the government’s 6% economic growth 
and 5% inflation targets, provide adequate liquidity 
for borrowing and lending, and incentivize investment 
in productive sectors. Key highlights include:
•	 Interest Rates: The policy aims to maintain 

stable interest rates to support economic activities. 
The NRB has kept the policy rate at 5.5%, with 
the bank rate at 7.0% and the deposit collection 
rate at 3.0%.

•	 Liquidity Management: The NRB has 
introduced measures to manage excess liquidity in 
the banking system, including the use of liquidity 
absorption instruments.

•	 Credit Expansion: The policy encourages banks 
and financial institutions to expand credit to 
productive sectors, particularly agriculture, 
industry, and small and medium enterprises 
(SMEs).

Review of  Economic Data by NRB
The NRB's review of economic data for the first four 
months of FY 2024/25 provides insights into the 
current economic situation:
•	 Inflation: The year-on-year consumer price 

inflation stood at 5.60% in mid-November 2024, 
with food and beverage inflation at 9.10% and 
non-food and service inflation at 3.65%.

•	 Foreign Trade: Imports increased by 0.2%, while 
exports grew by 4.2%. Remittances, a significant 

source of foreign exchange, increased by 9.1% in 
NPR terms.

•	 Balance of  Payments: The balance of payments 
remained at a surplus of NPR 205.83 billion.

•	 Banking Sector: Deposits at banks and financial 
institutions (BFIs) increased by 2.3%, and private 
sector credit grew by 2.5%.

Key Challenges for the Nepalese Economy
1.	 Trade Imbalance: Nepal faces a significant trade 

deficit, with imports far exceeding exports. This 
imbalance puts pressure on foreign exchange 
reserves and the overall economy.

2.	 Infrastructure Deficiencies: Inadequate 
infrastructure, particularly in transportation and 
energy, hampers economic growth and industrial 
development.

3.	 Labour Market Issues: Skill shortages and 
underemployment are persistent challenges. 
Improving vocational training and education is 
essential to enhance workforce productivity.

4.	 Climate Change: Nepal is highly vulnerable 
to climate change, which affects agriculture and 
overall economic stability. Investments in climate 
resilience are crucial.

5.	 Political Instability: Frequent changes in 
government and policy inconsistency can disrupt 
economic planning and implementation.

Challenges for the Nepalese Banking Sector
The Nepalese banking sector faces several challenges 
that need to be addressed to ensure its stability and 
growth:
1.	 Non-Performing Loans (NPLs): The banking 

sector faces challenges with rising NPLs, which 
affect profitability and financial stability. 
Effective risk management and recovery strategies 
are essential to mitigate this issue.

2.	 Regulatory Compliance: Adhering to evolving 
regulatory requirements can be complex and 
costly for banks. Ensuring compliance while 
maintaining operational efficiency is a significant 
challenge.

3.	 Digital Transformation: While digital banking 
offers opportunities, it also presents challenges in 
terms of cybersecurity and the need for significant 
investment in technology. Banks must balance 
innovation with security and customer trust.

4.	 Access to Finance: Expanding banking services 
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to rural and underserved areas remains a 
challenge. Enhancing financial inclusion requires 
innovative approaches and collaboration with 
various stakeholders.

Opportunities for the Nepalese Banking Sector
Despite the challenges, the Nepalese banking sector 
has several opportunities for growth and development:
1.	 Financial Inclusion: There is significant 

potential to expand banking services to unbanked 
and underbanked populations, particularly in 
rural areas. Leveraging mobile banking and 
fintech solutions can enhance access to financial 
services.

2.	 Digital Banking: Embracing digital banking 
and fintech solutions can enhance customer 
experiences and operational efficiency. Investing 
in digital infrastructure and cybersecurity will be 
crucial for success.

3.	 Green Financing: Investing in sustainable and 
green projects offers opportunities for banks to 
support environmental initiatives and attract new 
customers. Green financing can also align with 
global sustainability goals and enhance the bank's 
reputation.

4.	 Remittances: Leveraging remittance flows can 
provide a stable source of income for banks and 
support economic development. Developing 
efficient remittance services can attract more 
customers and increase financial inclusion.

Conclusion
The national and global economic outlook presents a 
mixed picture of resilience and challenges. Globally, 
the economy is expected to grow steadily, with 
inflation easing and labour markets stabilizing. 
However, significant risks and uncertainties remain, 
requiring vigilant and adaptive policymaking.

In Nepal, the economy is on a recovery path, driven 
by growth in the services sector and supported by 
government initiatives. However, challenges such as 
inflation, trade imbalances, and labour market issues 
need to be addressed to ensure sustained and inclusive 
growth. Continued investments in infrastructure, 
education, and social protection, along with effective 
policy measures, will be crucial for Nepal's economic 
future.

The Nepalese banking sector faces both challenges 
and opportunities. Addressing issues such as non-
performing loans and regulatory compliance, while 
leveraging opportunities in digital banking and 
financial inclusion, will be key to ensuring the sector's 
growth and stability. Embracing green financing and 
enhancing remittance services can further support 
economic development and sustainability.
By focusing on these areas, Nepal can navigate the 
complexities of the global economic landscape and 
achieve long-term economic stability and prosperity. 
The combined efforts of the government, financial 
institutions, and the private sector will be essential 
in driving this progress and ensuring a resilient and 
inclusive economy for all Nepalese citizens.
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CHAPTER-2
General Corporate Information and Business Profile

1.	 Manjushree Finance: Trusted Financial Partner
	 Established in 2007, Manjushree Finance Limited 

(Herein after referred to as “MFL” or “the 
Finance”) is a leading financial institution licensed 
by Nepal Rastra Bank as “C” Class Financial 
Institution. We're dedicated to providing superior 
financial solutions tailored to the unique needs 
of our valued customers. With a paid-up capital 
of NRs. 1.35 billion, MFL is one of the largest 
finance companies in Nepal. We're here to help 
our customers navigate their financial journeys 
with confidence.

 	 Our Vision
	 To be the premier financial institution, renowned 

for our expertise and exceptional services.

 	 Our Mission
	 To empower our customers to achieve their 

financial goals through innovative and superior 
financial solutions. We're committed to optimizing 
our resources to exceed the expectations of all our 
stakeholders.

 	 Customer-Centric Approach
	 We believe in fostering long-lasting relationships 

with our customers. Our friendly and 
knowledgeable team is always ready to assist you 
in a comfortable and supportive environment.

 	 A Team of Experts
	 Our management team, comprising experienced 

professionals from diverse fields, is dedicated to 
driving our growth and success. We're committed 
to leveraging our expertise to deliver exceptional 
value to our customers.

2.	 The Board of Directors 
	 As per Section 14(1) of the Banks and Financial 

Institutions Act, 2073, the Board of Directors 
(BOD) of a finance company must consist of a 
minimum of 5 and a maximum of 7 members.

	 MFL is guided by a seasoned Board of Directors, 
ensuring strong governance and strategic direction. 
The Board, composed of seven distinguished 
individuals, brings a wealth of experience and 
expertise to the company.

MFL currently has a 7-member BOD, led by Chairperson Mr. Yadav Adhikari. Here's a closer look at the 
Board members:

S.N. Name Designation Representation
1 Mr. Yadav Adhikari Chairperson Promoter Shareholder

2 Mrs. Indira Pandit (Ghimire) Director Public Shareholder

3 Mr. Suman Prasad Adhikari Director Promoter Shareholder

4 Mr. Satish Gautam Director Public Shareholder

5 Mr. Ram Hari Sharma Director Promoter Shareholder

6 Mr. Dipak Thapa Director Public Shareholder

7 Mr. Pushpa Raj Bhandari Director Independent
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3.	 Profile of Board Members

Mr. Yadav Adhikari, Chairman
Academic Qualification: Master of Public Administration (MPA)

Professional Background: 
Mr. Adhikari has had a distinguished career in law enforcement, 
culminating in his role as an Additional Inspector General of 
Police (AIGP). His extensive experience in the police force has 
equipped him with strong leadership, strategic planning, and crisis 
management skills.

Mr. Suman Prasad Adhikari, Director
Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Business Studies (BBS)

Professional Background: 
Mr. Adhikari has worked with various Billateral Organizations/
INGOs, where he has gained significant experience in project 
management, community development, and international relations.
In addition to his work with INGOs, he has been involved in the 
business sector, bringing a wealth of knowledge in business 
operations, financial management, and entrepreneurship.

Mrs. Indira Pandit (Ghimire), Director
Academic Qualification: Master of Arts (MA)

Professional Background: 
Mrs. Ghimire has served as a lecturer, imparting knowledge and 
mentoring students in higher education institutions.
She has also been actively involved in social service, working with 
different organizations to support community development and 
social welfare programs.

Mr. Ram Hari Sharma, Director
Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)

Professional Background: 
Mr. Sharma has a background in banking for around 18 years at 
Rastriya Banijya Bank, where he developed expertise in financial 
services, customer relations, and risk management.

After his banking career, he transitioned to social service, contributing 
to various community initiatives and non-profit organizations.
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Mr. Satish Gautam, Director
Academic Qualification: Master of Public Policy (MPP), MSC 
(Renewal Energy), BSC(EE)

Professional Background: 
Mr. Gautam has extensive experience working with INGOs, focusing 
on policy analysis, program implementation, and advocacy. His 
work has often involved collaborating with government agencies 
and other stakeholders to drive social change.

Mr. Pushparaj Bhandari, Director
Academic Qualification: Master of Business Studies (MBS), 
Bachelor of Science (BSc)

Professional Background: 
Mr. Bhandari has an extensive background in banking, including  ex-
employee at Nepal Rastra Bank, Manager at Nepal SBI Bank, CEO of 
erstwhile Birgunj Finance Ltd. and CBO at erstwhile Bank of Kathmandu 
Ltd.
Alongside his banking career, he has also been involved in tutoring, offering 
educational support and guidance to MBA students across various subjects.

Mr. Dipak Thapa, Director
Academic Qualification: Master of Business Studies (MBS)

Professional Background: 
Mr. Thapa is a seasoned business professional with a strong 
background in business management, strategic planning, and market 
analysis. He has successfully led various business ventures and 
projects.

•	
•	 Professional Background: 
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•	
•	 Professional Background: 

4.	 Executive Leadership 
	 MFL is led by a visionary team of banking experts 

who are dedicated to driving the company's 
growth and success. Our leadership team brings 
a wealth of experience and a customer-centric 
approach to the table, ensuring that we deliver 
exceptional value to our stakeholders.

	 With a strong focus on innovation, we are 
committed to providing cutting-edge financial 
solutions that meet the evolving needs of our 
customers. Our leadership team is passionate 
about building long-lasting relationships with 
our clients and empowering them to achieve their 
financial goals.

 
5.	 Management Team 
	 MFL is driven by a experienced management 

team, Each member brings decades of industry 

experience to the table. Our team comprises 
skilled professionals across various departments, 
including business, operations, risk management 
and human resources. This collective expertise 
empowers us to deliver innovative financial 
solutions, ensuring operational excellence and 
customer satisfaction.

6.	 Key products or Services
	 MFL provides a wide range of financial 

products, focusing on retail banking with higher 
returns on deposits and customized services. 
We offer value banking with the lowest service 
fees, timely services, and an industry-leading 
digital transaction platform. Our commitment 
extends to empowering youths and women in 
entrepreneurship, while delivering innovative and 
secure financial solutions to help our customers 
achieve their goals.

 

6. Key products or Services 
 
MFL provides a wide range of financial products, 
focusing on retail banking with higher returns on 
deposits and customized services. We offer value 
banking with the lowest service fees, timely services, 
and an industry-leading digital transaction platform. 

Our commitment extends to empowering youths and 
women in entrepreneurship, while delivering innovative 
and secure financial solutions to help our customers 
achieve their goals. 
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7.	 Investor Profile
 	 Analysis of Shareholders by Promoters or Public, and Individual  or Institutional

Promoter and Public Shareholding Composition of Institutional and Individual Shareholders

 
 

 

 
 Shareholding by Range of Holdings  

Holdings 
Range 

Promoter Public Total 

Total Kitta No. of 
Shareholders Total Kitta No. of 

Shareholders Total Kitta No. of 
Shareholders 

Up to 100 26.94 31 479,485.63 13,962 479,512.57 13,993 

Above 100 to 500 4,550.05 19 1,759,916.02 7,276 1,764,466.07 7,295 

Above 500 to 1,000 9,257.45 11 1,123,130.42 1,542 1,132,387.87 1,553 

Above 1,000 to 2,000 29,656.03 17 910,169.99 647 939,826.02 664 

Above 2,000 to 5,000 47,373.93 13 882,188.93 293 929,562.87 306 

Above 5,000 to 10,000 71,738.29 9 469,763.80 68 541,502.09 77 

Above 10,000 to 20,000 99,753.78 6 276,608.80 20 376,362.58 26 

Above 20,000 to 50,000 700,886.63 19 334,639.32 11 1,035,525.95 30 

Above 50,000-100,000 866,499.00 12 160,244.43 2 1,026,743.43 14 

Above 100,000 5,063,177.42 24 226,461.62 2 5,289,639.04 26 

Total 6,892,919.53 161 6,622,608.95 23,823 13,515,528.48 23,984 

 
 Market Capitalization  

Particulars Public Promoters Total 
No. of Shares Floated in the Market 6,622,608.95 6,892,919.53 13,515,528.48 
Market Price as of Ashadh End 2081 602.90 267.60 - 
Total Market Capitalization 3,992,770,934.90 1,844,545,265.60 5,837,316,200.50 

 

 Stock Performance and Trading Activity 
Manjushree Finance Limited (MFIL) is a prominent 
financial institution in Nepal, offering a range of 
financial services including loans, deposits, and 
investment opportunities. Established with the aim of 
providing accessible financial solutions, MFIL has 
grown to become a trusted name in the industry. The 

company is listed on the Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE) 
and has shown consistent performance over the years, 
reflecting its strong market presence and commitment 
to customer satisfaction. 
Quarter wise details of stock performance in NEPSE 
during FY 2080-81 is summarized as under:

 
Quarter High Price 

(Rs.) 
Low Price 

(Rs.) 
Last Trading 
Price (Rs.) 

Total Trading 
Days 

Total No. of 
Transactions 

Total No. of 
Traded Shares 

First 512.90 501.00 503.00 61.00 10,176 1,052,034 

Second 542.60 532.00 534.00 49.00 7,479 1,189,746 

Third 527.00 505.00 505.00 58.00 9,973 1,435,503 

Fourth 640.50 490.00 602.90 61.00 21,943 3,532,866 

6,892,919
.53 , 51%

6,622,608
.95 , 49%

Total No. of Shares. 13,515,528.48 

Promoter Public

6,634,569.73 6,357,358.22
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Particulars Public Promoters Total
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 	 Stock Performance and Trading Activity 
	 Manjushree Finance Limited (MFIL) is a 

prominent financial institution in Nepal, 
offering a range of financial services including 
loans, deposits, and investment opportunities. 
Established with the aim of providing accessible 
financial solutions, MFIL has grown to become 
a trusted name in the industry. The company 

is listed on the Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE) 
and has shown consistent performance over the 
years, reflecting its strong market presence and 
commitment to customer satisfaction.

	 Quarter wise details of stock performance in 
NEPSE during FY 2080-81 is summarized as 
under: 

Quarter High 
Price (Rs.)

Low Price 
(Rs.)

Last Trading 
Price (Rs.)

Total Trading 
Days

Total No. of 
Transactions

Total No. of 
Traded Shares

First 512.90 501.00 503.00 61.00 10,176 1,052,034

Second 542.60 532.00 534.00 49.00 7,479 1,189,746

Third 527.00 505.00 505.00 58.00 9,973 1,435,503

Fourth 640.50 490.00 602.90 61.00 21,943 3,532,866

 
 Shareholders Holding 0.5% or more  

S.N. Name 
No. of 
Shares 
Held 

Paid 
Amount % S.N. Name 

No. of 
Shares 
Held 

Paid 
Amount %  

1 Suman Prasad Adhikari 947,777 94,777,736 7.01% 18 Kalyan Raj Baral 130,461 13,046,128 0.97% 

2 Paras Adhikari 733,607 73,360,704 5.43% 19 Numanath Poudel 129,033 12,903,272 0.95% 

3 Kamal Kumar Begani 393,881 39,388,059 2.91% 20 Rabi Raj Aryal 123,086 12,308,616 0.91% 

4 Sharad Koirala 291,047 29,104,712 2.15% 21 Bishnu Subedi 123,084 12,308,419 0.91% 

5 Damodar Prasad Gautam 257,441 25,744,071 1.90% 22 Captive Investment 
Company Pvt.Ltd 120,280 12,027,986 0.89% 

6 LP Bhanu Sharma 158,606 15,860,557 1.17% 23 Sharada Sharma Gautam 117,805 11,780,462 0.87% 

7 Rekha Oli Upreti 155,373 15,537,300 1.15% 24 Vijaya Bahadur Shah 116,529 11,652,881 0.86% 

8 Vinay Kumar Sharma 143,491 14,349,065 1.06% 25 Divya Koirala 110,117 11,011,710 0.81% 

9 Hathway Investment 
Nepal 134,338 13,433,833 0.99% 26 Aman Chaudhary 108,657 10,865,700 0.80% 

10 Shova Mishra 134,338 13,433,833 0.99% 27 Shrichand Jain 98,475 9,847,471 0.73% 

11 Santosh Kumar Rathi 134,338 13,433,833 0.99% 28 Shovita Shrestha Dhakal 95,746 9,574,640 0.71% 

12 Saurav Dahal 133,233 13,323,272 0.99% 29 Arbind Tulachan 90,369 9,036,900 0.67% 

13 Sagar Kumar Ghimire 132,466 13,246,584 0.98% 30 Bhoj Raj Aryal 83,235 8,323,504 0.62% 

14 Prem Naryan Sapkota 133,233 13,323,272 0.99% 31 Nabaraj Thapa 81,385 8,138,457 0.60% 

15 Satyabhama Niraula 132,935 13,293,527 0.98% 32 Balaram Sapkota 73,986 7,398,598 0.55% 

16 Shankar Prasad Dahal 132,607 13,260,732 0.98% 33 Raj Kumar Agrawal 69,364 6,936,441 0.51% 

17 Pratima Upadhyaya 
Dahal 131,752 13,175,185 0.97% 34 Tanka Prasad Dhakal 69,035 6,903,497 0.51% 

8. Competitive Landscape  
 Industry Trends (Banking Industry vs Finance Companies vs MFL) 

5 Years’ Loan Growth Analysis 5 Years’ Deposit Growth Analysis 
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SWOT Analysis

Strength Internal 
Challenges Opportunities External 

Challenges
Strong Market 
Presence

Cost Optimization Digital Banking 
Expansion

Economic 
Instability

Strong Capital 
Base 
for Expansion

Brand Building Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Collaborations

Intense 
Competition

Diverse Product 
Portfolio

Innovation Financial Inclusion 
Initiatives

Cybersecurity 
Risks

Skilled Workforce Diversification of  
Revenue Streams

Positive Economic 
Trends 
in Nepal

Ever-changing 
Regulatory 
Landscape

Established 
Growth 
Momentum

Employee 
Empowerment

Innovative Products Industry-
wide Recovery 
Challenges

Strong Customer 
Base

Limited Geographic 
Reach

Strategic Branch 
Locations
Value Banking 
Initiatives
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Q1

• 100,000 + Deposit
Accounts

• 100,000+ Satisfied
Customers

• Onboarded 35,000 +
New Accounts

• Balance Sheet
Size crossed Rs.
20 Billion (Rs.
21.23 Billion)

• Loan and Deposit
Portfolio Crossed Rs.
15 Billion Each

• Total Business Portfolio
of 33 Billion+

• More than 85K DTB
Users

• Increased by 227%

Awarded as "the
Best Managed
Finance
Company 2024

MOU with 20+
merchants to provide
discount to MFL
Customer

• Fee Based Income of 
almost 100 Million

• Increased by More than 
70%  

Opening of Extension
Counter at Bouddha

01 03

02 04

Notable Milestones

Q1

• 100,000 + Deposit
Accounts

• 100,000+ Satisfied
Customers

• Onboarded 35,000 +
New Accounts

• Balance Sheet
Size crossed Rs.
20 Billion (Rs.
21.23 Billion)

• Loan and Deposit
Portfolio Crossed Rs.
15 Billion Each

• Total Business Portfolio
of 33 Billion+

• More than 85K DTB
Users

• Increased by 227%

Awarded as "the
Best Managed
Finance
Company 2024

MOU with 20+
merchants to provide
discount to MFL
Customer

• Fee Based Income of 
almost 100 Million

• Increased by More than 
70%  

Opening of Extension
Counter at Bouddha

100,000 + Deposit Accounts
100,000+ Satisfied Customers

Onboarded 35,000 + New Accounts

Fee Based Income of almost 
100 Million, Increased by 

More than 70% 

Balance Sheet Size crossed 
Rs. 20 Billion (Rs. 21.23 Billion)

Opening of Extension 
Counter at Bouddha

Loan and Deposit Portfolio  Crossed 
Rs. 15 Billion Each

Total Business Portfolio of 33 Billion+

MOU with 20+ Merchants to 
Provide Discount to 

MFL Customer

More than 85K DTB Users
Increased by 227%

Awarded as "Best Managed 
Finance Company 2024"

05 07

06 08
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3.1	 Organogram

CHAPTER-3
Governance, Risk Management & Compliance

Chapter 3  
Governance, Risk Management & Compliance 

3.1 Organogram 

 

3.2 Board Meeting 
The Board of Directors held a total of 25 meetings 
during the fiscal year, ensuring active oversight of the 
company's strategic direction and operational 
performance. These meetings provided a platform for in-
depth discussions on key issues, including financial 

performance, risk management, and corporate 
governance. Through these regular engagements, the 
Board played a crucial role in safeguarding the long-
term interests of shareholders and guiding the 
company's growth and sustainability. 

S.N Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Share Holding at Ashadh End 
2081 

1 Mr. Yadav Adhikari Chairperson 25 931 Kitta 
2 Mrs. Indira Pandit (Ghimire) Director 22 3,312 Kitta 
3 Mr. Suman Prasad Adhikari Director 25 947,779 Kitta 
4 Mr. Satish Gautam Director 5 100 Kitta 
5 Mr. Ramhari Sharma Director 23 826 Kitta 
6 Mr. Dipak Thapa Director 11 820 Kitta 
7 Mr. Pushpa Raj Bhandari Director - - 

Directors Retired During the Year 
1 Mr. Arun Neupane Director 25 - 
2 Mr. Dilman Singh Chand Director 12 504 Kitta 
3 Mr. Chintamani Gautam Director 9 13,516 Kitta 

 
Key Considerations and Resolutions 

3.2 Board Meeting 
The Board of Directors held a total of 25 meetings 
during the fiscal year, ensuring active oversight of 
the company's strategic direction and operational 
performance. These meetings provided a platform for 

in-depth discussions on key issues, including financial 
performance, risk management, and corporate 
governance. Through these regular engagements, 
the Board played a crucial role in safeguarding the 
long-term interests of shareholders and guiding the 
company's growth and sustainability.

S.N Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings 
Attended

Share Holding at Ashadh 
End 2081

1 Mr. Yadav Adhikari Chairperson 25 931 Kitta

2 Mrs. Indira Pandit (Ghimire) Director 22 3,312 Kitta

3 Mr. Suman Prasad Adhikari Director 25 947,778 Kitta

4 Mr. Satish Gautam Director 5 100 Kitta

5 Mr. Ram Hari Sharma Director 23 826 Kitta

6 Mr. Dipak Thapa Director 11 820 Kitta

7 Mr. Pushpa Raj Bhandari Director - -

Directors Retired During the Year
1 Mr. Arun Neupane* Director 25 -

2 Mr. Dilman Singh Chand Director 12 504 Kitta

3 Mr. Chintamani Gautam Director 9 13,516 Kitta

Head
Marketing

& Branding

* Retired on 2081-04-02
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Key Considerations and Resolutions
•  Approval of various policies: 

-	 Working Capital Loan Policy and Guidelines 
2080, 

-	 Loan Recovery Policy 2080, 
-	 Talent Hunt Policy 2080, 
-	 AML/CFT and KYC Policy 2024, 
-	 Employee Service Byelaws 2081, 
-	 Finance Administration Byelaws 2081, 
-	 Valuation Guideline 2024, 
-	 Strategic Planning 2028,

•	 Approval of annual financial statements for FY 
2079-80 and discussion on audit report on the 
same

•	 Recommendation of statutory auditor to be 
appointed from AGM

•	 Approval request to NRB for Foreign Exchange 
Transaction License

•	 Discussion and response on NRB inspection report 
regarding RTGS system

•	 Approval of annual budget for FY 2081-82
•	 Approval request to NRB for opening new 

extension counter
•	 Discussion and Response on NRB Inspection 

Report 2080
•	 Accepted resignation of CEO and appointment of 

CEO and DCEO

•	 Welcome to directors (Mrs. Indira Pandit Ghimire 
and Mr. Dipak Thapa) elected by 16th AGM

•	 Appointment of new director (Mr. Satish Gautam)
•	 Acceptance of resignation of Director (Mr. Dilman 

Singh Chand) 
•	 Discussion and approval of reports of different 

Board level committees

3.3	 Board Level Committees
	 In accordance with the requirement of the Companies 2063 and the Bank & Financial Institutions Act 

2073, and to enhance its oversight and decision-making capabilities, MFL had formed different board-level 
committees comprised of directors’ expert in the relevant field. These committees are focused on specific 
areas of the business.

3.3.1 Audit Committee
	 The Committee convened 10 meetings during the year. Key discussions and decisions made at these meetings 

are summarized below:

Composition Role Key Considerations and Decisions
Mr. Ram Hari Sharma

Mrs. Indira Pandit (Ghimire)

Head-Internal Audit

Director, 
Coordinator

Director, Member

Member Secretary

• Approval of internal audit planning 
• Review of internal audit reports and internal 

control system
• Recommendation of Statutory Auditors for 

appointment
• Review external audit reports and discussion 

with external auditors 
•  Review of interim and audited financials
•  Submission of annual Audit Committee Report 

to the Board

 Approval of various policies:  
- Working Capital Loan Policy and Guidelines 2080,  
- Loan Recovery Policy 2080,  
- Talent Hunt Policy 2080,  
- AML/CFT and KYC Policy 2024,  
- Employee Service Byelaws 2081,  
- Finance Administration Byelaws 2081,  
- Valuation Guideline 2024,  
- Strategic Planning 2028, 

 Approval of annual financial statements for FY 2079-80 
and discussion on audit report on the same 

 Recommendation of statutory auditor to be appointed 
from AGM 

 Approval request to NRB for Foreign Exchange 
Transaction License 

 Discussion and response on NRB inspection report 
regarding RTGS system 

 Approval of annual budget for FY 2081-82 
 Approval request to NRB for opening new extension 

counter 
 Discussion and Response on NRB Inspection Report 

2080  
 Accepted resignation of CEO and appointment of CEO 

and DCEO  

 Welcome to directors (Mrs. Indira Pandit Ghimire and 
Mr. Dipak Thapa) elected by 16th AGM  Appointment of new director (Mr. Satish Gautam) 

 Acceptance of resignation of Director (Mr. Dilman Singh 
Chand)  

 Discussion and approval of reports of different 
Board level committees 

3.3 Board Level Committees 
In accordance with the requirement of the Companies 2063 and the Bank & Financial Institutions Act 2073, and to 
enhance its oversight and decision-making capabilities, MFL has formed different board-level committees comprised of 
directors’ expert in the relevant field. These committees focused on specific areas of the business. 

3.3.1 Audit Committee 
The Committee convened 10 meetings during the year. Key discussions and decisions made at these meetings are 
summarized below: 

Composition Role Key Considerations and Decisions 

Mr. Ram Hari Sharma Coordinator 
 Approval of internal audit planning  
 Review of internal audit reports and internal control 

system 
 Recommendation of Statutory Auditors for appointment 
 Review external audit reports and discussion with 

external auditors  
 Review of interim and audited financials 
 Submission of annual Audit Committee Report to the 

Board 

Mrs. Indira Pandit (Ghimire) Member 

Head-Internal Audit Member Secretary 

 

3.3.2 Risk Management Committee 
The Committee convened 8 meetings during the year. Key discussions and decisions made at these meetings are 
summarized below: 

Composition Role Key Considerations and Decisions 
Mr. Dipak 
Thapa 

Director, 
Coordinator 

 Review of Risk Management Policy, Risk Based Pricing Policy, Working Capital 
Loan Policy and Valuation Guidelines, and recommendation to the Board for 
approval 

 Review of portfolio from the point of view of internal policy and regulatory 
threshold, assessment of concentration risk, portfolio quality including NPA 
level and early warning signals, adequacy of loan loss provisioning and 
comparison with industry trend 

 Review of risk profile on a quarterly basis, assessment credit risk, operational 
risk, market risk and information security risk  

 Assessment of effectiveness of risk management system and practices of MFL, 
review of stress testing results 

Mr. Ram Hari 
Sharma 

Director,  
Member 

Chief Operating 
Officer Member  

Chief Risk 
Officer 

Member 
Secretary 

Key Board 
Functions

Strategy

CEO

Monitoring 
& 

Compliance

Risk 
Managemen

t

Policy 
Framework

Shareholder 
Communica

tion Oversight
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3.3.2 Risk Management Committee
	 The Committee convened 8 meetings during the year. Key discussions and decisions made at these meetings 

are summarized below:

Composition Role Key Considerations and Decisions
Mr. Dipak Thapa

Mr. Ram Hari Sharma

Chief Operating 
Officer

Chief Risk Officer

Director, 
Coordinator

Director, 
Member

Member 

Member 
Secretary

•   Review of Risk Management Policy, Risk Based Pricing Policy, 
Working Capital Loan Policy and Valuation Guidelines, and 
recommendation to the Board for approval

•  Review of portfolio from the point of view of internal policy 
and regulatory threshold, assessment of concentration risk, 
portfolio quality including NPA level and early warning signals, 
adequacy of loan loss provisioning and comparison with 
industry trend

•  Review of risk profile on a quarterly basis, assessment credit 
risk, operational risk, market risk and information security risk

• Assessment of effectiveness of risk management system and 
practices of MFL, review of stress testing results Consideration 
of decision of Assets Liability Committee

3.3.3 AML/CFT Committee
	 The Committee convened 11 meetings during the year. Key discussions and decisions made at these meetings 

are summarized below:

Composition Role Key Considerations and Decisions
Mr. Pushpa 
Raj Bhandari

Chief Risk 
Officer

Compliance 
Head

Director, 
Coordinator

Member

Member 
Secretary

•  Approval of annual budget and training program related to AML/CFT
•  Discussion on report of external audit and internal audit related to the 

AML/CFT compliance department and enforcement status
•  Discussion on report of AML Inspection conducted by NRB
•  Review of KYC/AML Policy of MFL
•  Discussion on reporting to NRB and compliance of applicable legal 

and regulatory requirements 
•  Approval of AML/CFT Risk Management Report to be submitted to 

NRB

3.3.4  Employee Service Benefit Committee
	 The Committee convened 6 meetings during the year. Key discussions and decisions made at these meetings are 

summarized below:

Composition Role Key Considerations and Decisions
Mr. Suman 
Prasad Adhikari

Chief Executive 
Officer

HR Department- 
Head

Director, 
Coordinator

Member

Member 
Secretary

•  Review of HR Byelaws, Review of Annual Performance Review System, 
Revision on Employee Facilities 

•  Approval for recruitment of new staff 
•  Appointment of DCEO
•  Approval of annual training calendar 
•  Approval of head count budget for FY 2081/82
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3.4	 Remuneration of Directors 

S.N. Name of Director Board of 
Director

Audit 
Commit-

tee
RMC AML/CFT

Committee

HR 
Com-
mittee

Build-
ing Pur-

chase 
Com-
mittee

Total

1 Mr. Yadav Adhikari 275,000 - - - - - 275,000

2 Mrs. Indira Pandit (Ghimire) 241,000 40,000 - - - - 281,000

3 Mr. Suman Prasad Adhikari 260,000 - - - 60,000 30,000 350,000

4 Mr. Satish Gautam 50,000 - - - - - 50,000

5 Mr. Ram Hari Sharma 240,000 100,000 40,000 - - 30,000 410,000

6 Mr. Dipak Thapa 110,000 - 40,000 - - - 150,000

7 Mr. Pushpa Raj Bhandari - - - - - - -

Directors Retired During the Year
1 Mr. Arun Neupane 260,000 - - 120,000 - 30,000 410,000

2 Mr. Dilman Singh Chand 130,000 60,000 40,000 - - - 230,000

3 Mr. Chintamani Gautam 100,000 - 40,000 - - - 140,000

Total 1,666,000 200,000 160,000 120,000 60,000 90,000 2,296,000

3.5	 Management Committees
	 Executive Committee

S.N Name Role
1 Chief Executive Officer Co-ordinator

2 Deputy Chief Executive Officer Member

3 Chief Credit Officer Member

4 Chief Business Officer Member

5 Chief Operating Officer Member

6 Chief Legal Officer Member

7 Chief IT Officer Member

8 Head of Credit- Corporate Office Member

9 Chief Risk Officer Member

10 Chief Finance Officer Member

11 Compliance Officer Member

12 Head - Credit Operation Department Member
13 Head - Human Resource Management Member
14 Head - Internal Audit Member
15 Head- Deposit Marketing & Branding Member - Secretary
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	 Other Management Committees
Risk Management Committee

S.N. Composition Role
1 CEO Coordinator

2 DCEO Member

3 CCO Member

4 CBO Member

5 COO Member

6 CLO Invitee Member

7 CRO Member-Secretary

Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO)
S.N. Designation Role

1 CEO Coordinator

2 DCEO Member

3 CCO Member

4 CBO Member

5 CFO Member

6 Treasury-Head Member-Secretary

IT Steering Committee
S.N. Composition Role

1 DCEO Coordinator

2 COO Member

3 HR Head Member

4 IT Head Member-Secretary

IT Strategy Committee
S.N. Composition Role

1 CEO Coordinator

2 DCEO Member

3 CBO Member

4 COO Member

5 IT Head Member-Secretary

Financial Administration Committee
S.N. Composition Role

1 CEO Coordinator

2 DCEO Member

3 COO Member

4 CFO Member

5 Head-GAD Member-Secretary

Loan Recovery Committee
S.N. Composition Role

1 CEO Coordinator

2 DCEO Member

3 CCO Member

4 CBO Member

5 Recovery Head Member-Secretary

Loan Write-off Committee
S.N. Composition Role

1 CEO Coordinator

2 DCEO Member

3 CCO Member

4 CBO Member

5 CLO Member

6 Recovery Head Member-Secretary

Fixed Asset Auction Committee
S.N. Composition Role

1 CEO Coordinator

2 DCEO Member

3 COO Member

4 CFO Member-Secretary

Purchase Committee
S.N. Composition Role

1 CEO Coordinator

2 DCEO Member

3 CFO Member

4 Head-GAD Member-Secretary

Record Management and Disposal Committee
S.N. Composition Role

1 Head-GAD Coordinator

2 CFO Member

3 Security Guard Member

4 Head-GAD Member-Secretary
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3.6	 Right to Information and Grievance Handling 
 	 As a public and listed banking institution licensed 

by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB), we are unwavering in 
our commitment to transparency, accountability, 
and the principles of good governance. We 
fully recognize the critical role that the Right 
to Information (RTI) plays in building public 
trust and empowering stakeholders with timely, 
accurate, and accessible information. 

	 MFL has established streamlined, efficient 
processes for the prompt dissemination of 
information, making financial reports, policies, 
and essential documents readily available to the 
public, shareholders, and relevant stakeholders. 

	 With online and offline RTI request systems, 
we ensure that inquiries are met with swift and 
comprehensive responses. These initiatives 
reflect our dedication to fostering openness 
and nurturing a deeper relationship with the 
communities we serve, ultimately contributing 
to the sustainable growth and development of 
Nepal's banking sector.

	 In full compliance with Section 5 of the RTI Act 
2064 and Rule 3 of the RTI Rules 2065, we have 
made a comprehensive public disclosure of crucial 
information on our website. This includes details 
on the scope of our business, applicable laws and 

regulatory frameworks, branch locations, officer 
information, service charges, grievance handling 
mechanisms, the process to seek information, and 
relevant contact details. 

	 By providing these resources, we strive to uphold 
the highest standards of transparency, ensuring 
that stakeholders have easy access to critical 
information, and we remain fully responsive to 
public concerns. Our commitment to RTI is not 
just a legal obligation, but a core value that reflects 
our dedication to fostering trust, accountability, 
and an empowered community.

	 Additionally, we have provided the link to 
the NRB Grievance Handling Portal (https://
gunaso.nrb.org.np) on our website, ensuring 
that stakeholders can easily access the regulator’s 
grievance handling system. 

3.7	 Whistle Blow 
	 MFL has implemented a robust whistleblower 

policy namely Whistleblowing Policy 2079 to 
encourage ethical behavior and transparency. 
This policy provides a confidential channel for 
employees, customers, and other stakeholders 
to report suspected misconduct or wrongdoing 
without fear of retaliation. The mechanism 
ensures that the whistleblower's identity remains 
anonymous, protecting their privacy and security. 
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4.1	 Horizontal Analysis of Financial Position				                                           (Amount Rs.)

Assets 31st Ashadh 
2081

31st Ashadh 
2080 Change  % Change 

Cash and Cash Equivalent               365,926,265            1,007,858,504        (641,932,239) (63.69)
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank               838,736,447               655,465,614         183,270,833 27.96 
Placement With BFIs                               -                                 -                            -   -   
Derivative Financial Instruments                               -                                 -                            -   -   
Other Trading Assets                               -                                 -                            -   -   

Loan and Advances to B/FIs        1,327,368,635               959,036,391         368,332,244 38.41 

Loans and Advances to Customers    13,999,297,975     11,291,008,274      2,708,289,701 23.99 

Investment in Securities        4,132,619,091            2,597,152,379      1,535,466,712 59.12 

Current Tax Assets                 32,427,270                 15,510,315           16,916,955 109.07 

Investment in Subsidiaries                               -                                 -                            -   -   

Investment in Associates                               -                                 -                            -   -   

Investment Property                 63,520,366                 25,905,880           37,614,485 145.20 

Property and Equipment              225,421,700               192,860,086           32,561,614 16.88 

Goodwill and Intangible Assets                   3,040,945                   1,635,977             1,404,968 85.88 

Deferred Tax Assets                 18,840,859                 17,020,033             1,820,826 10.70 

Other Assets              226,646,007                 99,131,097         127,514,910 128.63 
Total Assets 21,233,845,560  16,862,584,550   4,371,261,009 25.92 

Liabilities 31st Ashadh 
2081

31st Ashadh 
2080 Change  % Change 

Due to BFIs            1,204,819,219            1,124,170,620           80,648,598 7.17 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank               603,662,927               195,678,864         407,984,063 208.50 
Derivative Financial Instruments                               -                                 -                            -   -   
Deposit from Customers          16,413,518,399          12,741,295,612      3,672,222,787 28.82 
Borrowings                               -                                 -                            -   -   

Current Tax Liabilities                               -                                 -                            -   -

Provisions                               -                                 -                            -   -   

Deferred Tax Liabilities                               -                                 -                            -   -   

Other Liabilities         295,671,113               237,472,974           58,198,140 24.51 

Debt Securities Issued     500,000,000               500,000,000                          -   -   

Subordinated Liabilities                               -                                 -                            -   -   
Total Liabilities 19,017,671,659      14,798,618,071   4,219,053,588 28.51 

CHAPTER-4
Key Financial Highlights
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Equity 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 
2080 Change  % Change 

Share Capital                                                                                                                         1,351,552,849          1,351,552,849 -   -   
Share Premium                               -                                 -   -   -   
Retained Earning               174,925,005                 79,438,885 95,486,119 120.20 
Reserves               689,696,048               632,974,746 56,721,302 8.96 
Total Equity        2,216,173,901        2,063,966,480 152,207,421 7.37 
Total Liabilities and Equity 21,233,845,560 16,862,584,550 4,371,261,009 25.92 

4.2	 Horizontal Analysis of Profitability
Particulars  2080-81  2079-80  Change  % Change 

Interest Income 2,266,763,164 2,111,056,147 155,707,018 7.38
Interest Expense (1,517,280,936) (1,410,177,727) (107,103,209) 7.60
Net Interest Income 749,482,228 700,878,420 48,603,809 6.93
Fees and Commission Income 87,593,155 57,680,235 29,912,920 51.86
Fees and Commission Expense - - - -

Net Fee and Commission Income 87,593,155 57,680,235 29,912,920 51.86
Net Interest Fee and Commission 
Income

837,075,383 758,558,654 78,516,729 10.35

Net Trading Income - - - -

Other Operating Income 10,974,098 44,842 10,929,256 24,373.08
Total Operating Income 848,049,481 758,603,496 89,445,985 11.79
Impairment Charge 151,274,932 91,888,438 59,386,494 64.63

Net Operating Income 696,774,549 666,715,058 30,059,491 4.51
Operating Expenses
Personnel Expense 226,233,440 192,450,470 33,782,970 17.55

Other Operating Expenses 77,834,191 76,200,984 1,633,207 2.14

Depreciation and Amortization 43,905,637 44,720,836 (815,199) (1.82)
Operating Profit 348,801,281 353,342,769 (4,541,487) (1.29)
Non-Operating Income - - - -

Non-Operating Expense 23,924,497 - 23,924,497 100.00
Profit Before Income Tax 324,876,785 353,342,769 (28,465,984) (8.06)
Income Tax Expense 100,261,421 106,343,603 (6,082,182) (5.72)

Current Tax 101,535,512 110,370,458 (8,834,946) (8.00)

Deferred Tax Income (1,274,091) (4,026,856) 2,752,765 (68.36)
Profit for the Period 224,615,364 246,999,166 (22,383,802) (9.06)
Earnings per Share 16.62 18.28 (1.66) (9.06)
Distributable Profit 174,925,005 79,438,886 95,486,119 120.20
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4.3	 Total Assets and Shareholders’ Fund for Last 5 Years

4.4	 Business Growth Analysis of Last 5 Years

Deferred Tax Income (1,274,091) (4,026,856) 2,752,765 (68.36) 

Profit for the Period 224,615,364 246,999,166 (22,383,802) (9.06) 
Earnings per Share 16.62 18.28 (1.66) (9.06) 

Distributable Profit 174,925,005 79,438,886 95,486,119 120.20 
 

 

1.3 Total Assets and Shareholders’ Fund for Last 5 Years 
Total Assets (Rs. Mio) and YOY Growth 

 

Total Equity (Rs. Mio) and YOY Growth 

 
 

 
1.4 Business Growth Analysis of Last 5 Years 
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Profit for the Period 224,615,364 246,999,166 (22,383,802) (9.06) 
Earnings per Share 16.62 18.28 (1.66) (9.06) 

Distributable Profit 174,925,005 79,438,886 95,486,119 120.20 
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5.4 Value Added Statement and Value Distribution Chart

5.5 Contribution to the State

4. Value Added Statement and Value Distribution Chart 
Value Added Statement (Rs. ‘000) 

Particulars Amount 
Net interest income 749,482.29 
Net fee and commission income 87,593.16 
Net trading income - 
Other income 10,974.10 
Less:   

Operating Expenses 77,834.19 
Non-Operating Expense 23,924.50 

Total Value Added 746,290.86 
Distributions To:  

Employees 226,233.44 
Government (Corporate Tax) 100,261.42 
Shareholders 224,615.36 
Retained by the Entity 
(Depreciation, Impairment Charge) 193,906.55 

Total Distribution 746,290.86 
 

Value Distribution Chart (Rs. ‘000) 

 
 

5. Contribution to the State 
Year Wise Tax Contribution to the Government for Last 3 Fiscal Years 

 
 
 

Chapter 6  
Letter from Chairperson 

 

Dear Valued Shareholders, 

It is with great pleasure that I welcome you to the 17th 
Annual General Meeting of Manjushree Finance Limited. 
Today, we gather to reflect on our performance over the 
past fiscal year, assess the prevailing economic landscape 
both globally and within Nepal, and outline our strategic 
direction for the future. I am honored to address you and 
share insights into our achievements, the challenges we 
have navigated, and the opportunities that lie ahead. 

Global Economic Overview: 

The global economic landscape over the past year has 
been characterized by a complex interplay of factors. The 
enduring effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, coupled with 
geopolitical tensions, supply chain disruptions, and 

inflationary pressures, have created a challenging 
environment for businesses worldwide.  

The global economic landscape has been significantly 
shaped by a confluence of interconnected challenges. 
Rising inflationary pressures, fueled by persistent supply 
chain bottlenecks and escalating energy prices, have 
compelled central banks worldwide to implement tighter 
monetary policies. This shift has resulted in higher 
interest rates, making borrowing more expensive for 
businesses and consumers alike, thereby reducing 
investment and spending.  

Adding to this complexity, ongoing geopolitical conflicts 
have injected substantial uncertainty into global markets. 
These conflicts disrupt established trade routes, 
discourage investment due to heightened risk aversion, 
and ultimately hinder overall economic growth.  
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CHAPTER-6
Letter from Chairperson

Dear Valued Shareholders,
It is with great pleasure that I welcome you to the 
17th Annual General Meeting of Manjushree Finance 
Limited. Today, we gather to reflect on our performance 
over the past fiscal year, assess the prevailing economic 
landscape both globally and within Nepal, and 
outline our strategic direction for the future. I am 
honored to address you and share insights into our 
achievements, the challenges we have navigated, and 
the opportunities that lie ahead.

Global Economic Overview:
The global economic landscape over the past year has 
been characterized by a complex interplay of factors. 
The enduring effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
coupled with geopolitical tensions, supply chain 
disruptions, and inflationary pressures, have created 
a challenging environment for businesses worldwide. 

The global economic landscape has been significantly 
shaped by a confluence of interconnected challenges. 
Rising inflationary pressures, fueled by persistent 
supply chain bottlenecks and escalating energy 
prices, have compelled central banks worldwide to 
implement tighter monetary policies. This shift has 
resulted in higher interest rates, making borrowing 
more expensive for businesses and consumers alike, 
thereby reducing investment and spending. 

Adding to this complexity, ongoing geopolitical 
conflicts have injected substantial uncertainty into 
global markets. These conflicts disrupt established 
trade routes, discourage investment due to heightened 
risk aversion, and ultimately hinder overall economic 
growth. 

The persistent disruptions to global supply chains 
have further exacerbated inflationary pressures and 
impeded economic recovery. These disruptions, often 
stemming from logistical bottlenecks, production 
slowdowns, and trade restrictions, continue to affect 
the smooth flow of goods and services, contributing to 
price increases and hindering the ability of businesses 
to meet demand. 

Consequently, the combined effect of these factors—
inflation, geopolitical instability, and supply chain 
disruptions—has led to a pronounced slowdown 
in global economic growth. Many economies now 
face the looming threat of recession, as businesses 
grapple with rising costs, reduced demand, and an 
uncertain outlook. The interconnected nature of these 
challenges underscores the complexity of the current 
global economic environment and the difficulties 
policymakers face in navigating these turbulent times.

Nepalese Economic Overview:
The Nepalese economy has navigated a complex 
landscape over the past year, dealing with both global 
economic adversities and specific domestic challenges. 
While some 

trends mirror the global economic climate, Nepal's 
unique context has shaped its economic trajectory. 
The nation's recovery from the economic fallout of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, while showing signs of 
progress, has been uneven across various sectors. Some 
industries have rebounded more quickly than others, 
creating disparities in recovery rates and impacting 
overall economic momentum. In recent years, the 
Nepalese financial sector faced significant liquidity 
challenges for the past few years. This scarcity of 
readily available funds constrained lending activities, 
hindering investment and overall economic growth. 
These liquidity pressures also exerted upward pressure 
on interest rates, making borrowing more expensive 
and further limiting access to credit for businesses and 
individuals.

Currently, while market liquidity has improved, a 
new challenge has emerged: subdued credit demand. 
Despite the availability of loanable funds within banks 
and financial institutions, businesses and individuals 
are showing a decreased appetite for borrowing. This 
hesitancy suggests a slowdown in investment and 
broader economic activity, indicating a need for 
policies to stimulate demand and encourage productive 
investment. The lingering effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic continue to pose recovery challenges for 
businesses across various sectors. Many enterprises are 
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still struggling to fully recover from the disruptions 
caused by lockdowns and reduced economic activity. 
This ongoing struggle affects their ability to service 
existing loans and reduces their willingness to take on 
new debt, further contributing to the reduced credit 
demand.

Nepal's external sector faces persistent pressures due 
to rising import costs, driven by global inflation 
and supply chain disruptions, coupled with 
relatively slower export growth. This imbalance puts 
pressure on the nation's foreign exchange reserves, 
impacting its ability to finance imports and maintain 
macroeconomic stability. 

Remittances, a vital source of foreign exchange for 
Nepal, have remained relatively stable, providing a 
crucial buffer against external pressures and supporting 
the overall economy. These inflows of funds from 
Nepalese workers abroad continue to play a significant 
role in supporting household consumption and 
contributing to the nation's foreign currency reserves.

Navigating Challenges and Achieving Growth:
Despite the challenging global and domestic 
economic environment, and specifically the liquidity 
constraints of recent years and the current subdued 
credit demand, Manjushree Finance Limited has 
demonstrated remarkable resilience and achieved 
impressive business growth. This demonstrates the 
strength of our business model, the dedication of our 
team, and the trust placed in us by our customers and 
shareholders.

Impressive Business Growth Despite Market 
Challenges:
Despite facing market liquidity challenges in prior 
years, Manjushree Finance Limited (MFL) has achieved 
impressive business growth, a testament to its strategic 
approach and operational resilience. 

Financial Performance Highlights:
Our financial performance this year reflects a story 
of robust growth in key areas, coupled with specific 
challenges that impacted net profitability.
	 Our loan portfolio experienced substantial 

expansion, growing by 26.21%, equivalent to Rs. 
3.23 billion, bringing our total loan portfolio to 
Rs. 15.53 billion.

	 Deposit mobilization also saw significant growth, 
increasing by 29.59% or Rs. 4.16 billion, resulting 
in a total deposit portfolio of Rs. 18.22 billion. 
This strong growth in both loans and deposits 
demonstrates our ability to attract new business 
and effectively manage our core operations.

	 Our net interest income grew by 6.95% and reached 
Rs. 74.95 crores, indicating healthy earnings from 
our lending activities. Fee-based income showed 
even more impressive growth at 70.75% and 
reached Rs. 9.86 crores, highlighting the success 
of our diversified revenue streams. Consequently, 
our total operating income increased by 11.79%, 
reaching Rs. 84.81 crores.

	 However, despite this positive performance in 
revenue generation, our net profit experienced 
a decrease of 9.06%, amounting to Rs. 22.46 
crores. This decline was primarily attributable to 
two factors: a spread restriction of 4.6% which 
impacted on our net interest margin, and a 
substantial increase in impairment charges by Rs. 
15.13 crore, reflecting a more cautious approach 
to provisioning for potential loan losses. 
Consequently, our earnings per share (EPS) 
also saw a slight decrease, from Rs.18.28 in the 
previous year to Rs. 16.62 this year.

	 Despite the impact on net profit, we have 
maintained a healthy non-performing asset 
(NPA) ratio of 3.22%, a slight improvement from 
3.26% in the previous year. This demonstrates 
our continued focus on prudent credit risk 
management. Furthermore, our capital adequacy 
ratio remains well above the regulatory 
requirement, standing at a strong 14.32% 
compared to 14.03% in the last year, ensuring our 
financial stability and capacity for future growth.

Significant Business Growth Above Industry Average:
Despite the various challenges, MFL's business growth 
has significantly exceeded the industry average. This 
performance reflects the effectiveness of our strategies 
and the dedication of our team.

Digitization Initiatives:
Recognizing the importance of technology in 
the modern financial landscape, we have adopted 
digitization to the extent feasible given our resources.



MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

behind your happiness

36

Looking Ahead:
We hold strong confidence in Manjushree Finance 
Limited's ability to navigate the ever-changing 
economic landscape and achieve sustained success in 
the future. Our strategic focus will remain centered 
on several key priorities. First and foremost, we 
are committed to strengthening our core business 
operations. This involves continuous improvement in 
our existing products and services, efficient resource 
allocation, and a deep understanding of our target 
market segments. Equally important is our dedication 
to managing risk effectively. We will maintain 
a robust risk management framework, ensuring 
prudent lending practices and proactive monitoring 
of potential risks to safeguard the long-term financial 
health of the institution.

Enhancing the customer experience is another 
critical area of focus. We strive to provide seamless, 
personalized, and valuable interactions for our 
customers at every touchpoint. This includes investing 
in customer service training, streamlining processes, 
and developing innovative solutions that meet 
their evolving needs. Furthermore, we recognize the 
transformative power of technology and will continue 
to invest in its adoption and integration across our 
operations. This includes upgrading our technological 
infrastructure, developing digital channels, and 
leveraging data analytics to enhance efficiency and 
deliver better customer experiences.

Finally, we are committed to contributing to the 
sustainable development of Nepal. This commitment 
extends beyond our core business operations 
to encompass responsible business practices, 
environmental stewardship, and social responsibility 
initiatives that benefit the communities we serve. We 
believe that by focusing on these key areas, Manjushree 
Finance Limited will be well-equipped to thrive in 
the dynamic economic environment and contribute 
positively to the nation's progress.

Our Sincere Appreciation:
I express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, 
Board of Directors, management team, and employees 
for their collective efforts and unwavering dedication. 
It is through this shared commitment that we have 
achieved so much, and I am confident that together, 
we will continue to build a brighter future for 
Manjushree Finance Limited. We also extend our 
sincere appreciation to the Nepal Rastra Bank for their 
effective oversight and guidance, as well as to other 
government agencies for their support in creating a 
stable and enabling environment for the financial 
sector in Nepal. 

Thank you.
Yadav Adhikari
Chairperson
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This past year has been a period of significant progress 
for Manjushree Finance Limited, characterized by 
resilience in the face of global and local economic 
headwinds, strategic growth in key areas, and a 
continued commitment to transformation and 
innovation. This report provides a comprehensive 
overview of our performance, highlighting our 
achievements, acknowledging the challenges we 
navigated, and outlining our vision for the future.

Navigating a Complex Economic Landscape:
The global economic environment in 2080-81 (2023-
24) presented a complex set of challenges including 
persistent inflation, geopolitical instability, supply 
chain disruptions, unstable interest rates. These global 
trends had a ripple effect on the Nepalese economy, 
which also faced its own unique set of circumstances, 
including, fluctuating market liquidity, post-
pandemic recovery challenges, shifts in consumer 
behavior, lack of credit demand in the banking sector, 
severe competition from banking as well as Fintech 
companies.

Notwithstanding these intricate circumstances, 
characterized by unpredictable market fluctuations 
and evolving customer needs, MFL exhibited notable 
strategic agility. We understood that a rigid approach 
would be insufficient in this environment, and 
therefore, we dynamically adapted our plans, adjusting 
our resource allocation and operational strategies to 
reduce potential risks and exploit new avenues for 
growth. Our core values of customer focus, innovation 
and continuous improvement, financial prudence, 
continued to underpin our operations, providing a 
consistent framework for decision-making amidst the 
changing landscape.

Key Achievements and Strategic Progress:
Despite the challenging backdrop, we achieved 
significant progress in several key areas:

Financial Performance: 
Our financial results for the year underscore our 
commitment to sustainable growth. Importantly, our 
business growth has demonstrated strong leadership 
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within the financial sector, outperforming both the 
overall banking industry and the finance company’s 
sector. This achievement reflects the effectiveness of 
our strategic initiatives and our team's dedication to 
excellence.
	 Our loan portfolio demonstrated exceptional 

growth, expanding by 26.21% to Rs. 15.53 billion. 
This remarkable performance significantly 
exceeded the growth rates of the finance 
companies’ industry (7.27%), solidifying our 
position as a leader in the market.

	 Our deposit mobilization efforts resulted in a 
substantial 29.59% increase and reached Rs. 18.22 
billion, a testament to the trust our customers 
place in us. This significantly outpaced the 
overall industry average of 12.55% and the 
finance companies sector average of 13.38%, 
demonstrating our strong appeal to depositors.

	 Net interest income saw a healthy increase of 
6.93%, bringing the total net interest income to 
nearly Rs. 75 crores.

	 Despite significant increase in loans and advances 
and net interest income, increased provisioning 
and spread compression limiting to a maximum 
cap of 4.60% due to regulatory requirements 
significantly impacted net profit this year. These 
factors, while necessary for maintaining financial 
stability within the regulatory framework, resulted 
in a slight decrease in EPS to 16.62 per annum 
from 18.28 in the previous year. Nonetheless, this 
EPS remains one of the highest in the industry, 
demonstrating the underlying strength of our 
business model.

	 We maintained a strong capital adequacy ratio of 
14.32%, including a core capital ratio of 12.87%, 
ensuring our financial stability. While the total 
capital fund of the overall industry stood at 
12.92%, and the finance companies’ sector at 
14.89%, our robust capital position underscores 
our resilience and capacity for future growth. 

	 We maintained a strong focus on asset quality, 
resulting in an NPA ratio of 3.22% at the end of 
Ashadh 2081, compared to 3.26% in the previous 
year. This is a noteworthy achievement, especially 
considering the overall industry NPA of 3.86% 
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and the significantly higher NPA of 9.87% within 
the finance company’s sector.

	 MFL reported a significant increase in fee-based 
income, which surged by over 70% during the 
year, reaching Rs. 98.57 million. This impressive 
growth is attributed to the strategic focus of the 
management on enhancing non-interest income 
streams, demonstrating their effective approach 
in diversifying revenue sources and strengthening 
the company's financial stability

Award and Recognition:
In the year 2080-81, MFL has been awarded "Best Finance 
Company - 2024" by New Business Age, reflecting our 
exceptional performance and innovative strategies, 
robust risk management, compliance, corporate 
governance, and human resource development.

Expanding Market Presence: 
Our customer base expanded significantly, exceeding 
100,000 with the addition of over 35,000 new customers. 
This growth translated into increased market share. 
Our deposit market share rose from 10.94% to 12.40% 
within the finance company’s sector. Similarly, our 
market share of loans and advances increased from 
12.48% to 13.24%

Enhancing Customer Experience: 
We undertook a comprehensive effort to enhance 
the customer experience through a range of 
digital initiatives. These included upgrading 
our mobile banking app to the BankXP web 
version, introducing a new web banking 
platform, enabling online account opening, 
implementing a video KYC mechanism, 
and upgrading our digital loan processing 
system.

Investing in Technology and 
Innovation: 
We continued to invest in technology 
to drive operational efficiency, 
enhance security, and deliver 
innovative customer solutions. 
Key initiatives included 
upgrading our core banking 
system, strengthening 
cybersecurity measures, 
developing new digital 



MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

behind your happiness

39

ANNUAL REPORT 2080-081

products, and automating internal processes. These 
investments directly support our long-term goals of 
superior customer experiences and sustainable growth.

Strengthening Risk Management: 
In a dynamic economic environment, effective risk 
management is paramount. We further strengthened 
our risk management framework by enhancing credit 
risk assessment processes, implementing new risk 
monitoring tools, strengthening internal controls, 
implementing risk-based pricing for credit deals. This 
has enabled us to maintain a healthy asset quality and 
navigate potential challenges effectively.

Developing Our People: 
Our employees are our greatest asset. We invested 
in their professional development through various 
training programs, leadership development initiatives 
and employee engagement activities.

Strategic Partnership with Merchants:
An important strategic progress this year has been our 
partnership with various merchants, including airlines 
companies, hospitals, and other businesses at both 
central and local levels. These collaborations enable 
us to offer impressive discounts to our customers on a 
wide range of products and services provided by these 
merchants, enhancing the value we deliver to our 
clients.

Addressing Key Challenges:
This year presented several key challenges: evolving 
regulations, intense competition from BFIs and 
Fintech companies, the need for enhanced customer 
experience, technological advancements including 
core banking system upgrades and enhanced 
cybersecurity and managing loan recovery during 
an economic slowdown. We proactively addressed 

these challenges through strategic investments in 
technology and information security system, enhanced 
risk management, and a strong focus on customer 
experience.

Looking Ahead: Our Strategic Priorities:
Our strategic priorities for the coming year are designed 
to create long-term value for our stakeholders. We will 
focus on: maintaining sustainable business growth; 
prioritizing prudent lending in low-risk sectors; 
strategically growing CASA deposits; accelerating 
our digital transformation; enhancing our risk 
management framework; and embedding data-driven 
decision-making throughout our organization.

These priorities are based on a thorough assessment of 
the market landscape, our competitive strengths, and 
the evolving needs of our customers. We are confident 
that by executing these strategies effectively, we will 
create long-term value for our stakeholders.

With Heartfelt Gratitude: 
I am profoundly thankful for the dedication and hard 
work of our employees, whose talent and commitment 
are the cornerstone of our success. We also extend our 
heartfelt gratitude to our Board of Directors for their 
wise counsel and leadership, and to our shareholders 
for their unwavering trust and support. Additionally, 
we acknowledge the invaluable contributions of our 
customers, partners, and the regulatory bodies that 
oversee our industry.

Sincerely,

Tej Raj Timilsina
Chief Executive Officer
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k|ToIf ?kdf k|efljt ePsf 5g\ . oBlk o; ;+:yf ;fgf tyf demf}nf u|fxs s]lG›t Joj;fodf s]lG›t /x]sf] sf/0f ck]lIft ?kdf 
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lgo'Qm ug]{ / To:tf of]Uo sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ ;+:yfsf] ;]jfdf sfod} /fVg pTk|]l/t ug]{df k|lta4 5 . ;+:yfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ j[lQ 
ljsf;sf] cj;/ k|bfg u/L cGoq hfg'kg]{ kl/l:ylt l;h{gf gxf];\ eGg] s'/fdf ;+:yf ;hu 5 .

;+:yfut ;'zf;g
;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] :t/nfO{ ;b}j cToGt pRr sfod /fVg] s'/fdf ;+:yf k"0f{ k|ltjå 5 . ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;+:yfsf] sfd sf/jfxLsf] 
dfu{ bz{gsf] ?kdf /x]sf] dgg ub}{ ;f]xL cg'?k ;~rfns ;ldltsf sfd sf/jfxLx? cuf8L a9fOPsf 5g\ . o; ;+:yfsf cGo ;a} 
lqmofsnfkx? Kff/bzL{ ?kdf ;~rfng u/L ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] ljsf; ug{ Pj+ ;f] sf] cg'e"lt u/fpg ;+:yf ;b}j lqmoflzn 5 . o; 
;+:yfn] g]kfn /fi6« a}+s nufot lgodgsf/L lgsfox?af6 ;do ;dodf hf/L ePsf gLlt lgb]{zgnfO{ ;hutfsf ;fy sfof{Gjog ub{} 
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cfPsf] 5 . ;fy}, o;n] cjnDag u/]sf] gLlt, ;jn Joj:yfkg Pj+ sd{rf/Lx?sf] cys kl/>dsf] kl/0ffd :j?k cfufdL lbgx?df 
;+:yfn] cem a9L pknlAw xfl;n ug]{ 5 eGg] xfdLn] ljZjf; lnPsf 5f}+ .

cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL
Joj;fo la:tf/;+u} To;df cGt/lglxt hf]lvdx? Go"gLs/0f ug{sf] nflu cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] dxTjk"0f{ e"ldsf /x]sf] 
x'G5 . ;f]xL cg'?k a}+lsË Joj;fodf lglxt shf{, ahf/ tyf ;+rfng nufotsf hf]lvdx?nfO{ dWogh/ ub}{ ;+:yfn] cfGtl/s 
lgoGq0f k|0fnLnfO{ bx|f] agfpg] gLlt lnPsf] 5 . o;} u/L ;+rfng k|lqmof tkm{ cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL, sd{rf/L ljlgodfjnL, 
shf{ ckn]vg ljlgodfjnL, shf{ gLlt nufot cfjZos gLlt lgb]{lzsfx? tof/ u/L nfu" ul//x]sf] 5 . o;sf] cnfjf ;+:yfsf] 
cfjZostf cg';f/ u|fxs ljj/0f klxrfg sfo{ljlw, ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f tyf cft+sjfbL lgjf/0f sfo{ljlw tyf cGo sfo{ljlwx? 
t}of/ u/L ;f]xL cg'?k lqmofsnfkx? ;+rfng u/]sf] 5 . n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|lqmofsf] lgoldt cg'udg ug]{ 
kl/kf6Lsf] ljsf; u/]sf] 5 .

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx?

-!_	 o; ;+:yfaf6 k|bfg ul/g] bL3{sfnLg, dWosfnLg shf{ k|jfx ubf{ x'g;Sg] ;+efljt hf]lvdx?,
-@_	 g]kfn ;/sf/ jf g]kfn /fi6« a}+s ;DaGwL gLltdf kl/jt{g x'Fbf l;h{gf x'g;Sg] ;+efljt hf]lvdx?,
-#_	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ Jofhb/df x'g] kl/jt{g tyf yk36n] pTkGg x'g;Sg] ;+efljt hf]lvdx?,
-$_	 lgIf]k tyf shf{ nufgLsf] Jofhb/df x'g] kl/jt{gaf6 c;/ ug]{ hf]lvdx?,
-%_	 oyf;dodf shf{ c;'nL geO{ pTkGg x'g;Sg] hf]lvdx?,
-^_	 shf{ tyf nufgLsf] Jofhb/df x'g] kl/jt{gaf6 x'g;Sg] cfly{s hf]lvdx?,
-&_	 cGt/fli6«o ahf/df x'g] dGbLaf6 g]kfnL ahf/df kg{ ;Sg] c;/af6 x'g] cfly{s hf]lvdx?, 
-*_	 b]zsf] cfly{s cj:yfdf cfpg] ptf/ r9fjaf6 kg{;Sg] hf]lvdx? tyf
-(_	 k|ljlw dfkm{t k|jfx ul/g] ;]jfdf cfpg ;Sg] ljleGg k|s[ltsf hf]lvdx? . 

o; ;+:yfsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6 / nufgL v/fa eO{ x'g ;Sg] hf]lvdx?sf] nflu g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zfg';f/ ;+:yfn] shf{ gf]S;fgL 
Joj:yf h:tf sf]ifsf] Joj:yf u/]sf] 5 . ;+:yfn] ljQ ahf/df x'g] k|lt:kwf{sf] nflu hgzlQm ljsf;df cfjZos Wofg k'¥ofPsf] 
5 . o; afx]s Joj;flos hf]lvdx?af6 >[hgf x'g;Sg] xflg gf]S;fgLsf] nflu Joj:yfkg rgfvf] eO{ ;Defljt xfgL gf]S;fgL sd 
ug{ ;Ifd tyf k|ltaå 5 .

n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof
;dLIff jif{sf] jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fx? pk/ n]vfk/LIfsn] n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s}lkmot/lxtsf] /fo -Unqualified Opinion_ 
k|s6 ug'{ ePsf] x'Fbf n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot g/x]sf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpFb5f}F . 

n]vfk/LIf0f, jf;nft / cGo ljj/0f
@)*! cfiff9 d;fGtsf] ljQLo cj:yfsf] ljj/0f -jf;nft_ cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fj, gub k|jfx ljj/0f, 
;DalGwt cg';"rLx? tyf n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg o;} k|ltj]bgsf] c+usf] ?kdf /flvPsf 5g\ . ;fy}, sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)
(-$_ jdf]lhdsf s'/fx?nfO{ cg';"rLsf] ?kdf k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 . oxfFx?sf] ;xeflutfd'ns 5nkmn Pj+ ;dy{g kl5 pQm ljj/0fx? 
cg'df]lbt x'g]5 eGg] ljZjf; lnPsf] 5' .

cGTodf,
o; ;+:yfsf] k|ultsf] nflu ;xof]u, ;b\efj, cd"No ;'emfj tyf dfu{bz{g lbg'x'g] ;Dk"0f{ dxfg'efjx?, g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, sDkgL 
/lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, g]kfn :6s PS:r]Gh ln= Tfyf cfb/0fLo u|fxsju{ tyf ;d:t ;/f]sf/jfnfx?k|lt xflb{s 
s[t1tf ;lxt wGojfb JoQm ub{5f}+ . ;fy} ;+:yfnfO{ o; prfOdf k'¥ofpg ;xof]u ug]{ Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ wGojfb 1fkg 
ub{5f}+ .
wGojfb .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6
ofbj clwsf/L							     
;~rfns ;ldlt cWoIf
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-s_ 	 ljut jif{sf] sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg,
    	 jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v 5 .

-v_ 	 /fli6«o tyf cGt/fli6«o kl/l:yltaf6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ s'g} c;/ k/]sf] eP ;f] c;/, 
	 jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v 5.

-u_ 	 k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt ;Dd rfn" jif{sf] pknlAw / eljiodf ug{'kg]{ s'/fsf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff,
    	 jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v 5 .

-3_ 	 sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus jf Joj;flos ;DaGw,
    	 jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v 5 .

-ª_ 	 ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f]sf] sf/0f,
	 ;dLIff cjlwdf ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltdf x]/km]/ eO{ b]xfo adf]lhdsf ;~rfnsx? /xg' ePsf] 5 .

qm=;+= ;~rfnssf] gfd, y/ 7]ufgf kb lgo'QmL ldlt s}=

! ofbj clwsf/L  sf=lh= sf=d=g=kf= j8f g+= $ ;'s]wf/f cWoIf  @)&&÷)(÷@(

@ OlGb/f kl08t -l3ld/]_  lrtjg lhNnf e/tk'/ d=g=kf= j8f g+= @) ;+rfns  @)*)÷)(÷@(

# ;'dg k|;fb clwsf/L  emfkf lhNnf eb|k'/ g=kf= j8f g+= !%, ;u/dfyf 6f]n ;+rfns  @)&*÷!!÷)^

$ /fd x/L zdf{ sn}of–% jf/f xfn sf=lh= sf=d=g=kf= j8f g+= & 
rfjlxn

;+rfns  @)&&÷)(÷@(

% ;lt; uf}td  nlntk'/ d=g=kf= j8f g %, dxfnIdL:yfg, nlntk'/ ;+rfns  @)*)÷!!÷)$

^ lbks yfkf  e/tk'/ d=g=kf= j8f g+= %, lrtjg ;+rfns  @)*)÷)(÷@(

& k'ik /fh e08f/L  sf=lh= ;fljs jfn'jf uf=lj=;= j8f g+= ^ sf] xfn 
kl/jlt{t uf]s0f]{Zj/ g=kf=j8f g+=# jfn'jf

;+rfns  @)*!÷)%÷)#

;dLIff cjlwdf ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 /flhgfdf ug'{ePsf ;~rfnsx? lgDgfg';f/ /xg' ePsf] 5 .

qm=;+= ;~rfnssf] gfd, y/ kb lgo'QmL ldlt /flhgfdf ldlt s}lkmot

! >L lbndfg l;+x rGb ;~rfns  @)&&÷)(÷@(  @)*)÷)(÷@( /flhgfdf

@ >L lrGtfd0fL uf}td ;~rfns  @)&^÷)(÷@(  @)*)÷)(÷!( /flhgfdf

# >L c?0f Gof}kfg] ;~rfns  @)&&÷)$÷)@  @)*!÷)$÷)@ kbfjwL ;dfKt

-r_ 	 sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx?
	 jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v 5 .

-5_ 	 n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof
	 n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot gePsf] . n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg /x]sf] 5 .

-h_ 	 nfef+z af+8kmf+8 ug{ l;kmfl/z ul/Psf] /sd
	 cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*! sf] d'gfkmfaf6 r'Qmf k"+hLsf] ^.#% k|ltzt gub nfef+z ljt/0f ug{ l;kmfl/z ul/Psf] 5 .
-em_ 	 z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;+Vof / To:tf] z]o/sf] c+lst d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt x'g'eGbf cufj} ;f] afkt 

sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ laqmL u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd tyf hkmt 
ePsf] z]o/ afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f

	 ;+:yfn] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*! df s'g} z]o/ hkmt u/]sf] 5}g .

sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)(-$_ cg';f/sf] ljj/0f

CHAPTER-9
Additional Disclosures
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-`_ 	 laut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/sf] k|ult / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] cGtdf /x]sf] l:yltsf] k'g/
fjnf]sg

	 ljut cfly{s jif{df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|ultsf] ;DaGwdf d"n k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v e};s]sf] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;xfos 
sDkgL 5}g .

-6_	 sDkgL / To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*! df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]af/x? / ;f] cjlwdf sDkgLsf] 
sf/f]jf/df cfPsf] s'g} dxTjk"0f{ kl/jt{g

	 ;+:yfsf] k|d'v sf/f]jf/x? jf sf]/f]jf/df cfPsf] dxTjk"0f{ kl/jt{g ;DaGwdf d"n k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v e};s]sf] 5 . o; 
;+:yfsf] s'g} ;xfos sDkgL 5}g .

-7_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?n] ;+:yfnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/L
	 ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?n] ;+:yfnfO{ s'g} Joxf]/f hfgsf/L gu/fPsf] hfgsf/L u/fpFb5f} .

-8_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTj ljj/0f / ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ 
sf/f]jf/df lghx? ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx?af6 ljQLo ;+:yfn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/L

;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx? z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f -lsQfdf_

ofbj clwsf/L (#!

OlGb/f kl08t -l3ld/]_ #,#!@

;'dg k|;fb clwsf/L (,$&,&&*

/fd x/L zdf{ *@^

;lt; uf}td !))

lbks yfkf *@)

k'ik /fh e08f/L gePsf]

o; ;+:yfsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df ;+nUg g/x]sf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpFb5f} .

-9_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;+u ;DjlGwt ;Demf}tfx?df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{sf] af/]df 
pknAw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/f

	 o; ;+:yf s'g} ;Demf}tfx?df ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{ ePsf] hfgsf/L ;+:yfnfO{ pknAw 
ePsf] 5}g .

-0f_ 	 sDkgLn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm} vl/b ug{'sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof / c+lst 
d"No tyf To;/L z]o/ v/Lb afkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sd

	 xfn;Dd o; ;+:yfn] cfkmgf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b u/]sf] 5}g .

-t_ 	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP ;f]sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f
	 ;+:yfn] g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zgsf] clwgdf /xL cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f u/fO{ /x]sf] 5 / cfjZostf cg';f/ gLlt lgodx? 

agfO{ sfo{ ub}{ cfO{/x]sf] 5. o;sf cltl/Qm cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;lxt cGo s'/fx?sf] pRr :t/af6 /]vb]v ug{ u}/ 
sfo{sf/L ;~rfnssf] ;+of]hsTjdf Ps n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt /x]sf] 5 .

-y_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s"n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f
	 cf= j= @)*)÷)*! df sd{rf/L vr{ -af]g; ;d]t_ ? @@,^@,##,$$).– -afO; s/f]8 a};ÝL nfv t]lQ; xhf/ rf/ ;o 

rfnL; ?k}+of dfq_ / sfof{no ;~rfng vr{ ?= !@,!&,#(,*@&.– - afx| s/f]8 ;q nfv pgGrfln; xhf/ b'O{ ;o ;QfO; 
?k}+of dfq_ u/L s"n Joj:yfkg vr{ ?= #$,&(,&#,@^&.– -rf}tL; s/f]8 pgf;L nfv lqxQ/ xhf/ b'O{ ;o ;t;ÝL ?k}+of 
dfq_ /x]sf] 5 .
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-b_ 	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL, lghx?n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf, ;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf] sfd 
sf/jfxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f

s_    n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 M
	 !_    >L /fd x/L zdf{							      ;+of]hs
	 @_    >L OlGb/f kl08t -l3ld/]_					     ;b:o
	 #_    k|d'v cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ljefu				    ;b:o ;lrj

v_ 	 ;ldltsf ;b:ox?nfO{ a}7s eQf afx]s s'g} kl/>lds / ;'ljwf k|bfg ul/Psf] 5}g . ;b:o ;lrj afx]s ;+of]hs / ;b:onfO{ 
k|lt a}7s eQf ?= !),)))÷– k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .

u_ 	 cf=j= @)*).)*! df !! k6s n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7s a;]sf] / ;f] a}7sn] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0fsf] k|ltj]bgsf] ;dLIff 
u/L ;'wf/sf nflu Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbPsf]df Joj:yfkgn] lgb]{zg cg'?k sfo{ u/]sf] 5 .

-w_ 	 ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg 
/x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg af+ls eP ;f] s'/f

	 o; ;+:yfsf ;~rfnsx?, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL tyf lghsf glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, 
sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] ;+:yfnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFls /x]sf] 5}g .

-g_ 	 ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd
-s_ 	o; ;+:yfsf] ;~rfnssf] a}7s eQf jflif{s ? @@,(^,))).))
-v_ 	k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] o; cf=j= df /x]sf] hDdf kfl/>ldssf] ljj/0f o; k|sf/ /x]sf] 5 M
	

gfd /sd ? s}lkmot

>L gf/fo0f ;'j]bL #&,#%,##(.*@ @)*) kf}if !^ ;Dd

>L t]h /fh ltldlN;gf ##,#*,($(.!( @)*) kf}if !& b]lv

hDdf &),&$,@*(.)!

-u_ 	 Joj:yfkg ;d"xsf] vr{ ? @,%),^@,(^).!)

l6Kk0fL
s_ 	 cWoIf tyf ;~rfnsnfO{ a}7s eQf afx]s cGo ;'ljwf pknAw u/fPsf] 5}g .
v_ 	 k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ tna tyf eQf / ! dlxgfsf] tna a/fa/ cf}iflw pkrf/ vr{sf] cltl/Qm af]g; P]g adf]lhd 

sd{rf/LnfO{ lbg] af]g; / ;+:yfsf] :jLs[t sd{rf/L ljlgodfjnL adf]lhd ;l~rt labfsf] ;'ljwf k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 

-k_ z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfefz+sf] /sd

qm=;+ cfly{s jif{ afFsL nfe+fz /sd ? qm=;+ cfly{s jif{ afFsL nfe+fz /sd ?

! @)&$÷)&%         %!%,)()=$* $ @)&&÷)&*       !,&^$,$$!=*$ 

@ @)&%÷)&^       @,$$%,^%@=@( % @)&(÷)*)        %,#&(,$#!=&! 

# @)&^÷)&&         !,^%#,#(*=#! hDdf !!,&%*,)!$=^#

-km_ 	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] s'/fsf] ljj/0f
	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL ul/Psf] 5}g .

-a_ 	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgLaLr ePsf] sf/f]jf/sf] ljj/0f
	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr sf/f]jf/ ePsf] 5}g .

-e_ 	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# tyf k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg'kg]{ cGo s'g} s'/f
	 k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd v'nfpg'kg]{ ;a} s'/f v'nfOsf] 5 .

-d_ 	 cGo cfjZos s'/fx?
	 s]xL 5}g . 
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!= 	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgM ;DalGwt zLif{s cGt{ut /flvPsf] . 

@= 	 n]vfkl/Ifssf] k|ltj]bg M ;DalGwt zLif{s cGt{ut /flvPsf] . 

#= 	 n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf] ljj/0f M ;DalGwt zLif{s cGt{ut /flvPsf] .

$=	 sfg'gL sf/jfxL ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

-s_	 q}dfl;s cjlwdf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] jf ;+:yfsf lj?4 s'g} d'4f bfo/ ePsf] eP .
	 –  o; ;+:yfsf] shf{;Fu ;DaGwLt afx]s cGo d'4f btf{ gePsf] 
-v_	 ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnsn] jf ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnssf] lj?4df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f jf kmf}hbf/L 

ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'4f bfo/ u/]sf] j ePsf] eP, 
	 –  d'4f btf{ gePsf]
-u_	 s'g} ;+:yfks jf ;~rfns lj?4 cfly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'4f bfo/ u/]sf] jf ePsf] eP . 
	 –  o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hfgsf/Ldf g/x]sf]

%= 	 ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/ tyf k|ultsf] ljZn]if0f M
-s_	 lwtf] ahf/df ePsf] ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/ ;DaGwdf Joj:;yfkgsf] wf/0f M 
	 – g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh tyf lwtf]kq af]8{sf] ;'kl/j]If0f Joj:yfsf] clwgdf /lx sf/f]af/ ul/ /x]sf]
-v_	 cf=j= @)*)÷*! df ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] clwst, Go"gtd / clGtd d"Nosf ;fy} s"n sf/f]af/, z]o/ ;+Vof / 

sf/f]af/ lbgM

q}df; clwstd d"No Go"gtd  clGtd d"No s"n sf/f]af/ lbg s"n sf/f]af/ ;+Vof s"n sf/f]af/ z]o/ ;+Vof

k|yd %!@.() %)!.)) %)#.)) ^! !),!&^ !),%@,)#$

bf];|f] %$@.^) %#@.)) %#$.)) $( &,$&( !!,*(,&$^

t];|f] %@&.)) %)%.)) %)%.)) %* (,(&# !$,#%,%)#

rf}yf] ^$).%) $().)) ^)@.() ^! @!,($# #%,#@,*^^

^= 	 ;d:of tyf r'gf}ltM
	 -s_ cfGtl/s ;d:of tyf r'gf}ltM
	 –	 cfosf] ljljlws/0f 

	 -v_ jfXo ;d:of tyf r'gf}ltM
	 –	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lar ltj| k|lt:k|wf
	 –	 cfly{s ;+s'rgn] ubf{ shf{ ePsf] Go'g dfu .

	 -u_ /0flgltM
	 –	 lgIf]k tyf shf{sf] ljljlws/0f .
	 –	 ;do ;fk]If k|ljlwdf cfwfl/t gofF ;]jfx?sf] ljsf; . 
	 –	 k"FhLsf]if j[l4

d~h'>L kmfO{gfG; lnld6]8sf]
lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL, @)&# sf] lgod @^-@_ ;Fu ;DalGwt 

cg'';"rL !% adf]lhdsf] jflif{s ljj/0f
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&= 	 ;+:yfut ;'zf;gM
– 	 a}Fs tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g, @)&#, g]kfn /fi6« a}Fs 4f/f hf/L ul/Psf lgb]{zg tyf kl/kqx?sf] k"0f{?kdf kfngf 

ul/Psf] 5 . ;+:yfut ;'zf;gnfO{ ;b}j pRr k|fyldstfdf /fVb} cfPsf] / ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{zg tyf kl/kqx?sf] 
k"0f{ ?kn] kfngf ul/Psf] 5 . 

– 	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL Jojl:yt ug{ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt (Audit Committee) u7g ul/Psf] 5 h;n] jfXo / cfGtl/s 
lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ cem ;'b[9 agfpg Joj:yfkgnfO{ ;Nnfx / ;'emfjx? lbb} cfO{/x]sf] 5 . 

– 	 g]kfn /fi6« a}Fssf] lgb]{zg, :ynut lg/LIf0f k|ltj]bg, cfGtl/s tyf afXo n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf cf}NofOPsf ;'emfa tyf 
lgb]{zgx?nfO{ o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;b}j kfngf ub} cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] k"0f{ kfngf ub}{ o;nfO{ cem ;'b[9 agfpb} 
n}hfg o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt / Joj:yfkg k"0f{ k|ltj4 /x]sf] 5 . 

*= 	 lgod @^ sf] pklgod % ;+u ;DaGwLt ljz]if 36gf jf kl/l:ylt ;DaGwL ljj/0f 
	 gePsf] .
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-s_	 afF8kmfF8 ePsf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof M 
	 cf=j= @)*)÷)*! ;Dddf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|lt z]o/ lsQf d"No ?= !)).– sf] b/sf] hDdf ?= !,#%,!%,%@,*$*.*) -Ps 

cj{ k}tL; s/f]8 kGw| nfv afpGg xhf/ cf7 ;o c7rfln; ?lkofF c:;L k};f_ a/fj/sf] !,#%,!%,%@*.$**) lsQf 
z]o/ z]o/wlgx?df afF8kmfF8 ePsf], 

-v_	 afF8kmfF8 ePsf] z]o/ dWo] r'Qmf ePsf] / gePsf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof M 
	 cf= j= @)*)÷)*! ;Dddf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|lt z]o/ lsQf d"No ?= !)).– sf] b/sf] hDdf ?= !,#%,!%,%@,*$*.*) 

-Ps cj{ k}tL; s/f]8 kGw| nfv afpGg xhf/ cf7 ;o c7rfln; ?lkofF c:;L k};f_ a/fj/sf] !,#%,!%,%@*.$**) 
lsQf z]o/ z]o/wlgx?df afF8kmfF8 eO{ pQm ;a} z]o/ jfktsf] /sd r'Qmf e};s]sf]n] r'Qmf x'g afFsL gePsf] . 

-u_	 cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf cWoIf tyf ;~rfnsx?, k|d['v sfo{sf/L clws[t, n]vfk/LIfs 
/ lghx?nfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd M

	

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf cWoIf tyf ;~rfnsx?, k|d['v 
sfo{sf/L clws[t, n]vfk/LIfsx?sf] ljj/0f

lghx?nfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] hDdf kfl/>lds, 
eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd ?=

•   ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf cWoIf tyf ;~rfnsx? @@,(^,))).)) 

•   k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t –

gfd /sd ?

>L gf/fo0f ;'j]bL -@)*) kf}if !^ ;Dd_ #&,#%,##(.*@

>L t]h /fh ltldlN;gf -@)*) kf}if !& b]lv_ ##,#*,($(.!(

hDdf &),&$,@*(.)!

•   afXo n]vfk/LIf0f z"Ns ->L kL=cf/=P;\= Pr\= P08 P;f]l;P6\;\, 
rf6{8{ Psfp06]G6\;\_

%,^%,))).))   

   

-3_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k"FhL ?= !,#%,!%,%@,*$*.*) -Ps cj{ k}+tL; s/f]8 kGw| nfv afpGg xhf/ cf7 ;o c7rfln; 
?lkofF c:;L k};f_ -;+:yfks tyf ;j{;fwf/0f_ sf] kfFr k|ltzt jf ;f]eGbf a9L z]o/ vl/b u/L lng] JolQm jf ;+ul7t 
;+:yfsf] gfd / lghx?sf] gfddf /x]sf] z]o/ jf l8a]~r/sf] ljj/0f M

qm=;+= gfd z]o/ lsQf k|ltzt

!= ;'dg k||;fb clwsf/L (,$&,&&* &=)!%

@= kf/; clwsf/L &,##,^!) %=$#%

-ª_	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] z]o/ laqmLaf6 k|fKt ePsf] hDdf /sd / ;DalGwt cfly{s jif{df ljQLo ;+:yfn] vl/b u/]sf] tyf hf/L 
u/]sf] gofF z]o/ tyf l8a]Gr/sf] ljj/0f M

	 cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ljQLo ;+:yfn] s'g} z]o/ laqmL gu/]sf] / ;f] cfly{s jif{df af]gz z]o/ ljt/0f u/L hf/L u/]sf] 5}g . 
ljQLo ;+:yfn] cf=j= @)&&÷)&* df %,)),)))=)) lsQf l8j]Gr/ lgisflzt u/] jfx]s ;f] kZrft\ cGo yk s'g} klg 
l8j]Gr/ lgisflzt u/]sf] 5}g .

-r_	 ;~rfns jf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf glhssf gft]bf/x?n] sDkgLnfO{ a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] /sdM 
	 gePsf] .

d~h'>L kmfO{gfG; lnld6]8sf]
sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf &* jdf]lhd sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{nodf k]z ug'{ kg]{ k|ltj]bg

-cf=j= @)*)÷)*!_
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-5_	 z]o/ ljlqm jf cGo s'g} sfd s'/f u/] jfkt lbPsf] jf lbg' kg]{ /sd M 
	 gePsf] .

-h_	 a}+Í tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?af6 lnPsf] C0f tyf a'emfpg afFsL ;fFjf tyf Jofh /sdM 
	 g/x]sf] .

-em_	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] e'QmfgL lng' kg]{ jf ljQLo ;+:yfn] cGo JolQmnfO{ e'QmfgL ug'{ kg]{ egL bfaL ul/Psf] /sd jf o; ljifodf 
d'2f dfldnf rln/x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f M
•	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] /sd lbnfO{ e/fO{ kfpg C0fc;"nL Gofolws/0fdf ph'/L lgj]bg btf{ ul/ el/ kfpg] 7x/L km};nf eO{ 

pQm km};nfx? sfof{Gjog x'g afFsL /x]sf] elg cf=a= @)&(÷)*) sf] k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ePsf]df pQm km};nfx? 
sfof{Gjog e} g;s]sf] / ;f] afx]s o; cf=a= @)*)÷)*! df ljQLo ;+:yfn] e'QmfgL lng' kg]{ cGo /sd afFsL 
gePsf], ljQLo ;+:yfn] cGo JolQmnfO{ e'QmfgL ug'{ kg]{ egL bfaL ul/Psf] /sd jf o; ljifodf d'2f dfldnf g/x]sf] .  

-~f_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t tyf cGo :t/sf sd{rf/L jf sfdbf/sf] ;+Vof M
	 cf=a= @)*)÷)*! df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t sd{rf/L ;+Vof !! hgf / cGo :t/sf sd{rf/L ;+Vof @#$ 

hgf ul/ hDdf sd{rf/L ;+Vof @$% hgf /x]sf] .

-6_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t tyf cGo :t/df sfo{/t ljb]zLx?sf] ;+Vof tyf lghx?nfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] 
kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf M

	 gePsf] .

-7_	 sDkgL / s'g} ljb]zL lgsfo jf JolQmx?aLr nufgL, Joj:yfkg jf k|fljlws ;]jf jf cGo ljifodf Ps jif{eGbf a9L 
cjlwsf] nflu s'g} ;Demf}tf ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f / ;DalGwt cfly{s jif{df To:tf] ;Demf}tf cg';f/ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] 
nfef+z, sld;g, z'Ns b:t'/ / /f]oN6L cflbsf] ljj/0f M

	 gePsf] .

-8_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Ps cfly{s jif{sf] Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f M       
	 cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df sd{rf/L vr{ -jflif{s af]g; ;d]t_ @@,^@,##,$$).– -afO; s/f]8 af;f7L nfv t]lQ; xhf/ 

rf/ ;o rfnL; ?k}+of dfq_ / sfof{no ;~rfng vr{ ?= !@,!&,#(,@@&.– - afx| s/f]8 ;q nfv pgGrfln; xhf/ b'O{ 
;o ;QfO; ?k}+of dfq_ u/L s"n Joj:yfkg vr{ ?= #$,&(,&#,@^*.– - rf}tL; s/f]8 pgf;L nfv lqxQ/ xhf/ b'O{ ;o 
c7;ÝL ?k}+of dfq_ /x]sf] 5 . 

-9_	 z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd M 

cf=j= afFsL nfef+z /sd ¿

@)&$.)&%         5,15,090.48 

@)&%.)&^       24,45,652.29 

@)&^.)&&         16,53,398.31 

@)&&.)&*       17,64,441.84 

@)&(.)*)        53,79,431.71 

-0f_	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] sDkgL P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg"gsf] kfngf k"0f{ ?kdf u/]sf] 5 eGg] s'/fsf] pb\3f]if0f M
	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] b]xfo adf]lhdsf ;Dk"0f{ ljQLo ljj/0fx? ;d]t g]kfn /fi6« a}ssf] lgb{]zg cg';f/sf] 9Ffrf tyf sDkgL 

P]g adflhd tof/ u/L ;f]sf] k"0f{ ?kdf kl/kfngf u/]sf] Joxf]/f pb\3f]if0f ub{5 .

-!_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|aGwkq jf lgodfjnLdf ;+zf]wg ul/Psf] eP ;+zf]wg u/]sf] ldlt, ;+zf]lwt k|aGwkq jf lgodfjnL 
sfof{nodf clen]v u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] nufot P]gsf Joj:yfx? kfngf ul/Psf] jf gul/Psf] s'/f M 

	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|aGwkq jf lgodfjnLdf ;+zf]wg ul/bf k|rlnt P]g lgod cg';f/ g} clen]v ug]{ ul/Psf] .

-@_ 	 gofF z]o/ hf/L ul/Psf] eP P]gsf] Dofbleq z]o/ afF8kmfF8sf] ljj/0f Dofbleq k]z u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f / Dofb gf3L 
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k]z ePsf] eP hl/jfgf lt/]sf] /sd M
	 gofF z]o/ hf/L ul/+bf P]gsf] Dofb leq z]o/ afF8kmfF8 ul/ P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ul/ clen]v ;d]t ug]{ u/fpg] ul/Psf] .

-#_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] l8Af]~r/ p7fpFbf P]gdf ul/Psf] Joj:yf u/] gu/]sf] s'/f M
	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] l8a]~r/ p7fpFbf P]gdf ul/Psf] Joj:yf cg'?k g} ul/Psf] .

-$_ 	 z]o/wgL jf l8j]~r/jfnfsf] btf{ lstfasf] lg/LIf0f aGb u/]sf] ldlt, k6s ;f] ;DaGwdf P]gsf kfngf u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] 
s'/f M

	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ul/Psf] .

-%_	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] z]o/hkmt u/]sf] eP P]gsf Joj:yfx? kfngf u/] jf gu/]sf] s'/f M
	 xfn ;Dd s'g} z]o/ hkmt gul/Psf] .

-^_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] v'b ;DklQ 36\g uO{ r'QmfkF"hLsf] cfwf jf ;f] eGbf sd ePsf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltn] P]g 
jdf]lhdsf] lhDd]jf/L k"/f u/] gu/]sf] s'/f M 

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k"FhL g36]sf] .

-&_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm}n] v/Lb u/]sf] eP v/Lb u/]sf] ldlt / ;f] ;DaGwdf P]gsf Joj:yfx? kfngf u/]sf] jf 
gu/]sf] s'/f M

	 xfn;Dd cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm} vl/b gul/sf] . 

-*_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] P]g adf]lhd jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef u/] gu/]sf] s'/f, jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf, u0fk"/s ;+Vof, :yfg 
nufotsf ljifox?df P]gsf] Joj:yfx? kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f, jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{o ljj/0f /Ltk"j{s 
clen]v u/] gu/]sf] s'/f M 

	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ug]{ ul/Psf] .

-(_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef u/]sf] eP ;f] u/]sf] ldlt / ;f] ;DaGwdf P]gsf] Joj:yfx? kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] 
s'/f M

	 ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef gul/Psf] . 

-!)_	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] b]xfo jdf]lhdsf ljj/0f jf ;"rgf Dofb leq sfof{nodf k]z u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/fM 
	 -c_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|aGwkq / lgodfjnLdf ePsf] ;+zf]wg .
		  P]g, lgod cg';f/ g} ug]{ ul/Psf] .
	 -cf_	 z]o/ afF8kmfF8sf] ljj/0f .
		  hfgsf/L tyf clen]v u/fO{Psf] .
	 -O_	 lwtf]kq Joj;foL / sDkgL aLr ePsf] ;Demf}tf .
		  s'g} ;Demf}tf gePsf] .
	 -O{_	 z]o/df /x]sf] xs ;DaGwL hfgsf/L .
		  P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ul/Psf] .
	 -p_	 z]o/, l8a]~r/ / C0fsf] nut .
		  P]g lgod cg';f/ g} /flvPsf] .
	 -pm_	 cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm}n] v/Lb u/]sf]df ;f] ;DaGwL hfgsf/L .
		  xfn;Dd cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b gu/]sf] .
	 -P_	 cu|flwsf/ z]o/ lkmtf{ lnPsf] eP ;f] ;DaGwL hfgsf/L .
		  xfn;Dd cu|flwsf/ z]o/ hf/L gePsf] .
	 -P]_	 jflif{s ;fwf/0f;ef ug'{ eGbf sDtLdf PSsfO; lbg cuf8L k]z ug'{ kg]{ k|ltj]bg . 
		  P]g lgod cg';f/ g} k]z ul/Psf] .
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	 -cf]_	 jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ljj/0f / jflif{s cfly{s ljj/0fx? .
		  P]g lgod cg';f/ g} k]z ug]{ ul/Psf] .
	 -cf}_	 n]vfk/LIfssf] lgo'lQmsf] hfgsf/L .
		  P]g lgod cg';f/ g} u/fO{Psf] .
	 -c+_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{ sfof{no /x]sf] 7]ufgf kl/jt{g ul/Psf] ePdf ;f] sf] hfgsf/L .
	 xfn;Dd 7]ufgf kl/jt{g gePsf] .
-cM_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;~rfnsx?sf] lghL :jfy{ /x]sf] ljifodf u/fPsf] hfgsf/L .
	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ul/Psf] / lghL :jfy{ gePsf] .

-!!_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf kbflwsf/Lx?n] ljQLo ;+:yfdf a'emfpg' kg]{ b]xfosf lnvtx? a'emfPsf] jf ga'emfPsf] s'/fM
	 -c_	 cfˆgf] lghL :jfy{ /x]sf] ljifodf ;~rfnsx?n] u/fpg' kg]{ hfgsf/L .
				  P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ul/Psf] / lghL :jfy{ gePsf] .
	 -cf	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns jf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/n] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/df xs k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/L .
				  hfgsf/L k|fKt gePsf] .
	 -O_	 cfkm" cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL x'g k'u]sf] jf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL g/x]sf]df To:tf] z]o/wgLn] sDkgLnfO{ u/fpg' kg]{ 	

		 hfgsf/L .
				  P]g lgod cg';f/ g} u/fO{Psf] .
 	 -O{_	 cGo s;}sf] xs jf nufgL .
				  gePsf] .

-!@_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns jf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] lgo'lQm, lghx?sf] sfo{sfn, kfl/>lds, eQf 
/ ;'ljwf P]g adf]lhd /Ltk"j{s ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f .

	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ul/Psf] .

-!#_ 	 P]g jdf]lhd ljQLo ;+:yfdf :jtGq ;~rfnssf] lgo'lQm ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f . 
	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf :jtGq ;~rfnssf] lgo'lQm u/L ;f]sf] ljj/0f P]g lgod cg';f/ g} clen]v ul/Psf] .

-!$_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] j}7s slxn] a:of], ;~rfns ;ldltsf] j}7ssf] Go"gtd ;+Vof, ;f] ;DaGwL ;"rgf / 
lg0f{o ljj/0fsf nufotsf ljifox?df P]gsf Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f . 

	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ug]{ ul/Psf] .

-!%_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf] ;~rfns jf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/;Fu s'g} cy{k"0f{ sf/f]af/ u/]sf] eP To:tf] sf/f]af/ ug{ 
;fwf/0f ;efsf] :jLs[lt lnPsf] jf glnPsf] s'/f . 

	 o; k|sf/sf] sf/f]af/ gePsf] . 
-!^_ 	 s'g} ;~rfnsn] sDkgL dfkm{t\ cfkm'nfO{ JolQmut kmfObf x'g] sfd u/]sf] eP ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{o adf]lhd To:tf] kmfObf 

lnPsf] xf] jf xf]Og ;f] s'/f . 
	 s'g} JolQmut kmfO{bf glnPsf]  .

-!&_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;~rfng u/L cfPsf] Joj;fosf] ;Q/L k|ltzt eGbf a9L Joj;fo ljqmL ubf{ jf s'g} Joxf]/fn] xs 
5f]l8lb+bf, r'Qmf k"FhL / ;l~rt d'gfkmfsf] hDdf /sd eGbf a9L x'g] u/L C0f ln+bf jf Ps cfly{s jif{ df krf; xhf/ 
?k}ofF jf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ljut tLg cfly{s jif{sf] ;/b/ v'b d'gfkmfsf] Ps k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sddWo] h'g sd x'G5 ;f] 
/sd eGbf a9Lsf] rGbf jf cg'bfg lbPsf] eP ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ljz]if k|:tfj kfl/t u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f ;f] ;DaGwL 
Joxf]/f . 

	 ;f] ;DaGwdf s'g} sfo{ gePsf] .

-!*_ 	 P]g adf]lhd ljQLo ;+:yfn] /fVg'kg]{ b]xfo adf]lhdsf btf{ lstfax? v8f u/L ljQLo ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{ sfof{nodf /fv]sf] 
jf g/fv]sf] s'/f v'nfpg]M 

	 -c_	 z]o/wgLsf] btf{ lstfa M
		  z]o/ /lhi6«f/n] cBfjlws ul/ /flv/x]sf] .
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-cf_	 l8j]~r/jfnfsf] btf{ lstfa M
	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} /x]sf] . 
-O_	 ;~rfns tyf sDkgL ;lrjsf] btf{ lstfa M
	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} /x]sf] . 
-O{_	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] csf]{ sDkgLnfO{ lbPsf] ;fk6L, csf]{ ljQLo ;+:yfn] lnPsf] C0f afkt lbPsf] hdfgt jf ljQLo 

;+:yfsf] lwtf]kqdf u/]sf] nufgLsf] ljj/0f . 
•	 cf= j= @)*)÷)*! df csf]{ sDkgL tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ lbPsf] shf{ /sdsf] ljj/0f M

sDkgL tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] gfd k|jfx ul/Psf] shf{ /sd ¿

cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 %%,#&$,**!.&^

cleofg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 *,)),)),))).))

wf}nflu/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 !%,)),)),))).))

u|fdL0f ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 @$*,#!!,#)*.))

ls;fg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 @$@,^%%,(%*.$^

ld/ld/] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 @),)),)),))).))

Gff8]k n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= ^%,(%^,(&#.*%

g]kfn ;]jf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 !!,!$%,(!%.#)

g]?8] ld/ld/] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 !),)),)),))).))

;a}sf] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 $$,!(&,#*&.^&

;"of]{bo jf]dL n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 !),)),)),))).))

ljg g]kfn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 !,)),)),))).))

hDdf !,#),&^,$@,$@%.)$

	 gf]6 M pNn]lvt shf{x? g]kfn /fi6« a}Ísf] lgb]{lzsf jdf]lhd ljkGg ju{ shf{ cGtu{t k|jfx ePsf]n] ;f]sf nflu ;DalGwt 
;+:yfx?sf] ;+:yfut hdfgL ;d]t lnO{Psf] . 

•	 cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df lwtf]kqdf u/]sf] nufgLsf] ljj/0f M ;+:yfsf] cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] cGtdf lwtf]kqdf /x]sf] 
nufgL o; k|sf/ 5 M 

gfd nufgL ? gfd nufgL ?

;flgdf u|f]y km08 !),(&,&## PgPdaL %) 5,54,922

PgcfO{aLPn u|f]y km08 !),)),))) PgcfO{;L Pl;of ˆn]lSh Sofk km08 4,85,749

;g/fO{h kmf]s:8 O{lSj6L km08 @),$!,(@^ PgcfO{;L Pl;of Aofn]G;\8 km08 19,22,876

k|e' :df6{ km08 *(,#@,&@! nIdL pGgtL sf]if 17,56,469

PgcfO{;L Pl;of ;]n]S6 km08 #) @@,(^,^)) PgcfO{;L Pl;of u|f]y km08 13,18,416

cf/aLaL Do"r'cn km08 ! @@,$@,^*$ Unf]an cfO{Pd\O{ Aofn]G;\8 km08 1,28,888

l;l6hg\; Do"r'cn km08 ! @,@%,$*,%)! glan Aofn]G;\8 km08 @ 12,08,678

s'df/L O{lSj6L km08 !#,(%,&*# s'df/L wgj[l4 of]hgf 8,63,575

PgPdaL ;'ne Oge]i6d]06 km08 @ @*,(&,&@* s'df/L ;'gf}nf] nufgL of]hgf 25,00,000

;g/fO{h An"lrk km08 !,(%,#*% l;4fy{ OGe]i6d]06 u|f]y l:sd # 30,00,000

;g/fO{h km:6{ Do"r'cn km08 #,$&,)(,#&$ l;l6hg\; ;'k/ #) Do"r'cn km08 2,00,00,000
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k|e' ;]n]S6 km08 !,)&,$%,(!) cf/aLaL Do"r'cn km08 @ 10,000,000

lxdfnog *)–@) !,)),)),))) ;flgdf O{lSj6L km08 !&,)*,%$#

s'df/L ;an of]hgf &%,)),))) l;4fy{ O{lSj6L km08 %(,!%,*((

nIdL O{lSj6L km08 #!,$^,$%@ ;flgdf nfh{ Sofk km08 #*,(#,(*@

nIdL EofNo" km08 %),)),))) &=% lgk|mf pmhf{ C0fkq @)*%.*^ !,*!,(^*

PgcfO{aLPn :6]jn km08 %),)),))) Kff]6{kmf]lnof] Joj:yfkg sDkgL (PMS) dfkm{t 
nufgL 

!,)),)),)))

PgcfO{;L Pl;of u|f]y km08 @ !,)),)),)))

hDdf !(,^!,(),&^#
   

-!(_ 	 P]g adf]lhd ljQLo ;+:yfn] jflif{s cfly{s ljj/0fx? n]vfk/LIf0f u/fPsf] jf gu/fPsf] s'/f . 
	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} u/fO{Psf] .

-@)_	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] P]g jdf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg tof/ u/]÷gu/]sf] s'/f . 
	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} tof/ u/]sf] .

-@!_	 P]g ljk/Lt ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf ;~rfns, kbflwsf/L, cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghx?sf] gft]bf/x?nfO{ C0f k|bfg 
u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f .

	 gu/]sf] .

-@@_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] l8isfpG6df z]o/ hf/L u/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf P]gsf Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f .
 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] l8isfpG6df z]o/ hf/L gu/]sf] .

-@#_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] af]g; z]o/ hf/L u/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf P]g adf]lhdsf Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f . 
	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ul/Psf] .

-@$_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] lk|ldod d"Nodf z]o/ hfg/L u/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf P]g adf]lhdsf Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] 
s'/f . 

	 lk|ldodf z]o/ hf/L gul/Psf] .

-@%_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf] z]o/ v/Lb ug{ cfˆgf z]o/wgL jf cGo JolQmnfO{ s'g} C0f jf cfly{s ;xof]u k|bfg u/]sf] jf 
gu/]sf] s'/f . 

	 gu/]sf] .

-@^_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] :jfy{;Fu afFlemg ;Sg] cfˆgf lghL :jfy{x? eP ;f] ;DaGwdf sDkgLnfO{ tf]lsPsf] Dofbleq hfgsf/L 
u/fPsf] jf gu/fPsf] s'/f . 

	 xfn ;Dd To:tf] cj:yf gcfPsf] .

-@&_ 	 ;~rfnsn] cfˆgf] sDkgL jf ;f] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;xfos jf k|d'v ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cGo ;xfos ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ jf 
l8j]~r/df xs k|fKt u/]sf] eP Dofbleq sDkgLnfO{ hfsf/L u/fPsf] jf gu/fPsf] s'/f . 

	 xfn ;Dd To:tf] cj:yf gcfPsf] .

-@*_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] nfef+z jf cGtl/d nfef+z afF8\bf P]gsf] kfngf u/]] jf gu/]sf] s'/f . 
	 P]g lgod cg';f/ g} ug]{ ul/Psf] .

-@(_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;fwf/0f;efdf z]o/wgLnfO{ nfef+z afx]s ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf]ifdf Jooef/ kg]{ u/L gub jf lhG;Lsf] 
?kdf s'g} /sd e'QmfgL u/] jf gu/]sf] s'/f . 

	 s'g} /sdf e'QmfgL gu/]sf] .

-#)_ 	 sfof{noaf6 sDkgLnfO{ s'g} lgb]{zg lbPsf] eP ;f] lgb]{zgsf] kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f . 
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	 sfof{noaf6 xfn;Dd s'g} lgb{]zg k|fKt gePsf] .

-#!_ 	 ;"rLs[t sDkgL eP jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgfsf] ;fydf ;+lIfKt cfly{s ljj/0f z]o/wgLnfO{ k7fPsf] jf gk7fPsf] 
s'/f . 

	 P]g lgodfg';f/ k7fpg] ul/Psf] .

-#@_ 	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g ug'{kg]{ ;"rLs[t sDkgL eP P]g adf]lhd To:tf] ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf]÷gul/Psf] s'/f .
	 P]g lgodfg';f/ g} ug]{ ul/Psf] .

-##_ 	 P]gsf] pNnª\3g u/]sf] cleof]udf sDkgL lj?4 s'g} sf/afxL rln/x]sf] jf To:tf] s;"/ 7x/ eO{ ljQLo ;+:yfn] s'g} b08 
;hfoF Joxf]g'{ k/]sf] eP ;f] sf] Joxf]/f . 

	 gePsf] .

-#$_	 P]gsf] bkmf *! cg';f/ ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Ln] sfof{nonfO{ lt/]sf] hl/jfgfsf] ljj/0f .
	 gePsf] .

-#%_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;'zf;g tyf kf/blz{tfsf] b[li6sf]0faf6 sDkgL ;lrjn] v'nfpg cfjZos 7fg]sf cGo cfjZos s'/fx? .
	 s]xL gePsf] .

-t_	 cGo cfjZos s'/f M
	 s]xL gePsf] .

cWoIf÷;~rfns
d~h'>L kmfO{gfG; lnld6]8

n]vfk/LIfs
;L=P= ;'jf; kf}8]n
kL=cf/=P;\= Pr\= P08\ P;f]l;P6\; 
rf6{8{ Psfp06]G6\;\
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CHAPTER-10
Auditor's Report and Audited Financial Statements
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Manjushree Finance Limited
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As on 31st Ashadh, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Achyut Sapkota   
Chief Finance Officer 

Suman Prasad Adhikari
Director 

Pushpa Raj Bhandari 
Director 

Date: 2081/08/23 
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Dipak Thapa
Director 

Indira Pandit (Ghimire) 
Director  

Ram Hari Sharma  
Director  

Satish Gautam
Director  

Tej Raj Timilsina      
Chief Executive Officer  

Yadav Adhikari
Chairperson

As per Our Report of Even Date

Subash Poudel, FCA
Partner 

P.R.S.H. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants

NPR
AAsssseettss NNootteess 3311sstt  AAsshhaaddhh  22008811 3311sstt  AAsshhaaddhh  22008800

Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1                    365,926,265               1,007,858,504 
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2                    838,736,447                  655,465,614 
Placement With Bank And Financial 
Institutions

4.3                                 -                                 -   

Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4                                 -                                 -   
Other Trading Assets 4.5                                 -                                 -   
Loan and Advances to B/FIs 4.6                 1,327,368,635                  959,036,391 
Loans and Advances to Customers  4.7                13,999,297,975              11,291,008,274 
Investment in Securities 4.8                 4,132,619,091               2,597,152,379 
Current Tax Assets 4.9                     32,427,270                    15,510,315 
Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10                                 -                                 -   
Investment in Associates 4.11                                 -                                 -   
Investment Property 4.12                     63,520,366                    25,905,880 
Property and Equipment 4.13                    225,421,700                  192,860,086 
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14 3,040,945                      1,635,977                    
Deferred Tax Assets 4.15 18,840,859                    17,020,033                   
Other Assets 4.16 226,646,007                   99,131,097                   
TToottaall  AAsssseettss                           2211,,223333,,884455,,556600                        1166,,886622,,558844,,555500  
LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 3311sstt  AAsshhaaddhh  22008811 3311sstt  AAsshhaaddhh  22008800
Due to Bank And Financial Institutions 4.17                 1,204,819,219               1,124,170,620 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18                    603,662,927                  195,678,864 
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.19 -                               -                             
Deposit from Customers 4.20                16,413,518,399              12,741,295,612 
Borrowings 4.21 -                               -                             
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 -                               -                             
Provisions 4.22 -                               -                             
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.15 -                               -                             
Other Liabilities                                                                                                                                                           4.23 295,671,113                   237,472,974                 
Debt Securities Issued 4.24 500,000,000                   500,000,000                 
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 -                               -                             
TToottaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess                           1199,,001177,,667711,,665599                        1144,,779988,,661188,,007711  
EEqquuiittyy   3311sstt  AAsshhaaddhh  22008811    3311sstt  AAsshhaaddhh  22008800  
Share Capital                                                                                                                                                                  4.26                 1,351,552,849               1,351,552,849 
Share Premium -                               -                             
Retained Earning                    174,925,005                    79,438,885 
Reserves 4.27                    689,696,048                  632,974,746 
TToottaall  EEqquuiittyy  AAttttrriibbuuttaabbllee  ttoo  EEqquuiittyy  
HHoollddeerrss

                            22,,221166,,117733,,990011                            22,,006633,,996666,,448800  

NNoonn--CCoonnttrroolllliinngg  IInntteerreessttss                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      -                                                             -   
TToottaall  EEqquuiittyy                             22,,221166,,117733,,990011                            22,,006633,,996666,,448800  
TToottaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  aanndd  EEqquuiittyy                           2211,,223333,,884455,,556600                        1166,,886622,,558844,,555500  
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.28                         800,000                        300,000 
Net Assets Value Per Share 163.97 152.71

Achyut Sapkota                 Tej Raj Timilsina                 Yadav Adhikari Subash Poudel, FCA
Chief Financial Officer         Chief Executive Officer                 Chairperson Partner

P.R.S.H. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Suman Prasad Adhikari         Indira Pandit (Ghimire)       Ram Hari Sharma        Satish Gautam
      Director                                     Director                                     Director                         Director

Pushpa Raj Bhandari                              Dipak Thapa
   Director                                                          Director

Date: 2081/08/23
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

As per Our Report of Even Date

Manjushree Finance  Limited
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31st Ashadh 2081
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Manjushree Finance Limited
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

As on 31st Ashadh, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
NPR

Particulars Notes  2080-81  2079-80 
Interest Income 4.29                  2,266,763,164                  2,111,056,147 
Interest Expense 4.30                 (1,517,280,936)                 (1,410,177,727)
Net Interest Income                    749,482,228                     700,878,420 
Fees and Commission Income 4.31                       87,593,155                       57,680,235 
Fees and Commission Expense 4.32                                    -                                      -   
Net Fee and Commission Income                       87,593,155                       57,680,235 
Net Interest Fee and Commission Income                    837,075,383                     758,558,654 
Net Trading Income 4.33                                    -                                      -   
Other Operating Income 4.34                       10,974,098                             44,842 
Total Operating Income                     848,049,481                     758,603,496 
Impairment Charge/(Reversal) for Loans and Other Losses 4.35                     151,274,932                       91,888,438 
Net Operating Income                    696,774,549                     666,715,058 
Operating Expenses
Personnel Expense 4.36                     226,233,440                     192,450,470 
Other Operating Expenses 4.37                       77,834,191                       76,200,984 
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.38                       43,905,637                       44,720,836 
Operating Profit                     348,801,281                     353,342,769 
Non Operating Income 4.39                                    -                                      -   
Non Operating Expense 4.40                       23,924,497                                    -   
Profit Before Income Tax                    324,876,785                     353,342,769 
Income Tax Expense 4.41                     100,261,421                     106,343,603 
Current Tax                     101,535,512                     110,370,458 
Deferred Tax Income                       (1,274,091)                       (4,026,856)
Profit for the Period                     224,615,364                     246,999,166 
Profit Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Bank                     224,615,364                     246,999,166 
Non-Controlling Interest                                    -                                      -   
Profit for the Period                     224,615,364                     246,999,166 
Earnings per Share: 
Basic Earnings per Share                   16.62                    18.28 
Diluted Earnings per Share                   16.62                    18.28 

Achyut Sapkota                 Tej Raj Timilsina                 Yadav Adhikari Subash Poudel, FCA
Chief Financial Officer         Chief Executive Officer                 Chairperson Partner

P.R.S.H. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Suman Prasad Adhikari         Indira Pandit (Ghimire)       Ram Hari Sharma        Satish Gautam
      Director                                     Director                               Director                       Director

Pushpa Raj Bhandari                              Dipak Thapa
      Director                                                 Director

Date: 2081/08/23
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Manjushree Finance  Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Achyut Sapkota   
Chief Finance Officer 

Suman Prasad Adhikari
Director 

Pushpa Raj Bhandari 
Director 

Date: 2081/08/23 
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Dipak Thapa
Director 

Indira Pandit (Ghimire) 
Director  

Ram Hari Sharma  
Director  

Satish Gautam
Director  

Tej Raj Timilsina      
Chief Executive Officer  

Yadav Adhikari
Chairperson

As per Our Report of Even Date

Subash Poudel, FCA
Partner 

P.R.S.H. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
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Manjushree Finance Limited
STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As on 31st Ashadh, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
NPR

Particulars Notes  2080-81  2079-80 
Profit for the Period                       224,615,364                        246,999,166 
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax
A) Items that Will not Be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
• Gains/(Losses) From Investment in Equity Instruments Measured at Fair Value

                        (1,822,451)                            1,666,297 

• Gains/(Losses) on Revaluation                                       -                                          -   
• Acturial Gain/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plan                                       -                                 464,534 
• Income Tax Relating to above Items                              546,735                             (639,249)
Net Other Comprehensive Income that Will not Be Reclassified to Profit or 
Loss                         (1,275,716)                            1,491,582 

B) Items that are or May be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
• Gains/(Losses) on Cash Flow Hedge                                       -                                          -   
• Exchange Gains/(Losses) Arising from Translating Financial Assets of Foreign 
Operation                                       -                                          -   

• Income Tax Relating to above Items                                       -                                          -   
• Reclassify to Profit or Loss                                       -                                          -   
Net Other Comprehensive Income that are or May Be Reclassified to Profit 
or Loss                                       -   

C) Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associate Accounted as per 
Equity Method                                       -                                          -   

Other Comprehensive Income for the Period, Net of Income Tax                         (1,275,716)                            1,491,582 
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period                       223,339,648                        248,490,747 
Total Comprehensive Income Attributable To:
Equity Holders of the Bank                       223,339,648                        248,490,747 
Non-Controlling Interest                                       -                                          -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 223,339,648                     248,490,747                      

As per Our Report of Even Date

Subash Poudel, FCA
Partner

P.R.S.H. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Manjushree Finance  Limited
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Achyut Sapkota   
Chief Finance Officer 

Suman Prasad Adhikari
Director 

Pushpa Raj Bhandari 
Director 

Date: 2081/08/23 
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Dipak Thapa
Director 

Indira Pandit (Ghimire) 
Director  

Ram Hari Sharma  
Director  

Satish Gautam
Director  

Tej Raj Timilsina      
Chief Executive Officer  

Yadav Adhikari
Chairperson

As per Our Report of Even Date

Subash Poudel, FCA
Partner 

P.R.S.H. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
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NPR
PPaarrttiiccuullaarrss   22008800--8811    22007799--8800  

CCaasshh  FFlloowwss  ffrroomm  OOppeerraattiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess

Interest Received                      2,233,817,818                     2,032,441,528 

Fee and Other Income Received                          87,593,155                         57,680,235 

Dividend Received                            8,189,002                                     -   

Receipts from Other Operating Activities                            1,405,306                                     -   

Interest Paid                     (1,516,004,029)                   (1,413,341,123)

Commission and Fee Paid                                       -                                       -   

Cash Payments to Employee                       (226,774,179)                      (173,046,526)

Other Expense Paid                         (57,430,912)                        (91,256,057)

OOppeerraattiinngg  CCaasshh  FFlloowwss  BBeeffoorree  CChhaannggee  iinn  OOppeerraattiinngg  AAsssseettss  aanndd  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess                                           553300,,779966,,116611                                          441122,,447788,,005588  

((IInnccrreeaassee))//DDeeccrreeaassee  iinn  OOppeerraattiinngg  AAsssseettss                                   ((33,,550066,,444455,,557777))                                 ((11,,993399,,991177,,227711))

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank                       (183,270,833)                      (337,786,186)

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions                                       -                                       -   

Other Trading Assets                                       -                                       -   

Loan and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions                       (337,388,369)                      (138,944,981)

Loan and Advances to Customer                     (2,969,166,205)                   (1,456,472,487)

Other Assets                         (16,620,170)                         (6,713,617)

IInnccrreeaassee//((DDeeccrreeaassee))  iinn  OOppeerraattiinngg  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess                                       44,,116600,,885555,,444488                                          667766,,661100,,774444  

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions                          80,648,598                      (748,373,725)

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank                         407,984,063                      (905,308,742)

Deposits from Customers                      3,672,222,787                     2,330,293,210 

Borrowings                                       -                                       -   

Other Liabilities                                       -                                       -   

NNeett  CCaasshh  FFllooww  ffrroomm  OOppeerraattiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess  BBeeffoorree  TTaaxx  PPaaiidd                                       11,,118855,,220066,,003333                                      ((885500,,882288,,447700))

Income Taxes Paid                       (118,370,410)                      (137,632,237)

NNeett  CCaasshh  FFllooww  FFrroomm  OOppeerraattiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess                                       11,,006666,,883355,,662233                                      ((998888,,446600,,770077))

CCaasshh  FFlloowwss  FFrroomm  IInnvveessttiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess

Purchase of Investment Securities                     (1,537,255,438)                   (2,595,486,082)

Receipts from Sale of Investment Securities                                       -                       1,863,900,257 

Purchase of Plant and Equipment                         (36,013,506)                        (15,341,398)

Receipt from Sale of Property and Equipment                            1,205,000                             298,000 

Purchase of Intangible Assets                           (2,051,325)                            (734,500)

Receipt from Sale of Intangible Assets                                       -                                       -   

(Purchase)/Sale of Investment Properties                         (63,520,366)                                     -   

Receipt from Sale of Investment Properties                                       -                                       -   

Interest Received                                       -                                       -   

Dividend Received                                       -                                       -   

NNeett  CCaasshh  UUsseedd  iinn  IInnvveessttiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess                                   ((11,,663377,,663355,,663355))                                     ((774477,,336633,,772233))

CCaasshh  FFlloowwss  ffrroomm  FFiinnaanncciinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess

Receipt from Issue of Debt Securities                                       -                                       -   

Repayment of Debt Securities                                       -                                       -   

Receipt from Issue of Subordinated Liabilities                                       -                                       -   

Repayment of Subordinated Liabilities                                       -                                       -   

Receipt from Issue of Shares                                       -                                       -   

Dividend Paid                         (71,132,226)                                     -   

Interest Paid                                       -                                       -   

Other Receipt/ Payment                                       -                                       -   

NNeett  CCaasshh  ffrroomm  FFiinnaanncciinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess                                           ((7711,,113322,,222266))                                                                   --      

NNeett  IInnccrreeaassee//((DDeeccrreeaassee))  iinn  CCaasshh  aanndd  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss                                         ((664411,,993322,,223399))                                 ((11,,773355,,882244,,443300))

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2080                      1,007,858,504                     2,743,682,934 

Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuations on Cash and Cash Equivalents Held                                       -                                       -   

CClloossiinngg  CCaasshh  aanndd  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss                                           336655,,992266,,226655                                    11,,000077,,885588,,550044  

As per Our Report of Even Date

Subash Poudel, FCA
Partner

P.R.S.H. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Pushpa Raj Bhandari                              Dipak Thapa
     Director                                                     Director

Manjushree Finance  Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Manjushree Finance Limited
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

As on 31st Ashadh, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Achyut Sapkota   
Chief Finance Officer 

Suman Prasad Adhikari
Director 

Pushpa Raj Bhandari 
Director 

Date: 2081/08/23 
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Dipak Thapa
Director 

Indira Pandit (Ghimire) 
Director  

Ram Hari Sharma  
Director  

Satish Gautam
Director  

Tej Raj Timilsina      
Chief Executive Officer  

Yadav Adhikari
Chairperson

As per Our Report of Even Date

Subash Poudel, FCA
Partner 

P.R.S.H. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
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Manjushree Finance Limited
STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS

As on 31st Ashadh, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

NPR
PPaarrttiiccuullaarrss 3311sstt  AAsshhaaddhh  22008811 3322nndd  AAsshhaaddhh  22008800

NNeett  PPrrooffiitt  oorr  ((LLoossss))  aass  ppeerr  SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  PPrrooffiitt  oorr  LLoossss 222244,,661155,,336644                                              224466,,999999,,116666                                        

AApppprroopprriiaattiioonnss::

a. General Reserve (44,923,073)                          (49,399,833)                       

b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Fund -                                     -                                   

c. Capital Redemption Reserve -                                     (83,333,333)                       

d. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund (2,237,343)                           (2,263,804)                         

e. Employees' Training Fund (185,598)                              -                                   

f. Other -                                     -                                   

PPrrooffiitt  oorr  ((LLoossss))  BBeeffoorree  RReegguullaattoorryy  AAddjjuussttmmeenntt 117777,,226699,,335500                                              111122,,000022,,119966                                        

RReegguullaattoorryy  AAddjjuussttmmeenntt  ::

a. Interest Receivable (-)/Previous Accrued Interest Received (+) 14,976,256                           (39,276,264)                       

b. Short Loan Loss Provision in Accounts (-)/Reversal (+) -                                     -                                   

c. Short Provision for Possible Losses on Investment (-)/Reversal (+) (109,308)                              -                                   

d. Short Loan Loss Provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/Reversal (+) (23,697,126)                          -                                   

e. Deferred Tax Assets Recognised (-)/ Reversal (+) (1,820,826)                           (3,387,606)                         

f. Goodwill Recognised (-)/ Impairment of Goodwill (+) -                                     -                                   

g. Bargain Purchase Gain Recognised (-)/Resersal (+) -                                     -                                   

h. Acturial Loss Recognised (-)/Reversal (+) -                                     325,173                            

i. Other (+/-) -                                     -                                   

NNeett  PPrrooffiitt  ffoorr  tthhee  YYeeaarr  AAvvaaiillaabbllee  ffoorr  DDiissttrriibbuuttiioonn 166,618,346                         69,663,499                        

OOppeenniinngg  BBaallaannccee  ooff  RReettaaiinneedd  EEaarrnniinngg 7799,,443388,,888866                                                  99,,777755,,338877                                                

AAddjjuussttmmeenntt::  ((++//  --)) -                                     -                                   

DDiissttrriibbuuttiioonn::

Bonus Shares Issued -                                     -                                   

Cash Dividend Paid (71,132,226)                          -                                   

DDiissttrriibbuuttaabbllee  PPrrooffiitt  oorr  ((LLoossss)) 117744,,992255,,000055                                              7799,,443388,,888866                                            

Manjushree Finance  Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended 31st Ashadh 2081
(As per NRB Regulation)

Achyut Sapkota   
Chief Finance Officer 

Suman Prasad Adhikari
Director 

Pushpa Raj Bhandari 
Director 

Date: 2081/08/23 
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Dipak Thapa
Director 

Indira Pandit (Ghimire) 
Director  

Ram Hari Sharma  
Director  

Satish Gautam
Director  

Tej Raj Timilsina      
Chief Executive Officer  

Yadav Adhikari
Chairperson

As per Our Report of Even Date

Subash Poudel, FCA
Partner 

P.R.S.H. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
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Manjushree Finance Limited
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 0.5% OR MORE

S.N. Name  No. of  Shares Held  Paid Amount Holding %
1 Suman Prasad Adhikari 947,778 94,777,800 7.01%

2 Paras Adhikari 733,610 73,361,000 5.43%

3 Kamal Kumar Begani 434,198 43,419,800 3.21%

4 Sharad Koirala 291,048 29,104,800 2.15%

5 Damodar Prasad Gautam 257,440 25,744,000 1.90%

6 LP Bhanu Sharma 158,606 15,860,600 1.17%

7 Rekha Oli Upreti 155,373 15,537,300 1.15%

8 Vinay Kumar Sharma 143,490 14,349,000 1.06%

9 Hathway Investment Nepal 134,338 13,433,800 0.99%

10 Shova Mishra 134,338 13,433,800 0.99%

11 Santosh Kumar Rathi 134,338 13,433,800 0.99%

12 Saurav Dahal 133,232 13,323,200 0.99%

13 Prem Naryan Sapkota 133,232 13,323,200 0.99%

14 Satyabhama Niraula 132,935 13,293,500 0.98%

15 Shankar Prasad Dahal 132,607 13,260,700 0.98%

16 Sagar Kumar Ghimire 132,465 13,246,500 0.98%

17 Pratima Upadhaya Dahal 131,751 13,175,100 0.97%

18 Kalyan Raj Baral 130,461 13,046,100 0.97%

19 Numanath Poudel 129,032 12,903,200 0.95%

20 Rabi Raj Aryal 123,086 12,308,600 0.91%

21 Bishnu Subedi 123,084 12,308,400 0.91%

22 Captive Investment Company Pvt. Ltd 120,279 12,027,900 0.89%

23 Sharada Sharma Gautam 117,804 11,780,400 0.87%

24 Vijaya Bahadur Shah 116,528 11,652,800 0.86%

25 Divya Koirala 110,117 11,011,700 0.81%

26 Aman Chaudhary 108,657 10,865,700 0.80%

27 Shovita Shrestha Dhakal 102,001 10,200,100 0.75%

28 Shrichand Jain 98,474 9,847,400 0.73%

29 Raj Kumar Agrawal 96,494 9,649,400 0.71%

30 Arbind Tulachan 90,369 9,036,900 0.67%

31 Bhoj Raj Aryal 83,235 8,323,500 0.62%

32 Nabaraj Thapa 81,387 8,138,700 0.60%

33 Balaram Sapkota 73,985 7,398,500 0.55%

34 Tanka Prasad Dhakal 69,034 6,903,400 0.51%

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Manjushree Finance Limited 

For the Year Ended 31st Ashadh, 2081 
 
 

1. General Information 
Manjushree Finance Limited (hereinafter referred to as “MFL or the finance company or the financial 
institution”) is a national level finance company domiciled in Nepal, registered as a Public Limited 
Company under Companies Act 2063 and Bank & Financial Institution Act, 2063. Registered address of 
the financial institution is located at New Baneshwor, Kathmandu, Nepal. The financial institution is 
listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and is trading under the code “MFIL”.  
 
2. Basis of Preparation 
2.1 Statement of Compliance 
The Financial Statements of the financial institution for the year ended 15th  July, 2024 comprising 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements 
(including Significant Accounting Policies), have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial 
Reporting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations. 
The financial institution has applied certain carve-outs which are as described in Notes to Accounts. 

2.2 Going Concern 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Financial Institution has the 
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Board of 
Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, 
including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources. 
 
2.3 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements 
The financial institution follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.  

The accompanied financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on its meeting held 
on 23/08/2081 and have been recommended for adoption by shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting. 

2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency  
Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation 
currency of the financial institution. 
 
2.5 Use of Estimates, Assumption, and Judgments 
The financial institution, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to suit its circumstances 
and operating environment most appropriately. Further, the financial institution is required to make 
judgement in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to 
be followed could materially affect the financial statements. Later, this may be determined that a different 
choice could have been more appropriate. 
 
NFRS requires the financial institution to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, 
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial 
statements.   
 
The financial institution applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates is 
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised and are applied prospectively.  
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Manjushree Finance Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As on 31st Ashadh, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Manjushree Finance Limited 

For the Year Ended 31st Ashadh, 2081 
 
 

1. General Information 
Manjushree Finance Limited (hereinafter referred to as “MFL or the finance company or the financial 
institution”) is a national level finance company domiciled in Nepal, registered as a Public Limited 
Company under Companies Act 2063 and Bank & Financial Institution Act, 2063. Registered address of 
the financial institution is located at New Baneshwor, Kathmandu, Nepal. The financial institution is 
listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and is trading under the code “MFIL”.  
 
2. Basis of Preparation 
2.1 Statement of Compliance 
The Financial Statements of the financial institution for the year ended 15th  July, 2024 comprising 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements 
(including Significant Accounting Policies), have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial 
Reporting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations. 
The financial institution has applied certain carve-outs which are as described in Notes to Accounts. 

2.2 Going Concern 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Financial Institution has the 
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Board of 
Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, 
including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources. 
 
2.3 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements 
The financial institution follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.  

The accompanied financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on its meeting held 
on 23/08/2081 and have been recommended for adoption by shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting. 

2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency  
Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation 
currency of the financial institution. 
 
2.5 Use of Estimates, Assumption, and Judgments 
The financial institution, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to suit its circumstances 
and operating environment most appropriately. Further, the financial institution is required to make 
judgement in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to 
be followed could materially affect the financial statements. Later, this may be determined that a different 
choice could have been more appropriate. 
 
NFRS requires the financial institution to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, 
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial 
statements.   
 
The financial institution applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates is 
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised and are applied prospectively.  
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Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes wherever 
the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if 
any. 
 
2.6 Changes in Accounting Policies 
There has been no significant change in the accounting policies adopted by the financial institution except 
where required due to adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. 

2.7 New Reporting Standards in Issue But not Yet Effective 
There have been amendments to the Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal 
(ICAN) and applicability of the new Standards have been notified for IFRS. But the amendments and 
new standards become applicable only when ICAN pronounces them. 
 
The Financial Institution has availed the Carve-outs on NFRS-9 Financial Instruments (ICAN notice 
dated 2nd Shrawan 2079). The quantitative and qualitative impact of the same have been disclosed as 
applicable. 
 
2.8  New Standard and Interpretation Not Adopted 
Financial statements of the Financial Institution have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial 
Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) to the 
extent applicable. 
 
2.9 Discounting  
The Financial Institution determines amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability using the 
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments or receipts throughout the expected life of a financial asset or a financial liability to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. If expected life cannot be determined reliably, then the 
contractual life is used. 

In case where the financial institution assesses that the transaction amount of a financial asset or a 
financial liability does not represent its fair value, the related future cash flows are discounted at prevailing 
interest rate to determine the initial fair value. 

 
2.10  Comparative Information 
These Financial Statements of the financial institution provides comparative information in respect of 
previous periods. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the financial institution with 
those of the previous financial year in accordance with NAS 01. Presentation of Financial Statements, 
except those which had to be changed because of application of the new NFRS or expiry of the carve- 
out period. Further, comparative information is reclassified wherever necessary to comply with the 
current presentation. The changes in comparative have been duly disclosed in notes. 

Materiality and Aggregation In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of 
Financial Statements), each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial 
Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions too are presented separately unless they are 
immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the 
Statement of Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability 
simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required 
or permitted by an Accounting Standard. 

 
2.11  Prior Period Errors 
Prior period errors may be due to omission or misstatements in an entity's financial statements. Such 
omissions may relate to one or more prior period. Correction of error done by calculation of cumulative 
effect of the change on the financial statements for the period as if new method or estimate had always 

been used for all the affected previous period financial statements. Details of prior period adjustment 
has been shown in explanatory notes. 
 
2.12  Materiality and Aggregation 
In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each 
material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar 
nature or functions too are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities are off set and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard. 

2.13  Limitation of NFRS Implementation  
If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such 
exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.  
 
3. Significant Accounting Policies 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.  
 
3.1 Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available –for-sale 
investments, assets held for sale and discontinued operations, other financial assets and liabilities held 
for trading and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all 
of which have been measured at fair value. 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and 
judgements as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed 
specifically. 

 
3.2 Basis of Consolidation 
The financial institution does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of Financial 
Statements. Apart from that, at the end of Ashadh, 2081, the financial institution does not have any 
Investments in Shares. 

 
3.3 Cash & Cash Equivalent 
The fair value of cash is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount of cash in 
hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at short notice and highly liquid financial 
assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in their value and used by the financial institution in the management of 
short-term commitment. 
Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements. 
 
3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
3.4.1 Recognition 
Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and balances due 
to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the financial institution becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or 
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by 
regulation or convention in the marketplace. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when 
funds are transferred to the customers’ account at fair value inclusive of transaction costs. The financial 
institution recognises due to customer balances when funds reach the financial institution. 
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been used for all the affected previous period financial statements. Details of prior period adjustment 
has been shown in explanatory notes. 
 
2.12  Materiality and Aggregation 
In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each 
material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar 
nature or functions too are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities are off set and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard. 

2.13  Limitation of NFRS Implementation  
If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such 
exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.  
 
3. Significant Accounting Policies 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.  
 
3.1 Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available –for-sale 
investments, assets held for sale and discontinued operations, other financial assets and liabilities held 
for trading and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all 
of which have been measured at fair value. 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and 
judgements as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed 
specifically. 

 
3.2 Basis of Consolidation 
The financial institution does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of Financial 
Statements. Apart from that, at the end of Ashadh, 2081, the financial institution does not have any 
Investments in Shares. 

 
3.3 Cash & Cash Equivalent 
The fair value of cash is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount of cash in 
hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at short notice and highly liquid financial 
assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in their value and used by the financial institution in the management of 
short-term commitment. 
Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements. 
 
3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
3.4.1 Recognition 
Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and balances due 
to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the financial institution becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or 
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by 
regulation or convention in the marketplace. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when 
funds are transferred to the customers’ account at fair value inclusive of transaction costs. The financial 
institution recognises due to customer balances when funds reach the financial institution. 
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3.4.2 Classification 
The financial institution classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: 
 
 Financial Assets and Liabilities Held for Trading 
The financial institution classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when they have 
been purchased or issued primarily for short term profit making through trading activities or form part 
of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together for which there is evidence of a recent 
pattern of short-term profit taking. Included in this classification are Government bonds, NRB Bonds, 
Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc. held primarily for the trading purpose. 
 
 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 
Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by 
management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an instrument at FVTPL upon 
initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met, and designation is determined on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis: 
• The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise 
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis 
Or 
• The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both, which are 
managed, and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk 
management or investment strategy 
Or 
• The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly 
modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no 
analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is 
prohibited. 
 
 Loans and Receivables to Customers  
After initial measurement, loans and advances to customers are subsequently measured at amortisation 
over the period of loan. This practice is almost nearer to the effective interest method prescribed by 
NFRS. The method has been adopted as the cost for computation for interest on effective interest 
method is huge in terms of benefits to be received from the computation in the short run.  

 
 Held-to-Maturity 
Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities that the financial institution’s management has the intention and ability to hold to maturity.  

 
 Available-for-Sale.  
Available-for-sale assets are those non-derivative financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite 
period, which may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in interest rates, exchange 
rates, commodity prices or equity prices. 
 
 Financial Liabilities Held at Amortised Cost 
Financial liabilities not classified held at fair value through profit or loss includes borrowings which are 
classified as amortised cost instruments. 
 
3.4.3 Measurement 
 Initial Measurement 
All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost except in the case of 
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss. 
 

 Subsequent Measurement 
Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at 
fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value taken directly to the statement of profit 
or loss. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in revenue according to the terms of the 
contract, or when the right to payment has been established. 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses arising from 
changes in fair value taken to Other Comprehensive Income. The financial institution makes irrevocable 
election to route fair value changes through Other Comprehensive Income.  
 
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
Within this category loans and advances to the customers have been recognised at amortised cost using 
the method that very closely approximates effective interest rate method. The losses arising from 
impairment of such investments are recognised in the income statement within credit loss expense. If the 
financial institution were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity 
investments before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the entire category would be 
tainted and would have to be reclassified as available-for-sale. 
 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, with any difference between proceeds 
net of directly attributable transaction costs and the redemption value recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 
 
3.4.4 De-recognition 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or 
where the financial institution has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If 
substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred and the financial 
institution has retained control, the assets continue to be recognised to the extent of the financial 
institution’s continuing involvement. 
 
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.  
For recognizing gain/loss in case of de-recognition, the financial institution has applied the policy to 
recognize the fair value movement till preceding year to Other Comprehensive Income and to recognize 
the gain realized in reporting year to Income Statement. 

 
3.4.5 Impairment of Loans and Advances 
The financial institution reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each Reporting date to 
assess whether an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or loss. In particular, 
the Management’s judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows 
when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and 
is based on Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected 
to be received. In estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgments about a borrower’s 
financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed 
on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable.  

Individual assessment of impairment of exposures means establishing whether objective evidence of 
impairment exists, estimation of the present value of future cash flows, and calculation of the value of 
impairment for each individual receivable from the borrower included in this assessment.  

The financial institution has considered all loans and advances for individual assessment of impairment. 
The financial institution determines, for each individual loan to be assessed for individual impairment, 
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 Subsequent Measurement 
Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at 
fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value taken directly to the statement of profit 
or loss. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in revenue according to the terms of the 
contract, or when the right to payment has been established. 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses arising from 
changes in fair value taken to Other Comprehensive Income. The financial institution makes irrevocable 
election to route fair value changes through Other Comprehensive Income.  
 
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
Within this category loans and advances to the customers have been recognised at amortised cost using 
the method that very closely approximates effective interest rate method. The losses arising from 
impairment of such investments are recognised in the income statement within credit loss expense. If the 
financial institution were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity 
investments before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the entire category would be 
tainted and would have to be reclassified as available-for-sale. 
 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, with any difference between proceeds 
net of directly attributable transaction costs and the redemption value recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 
 
3.4.4 De-recognition 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or 
where the financial institution has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If 
substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred and the financial 
institution has retained control, the assets continue to be recognised to the extent of the financial 
institution’s continuing involvement. 
 
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.  
For recognizing gain/loss in case of de-recognition, the financial institution has applied the policy to 
recognize the fair value movement till preceding year to Other Comprehensive Income and to recognize 
the gain realized in reporting year to Income Statement. 

 
3.4.5 Impairment of Loans and Advances 
The financial institution reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each Reporting date to 
assess whether an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or loss. In particular, 
the Management’s judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows 
when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and 
is based on Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected 
to be received. In estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgments about a borrower’s 
financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed 
on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable.  

Individual assessment of impairment of exposures means establishing whether objective evidence of 
impairment exists, estimation of the present value of future cash flows, and calculation of the value of 
impairment for each individual receivable from the borrower included in this assessment.  

The financial institution has considered all loans and advances for individual assessment of impairment. 
The financial institution determines, for each individual loan to be assessed for individual impairment, 
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whether they expect to collect their receivables from expected future cash flows (going concern) or from 
collateral realization (gone concern). If a financial institution identifies objective evidence of impairment, 
the financial institution indicates, at single debtor level, the most realistic sources of repayment (collection 
approach/strategy) based on all available information regarding such borrower’s financial position and 
performances. The financial institution assesses whether collection will be made from the borrower`s 
expected future operating cash flows (borrower continues to perform business activities – going concern) 
or based on collateral enforcement and realization (expectation that the borrower ceases to exist – gone 
concern). In both cases, financial institution uses conservative assumptions relating to the estimation of 
the expected cash flows, considering current economic conditions and the financial institution’s own 
economic forecasts. 
When estimating impairment based on collateral realization, the recoverable amount is the present value 
of the net inflow from collateral realization (considering the priority of claims), discounted by applying 
the original effective interest rate to the expected time to realization. 

A collective impairment provision is established for: 

 Groups of homogeneous loans and advances that are not considered individually significant; and  
 Groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired. 

Since, the financial institution has considered all loans and advances for individual assessment of 
impairment, collective impairment provision has not been considered. 

 
As stated in 2.7 the financial institution loans and advances is greater considering the NRB directive as 
compared to NFRS impairment provisioning. Therefore, provisioning as per NRB directive is applied.  

 
3.4.6 Impairment of Financial Investments – Available-for-Sale 
The financial institution also records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity investments when 
there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost along with the historical 
share price movements, duration, and extent up to which the fair value of an investment is less than its 
cost.  

 
3.4.7 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 
The financial institution assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for an asset or a cash 
generating unit (CGU) at each Reporting date or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances 
necessitate to do so. This requires the estimation of the ‘Value in use’ of such individual assets or the 
CGUs. Estimating ‘Value in use’ requires the Management to make an estimate of the expected future 
cash flows from the asset or the CGU and to select a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the 
present value of the relevant cash flows. This valuation requires the financial institution to make estimates 
about expected future cash flows and discount rates and hence, they are subject to uncertainty.  

 
3.5 Trading Assets 
Trading assets are those assets that the financial institution acquires principally for the purpose of 
selling in the near term or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit 
shall be presented under this account head. The other trading asset includes non-derivative financial 
assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities 
etc. held primarily for the trading purpose. 
 
3.6 Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities 
Financial institution doesn’t deal with any derivative financial instruments. 

 
3.7 Property and Equipment 
All property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. 

 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 

the financial institution and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are 
incurred. 

 
Freehold land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other assets 
is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their 
estimated useful lives, as follows: 

 
 ROU Assets     As per NFRS 16 
 Vehicle      7 Years 
 Furniture and Fixture    5 Years 
 Leasehold     5 Years 
 Computer and Office Equipment   5 Years 
 Machinery     5 Years 

 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of 
financial position date.  The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is considered 
not material. 
 
At each reporting date, assets are also assessed for indicators of impairment. If an asset’s carrying amount 
is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately to the 
recoverable amount. 
 
Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure. 
 
Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

 
3.8 Intangible Assets 
Acquired Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability 
that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the financial institution and are 
amortised based on their expected useful lives.   
 
Computer Software 
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised based on the costs incurred to acquire and bring to 
use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalised where it is 
probable that it will generate future economic benefits more than its cost. Computer software costs are 
amortised over the period of 5 years in Straight Line method (SLM).  Costs associated with maintaining 
software are recognised as an expense as incurred.  
 
At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. If an asset’s carrying 
amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately. 
3.9  Investment Property 
Land or Land and Building other than those classified as property and equipment and non-current assets 
held for sale under relevant accounting standard are presented under this account head. The Non-
Banking Assets acquired by the financial institution is classified as investment property.  

 
3.10 Income Tax 
3.10.1 Current Tax  
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities of Nepal. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in Nepal. 
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the financial institution and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are 
incurred. 

 
Freehold land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other assets 
is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their 
estimated useful lives, as follows: 

 
 ROU Assets     As per NFRS 16 
 Vehicle      7 Years 
 Furniture and Fixture    5 Years 
 Leasehold     5 Years 
 Computer and Office Equipment   5 Years 
 Machinery     5 Years 

 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of 
financial position date.  The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is considered 
not material. 
 
At each reporting date, assets are also assessed for indicators of impairment. If an asset’s carrying amount 
is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately to the 
recoverable amount. 
 
Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure. 
 
Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

 
3.8 Intangible Assets 
Acquired Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability 
that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the financial institution and are 
amortised based on their expected useful lives.   
 
Computer Software 
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised based on the costs incurred to acquire and bring to 
use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalised where it is 
probable that it will generate future economic benefits more than its cost. Computer software costs are 
amortised over the period of 5 years in Straight Line method (SLM).  Costs associated with maintaining 
software are recognised as an expense as incurred.  
 
At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. If an asset’s carrying 
amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately. 
3.9  Investment Property 
Land or Land and Building other than those classified as property and equipment and non-current assets 
held for sale under relevant accounting standard are presented under this account head. The Non-
Banking Assets acquired by the financial institution is classified as investment property.  

 
3.10 Income Tax 
3.10.1 Current Tax  
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities of Nepal. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in Nepal. 
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The liabilities recognised for the purpose of current Income tax, including fees, penalties are included 
under this head. 

 
3.10.2 Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities 
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income 
tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the financial institution as at the reporting date which is 
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax 
liability is settled. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilised. 
 
Deferred tax relating to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, is credited, or charged 
directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in the statement of profit or loss together with the 
deferred gain or loss. 

 
3.11 Deposits, Debt Securities Issued and Subordinate Liabilities 
The deposits held by the financial institution on behalf of its customers are classified as financial liabilities 
and measured at amortised cost under effective interest method. The financial institution has issued debt 
securities amounting NPR 500,000,000 in FY 2077-78.  

 
3.12 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised in respect of present obligations arising from past events where it is probable 
that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations and they can be reliably estimated. 

 
3.13 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the financial 
institution and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also 
be met before revenue is recognised. 

 
3.13.1 Interest Income 
Interest Income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those 
investment securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from 
Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc. 
Interest income on loans and advances is recognized on amortised principal which is nearer to the 
effective interest method suggested by NFRS. The adoption of effective interest method is not possible 
due to constraints of time, effort and cost in short term compared to the benefits it provides. Interest of 
loans and advances which are significantly impaired are not recognized.  
Interest income on government bond, treasury bills and bank balances are recognized under effective 
interest method.  
 
Accrued Interest on Loan (except for bad loan) has been recognised. 

 
3.13.2 Fees and Commissions 
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided 
or significant act performed. Service Fee Income/Expenses are recognized on accrual basis unless it is 
impracticable to recognize as allowed through carve-out on NFRS.    

 
3.13.3 Dividend Income 
Dividend income is recognised when the financial institution’s right to receive the payment is established, 
which is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend. 

 

3.13.4 Net Trading Income 
Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related interest income 
or expense and dividends, for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading. 

 
3.13.5 Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated at fair value 
through profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 
Contractual interest income and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 
is recognised within net interest income. 

 
3.14 Interest Expense 
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as 
available-for-sale and financial instruments designated at FVTPL, interest expense is recorded using the 
EIR unless it is impracticable.  

 
3.15 Employee Benefits 

 Employee benefits include: 
 Short-term employee benefits such as the following, if expected to be settled wholly before twelve 
months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related 
services: 

i. Wages, salaries and social security contributions. 
ii. Paid annual leave and paid sick leave. 
iii. Profit sharing and bonuses, and  
iv. Non-monetary benefits (such as medical care, housing, cars and free or subsidized goods or 

services) for current employees. 
Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expended as the related 
service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash 
bonus or profit-sharing plans if the financial institution has present legal or constructive obligation to 
pay this amount because of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 
 Post-employment benefits, such as the following: 

i.Retirement benefits (e.g.: pensions, lump sum payments on retirement); and 
ii. Other post-employment benefits such as post-employment life insurance and post-

employment medical care. 
 Other long term employee benefits and 
 Termination benefits 

Post employments benefits are as follows: 
 
3.15.1 Defined Contribution Plans 
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a financial institution pays 
fixed contribution into a separate Bank (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay 
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to 
employee services in the current and prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards – NAS 19 
(Employee Benefits). 
The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the services 
rendered to the financial institution by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel 
expense’ as and when they become due. Unpaid contributions are recorded as a liability under ‘Other 
Liabilities’. 
The financial institution contributes 10% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident 
Fund. The above expenses are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in 
Nepal Accounting Standards – NAS 19 (Employee Benefits). 
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3.13.4 Net Trading Income 
Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related interest income 
or expense and dividends, for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading. 

 
3.13.5 Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated at fair value 
through profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 
Contractual interest income and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 
is recognised within net interest income. 

 
3.14 Interest Expense 
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as 
available-for-sale and financial instruments designated at FVTPL, interest expense is recorded using the 
EIR unless it is impracticable.  

 
3.15 Employee Benefits 

 Employee benefits include: 
 Short-term employee benefits such as the following, if expected to be settled wholly before twelve 
months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related 
services: 

i. Wages, salaries and social security contributions. 
ii. Paid annual leave and paid sick leave. 
iii. Profit sharing and bonuses, and  
iv. Non-monetary benefits (such as medical care, housing, cars and free or subsidized goods or 

services) for current employees. 
Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expended as the related 
service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash 
bonus or profit-sharing plans if the financial institution has present legal or constructive obligation to 
pay this amount because of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 
 Post-employment benefits, such as the following: 

i.Retirement benefits (e.g.: pensions, lump sum payments on retirement); and 
ii. Other post-employment benefits such as post-employment life insurance and post-

employment medical care. 
 Other long term employee benefits and 
 Termination benefits 

Post employments benefits are as follows: 
 
3.15.1 Defined Contribution Plans 
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a financial institution pays 
fixed contribution into a separate Bank (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay 
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to 
employee services in the current and prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards – NAS 19 
(Employee Benefits). 
The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the services 
rendered to the financial institution by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel 
expense’ as and when they become due. Unpaid contributions are recorded as a liability under ‘Other 
Liabilities’. 
The financial institution contributes 10% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident 
Fund. The above expenses are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in 
Nepal Accounting Standards – NAS 19 (Employee Benefits). 
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3.15.2 Defined Benefit Plans 
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 
Accordingly, staff gratuity has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting 
Standards – NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).  
 
3.15.3 Gratuity 
Provision for gratuity payable to employees was made in compliance with Labor Act, 2074. 
Provision for long-term employee benefits have been made for the year based on the projected figures for 
this year in the Actuarial Valuation carried out in FY 2079-80. 
 
The financial institution’s obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the 
amount of future benefit that employees have earned for their service in the current and prior periods and 
discounting that benefit to determine its present value, then deducting the fair value of any plan assets to 
determine the net amount to be shown in the Statement of Financial Position. The value of a defined 
benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds 
from the plan or reduction on the future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present value 
of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirement that apply to any plan 
in the financial institution. An economic benefit is available to the financial institution if it is realizable 
during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities. 
 
The financial institution determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability by applying the 
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period to the 
defined benefit liability at the end of the annual period. 
 
The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services provided by employees during the year ended 
15th July 2024 (current service cost) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under 
‘Personnel Expenses’ together with the net interest expense. The financial institution recognizes the total 
actuarial gain and loss that arises in calculating the financial institution’s obligation in respect of gratuity 
in other comprehensive income during the period in which it occurs. 
The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (60 years), early withdrawal 
from service and retirement on medical grounds. 
 
3.15.4 Unutilized Accumulated Leave 
The financial institution’s liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized beyond 
one year from the end of the reporting period is treated as other long term employee benefits. The financial 
institution’s net obligation towards unutilized accumulated leave is calculated by discounting the amount 
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods to 
determine the present value of such benefits. Net change in liability for unutilized accumulated leave 
including any actuarial gain and loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel 
Expenses’ in the period in which they arise.   

 
3.15.5 Staff Bonus 
Provision for bonus has been made at 10% of net profit before bonus as prescribed by the directive of 
Nepal Rastra Bank.  
 
3.16  Leases 
At inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period in exchange for consideration.  
 

 

a. The Financial Institution as a Lessee 
 At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. 
 At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost. 

The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise: (a) the amount of the initial measurement of the 
lease liability; (b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease 
incentives received; (c) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (d) an estimate of costs to 
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which 
it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of 
the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories. The lessee incurs the obligation for 
those costs either at the commencement date or because of having used the underlying asset during a 
particular period. 

 At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease 
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, 
the lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. 

 Subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset  
After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying a Cost Model. 

 
b.  Cost Model  
To apply a cost model, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost: (a) less any accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses; and (b) adjusted for any re-measurement of the 
lease liability specified in paragraph 36(c). A lessee shall apply the depreciation requirements in IAS 16 
Property, Plant and Equipment in depreciating the right-of-use asset, subject to the requirements in 
paragraph 32. 

 
c. Subsequent Measurement of Lease Liability 
After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability by: (a) increasing the carrying 
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease 
payments made; and (c) re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease 
modifications specified in paragraphs 39–46, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 
Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term shall be the amount that produces a 
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. After the commencement 
date, a lessee shall recognize in profit or loss, unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of 
another asset applying other applicable Standards, both: (a) interest on the lease liability; and (b) variable 
lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability in the period in which the event or 
condition that triggers those payments occurs. 

   
3.17 Foreign Currency Translation 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the NPR using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions 
and from translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when recognised in other comprehensive income. 
Non-monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated using exchange rate at the date that 
fair value was determined. 
The financial institution is not involved in any kind of foreign currency transaction during this year. 

 
3.18 Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment 
In the ordinary course of business, the financial institution issues performance guarantees, bid bond 
guarantees and advance payment guarantee. These guarantees are initially recognised in the financial 
statement (within ‘contingent liabilities’) at guaranteed value. The premium received is recognised in the 
income statement in net fees and commission income on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
guarantee. 
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a. The Financial Institution as a Lessee 
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implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, 
the lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. 

 Subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset  
After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying a Cost Model. 
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lease liability specified in paragraph 36(c). A lessee shall apply the depreciation requirements in IAS 16 
Property, Plant and Equipment in depreciating the right-of-use asset, subject to the requirements in 
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amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease 
payments made; and (c) re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease 
modifications specified in paragraphs 39–46, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 
Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term shall be the amount that produces a 
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. After the commencement 
date, a lessee shall recognize in profit or loss, unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of 
another asset applying other applicable Standards, both: (a) interest on the lease liability; and (b) variable 
lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability in the period in which the event or 
condition that triggers those payments occurs. 

   
3.17 Foreign Currency Translation 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the NPR using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions 
and from translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when recognised in other comprehensive income. 
Non-monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated using exchange rate at the date that 
fair value was determined. 
The financial institution is not involved in any kind of foreign currency transaction during this year. 

 
3.18 Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment 
In the ordinary course of business, the financial institution issues performance guarantees, bid bond 
guarantees and advance payment guarantee. These guarantees are initially recognised in the financial 
statement (within ‘contingent liabilities’) at guaranteed value. The premium received is recognised in the 
income statement in net fees and commission income on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
guarantee. 
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3.19  Share Capital and Reserves 
3.19.1 Share Capital 
Financial instruments issues are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer 
cash, other financial assets, or issue available number of own equity instruments.  Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the 
proceeds. 
Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognised in equity in the period in which they are 
declared. 
The issue expenses for the issue were charged in the year of issue and though the impact from past of 
the financial institutions' equity the amount has not been adjusted with the share capital and the financial 
institution considered the impact to be immaterial. A summary of promoter and public shareholding is 
as under: 

Particulars No. of Shares Ratio 
No. of Promoters Shares 6,892,920.00 51% 
No. of Public Shares 6,622,608.49 49% 
Total 13,515,528.49 100% 
 

3.19.2 Reserves 
The reserves include regulatory and free reserves. 
 General Reserve 
There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net profit to the general reserve until the reserve 
is twice the paid-up share capital.  The reserve is the accumulation of setting aside profits over the years. 
 
No Dividend (either cash dividend or bonus share) are distributed from the amount in General/ Statutory 
Reserve. 

Particulars Amount 
Opening Balance As on 1st Shrawan 2080      314,557,517 
Changes in FY 2080/81 44,923,073 
Balance As at Ashadh End 2081   359,480,590 
 

 Assets Revaluation Reserve 
Any Reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets, 
Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion 
against unexpected losses but may not be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the 
subsequent deterioration in market value and tax consequences of revaluation. The financial institution 
has followed cost model therefore no assets revaluation reserve is created.  

 
 Capital Reserve 
The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital, and which 
shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share forfeiture due to non-
payment of remaining amount for the unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash or kind, capital 
reserve arising out of merger and acquisition etc are presented under this heading. 
The Finance has issued Debenture of Rs. 50 crores in FY 2077/78. Debenture Redemption Reserve 
created in respect of the same as required by the NRB Directives is as under: 

Particulars Amount 
Opening Balance As on 1st Shrawan 2079      83,333,333 
Changes in FY 2079/80 83,333,333  
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080       166,666,666    
Changes in FY 2080/81  -  
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2081      166,666,666  

 

As per our letter dated 6/5/2081 and confirmation on the same by NRB vide its letter dated 9/5/2081, 
debenture redemption reserve has not been made in FY 2080-81 in accordance with the provision of 
NRB Directive 16(5)(3) as the debenture has been classified for the purpose of CD ratio only.  
 Special Reserve 
Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special instruction 
of NRB are represented as special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by debiting retained 
earning account are presented under this heading. 

 
 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund 
The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of Net profit as per 
NRB Directive is presented under this account head.  
 

Particulars Amount 
Opening Balance As on 1st Shrawan 2080       13,089,751 
Transferred to CSR Fund During the Year 2,246,154 
Utilization towards CSR Expenses (8,811) 
 Balance as at Ashadh End 2081       15,327,094  
 

 Investment Adjustment Reserve 
It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in the financial institution's 
investments as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank. Bank & Financial Institutions are 
required to create Investment Adjustment Reserve equal to 2% of Value of investment.  

 
 Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve  
Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used 
to value employee obligations shall be presented under this account head. Details of reserve made 
towards actuarial loss is presented as under: 

Particulars Amount 
Opening Balance As on 1st Shrawan 2079         (3,342,601)  
Changes in FY 2078/79  325,174 
Balance as at Ashadh End 2080 (3,017,427) 
Changes in FY 2080/81 -  
Balance as at Ashadh End 2081 (3,017,427) 

 
 Regulatory Reserve 
The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the financial institution to this reserve 
as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free 
for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. 
The amount allocated to this reserve shall include interest income recognized but not received in cash, 
difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRS 
(in case lower impairment is recognized under NFRS), amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss 
recognized in other comprehensive income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS etc. Details are 
presented as under: 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

behind your happiness

81

ANNUAL REPORT 2080-081

As per our letter dated 6/5/2081 and confirmation on the same by NRB vide its letter dated 9/5/2081, 
debenture redemption reserve has not been made in FY 2080-81 in accordance with the provision of 
NRB Directive 16(5)(3) as the debenture has been classified for the purpose of CD ratio only.  
 Special Reserve 
Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special instruction 
of NRB are represented as special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by debiting retained 
earning account are presented under this heading. 

 
 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund 
The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of Net profit as per 
NRB Directive is presented under this account head.  
 

Particulars Amount 
Opening Balance As on 1st Shrawan 2080       13,089,751 
Transferred to CSR Fund During the Year 2,246,154 
Utilization towards CSR Expenses (8,811) 
 Balance as at Ashadh End 2081       15,327,094  
 

 Investment Adjustment Reserve 
It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in the financial institution's 
investments as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank. Bank & Financial Institutions are 
required to create Investment Adjustment Reserve equal to 2% of Value of investment.  

 
 Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve  
Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used 
to value employee obligations shall be presented under this account head. Details of reserve made 
towards actuarial loss is presented as under: 

Particulars Amount 
Opening Balance As on 1st Shrawan 2079         (3,342,601)  
Changes in FY 2078/79  325,174 
Balance as at Ashadh End 2080 (3,017,427) 
Changes in FY 2080/81 -  
Balance as at Ashadh End 2081 (3,017,427) 

 
 Regulatory Reserve 
The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the financial institution to this reserve 
as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free 
for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. 
The amount allocated to this reserve shall include interest income recognized but not received in cash, 
difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRS 
(in case lower impairment is recognized under NFRS), amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss 
recognized in other comprehensive income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS etc. Details are 
presented as under: 
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Opening Balance As on 1st 
Shrawan 2075  - - - - - - - 

Changes in FY 2075/076  28,264,603 - 96,373 22,897,812  4,955,315 - 56,214,103  
Balance As on 31st Ashadh 
2076  28,264,603  - 96,373  22,897,812  4,955,315  - 56,214,103  

Changes in FY 2076/077  19,905,235  - - - (4,955,315) - 14,949,920  
Balance As on 31st Ashadh 
2077  48,169,838  - 96,373  22,897,812  -    - 71,164,023  

Changes in FY 2077/078    11,446,205 -  (96,373) (5,148,783) 11,367,438  - 17,568,487  
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 
2078  59,616,043 - -  17,749,029  11,367,438  - 88,732,510  

Changes in FY 2078/079 5,261,359 - - (1,428,324) 2,264,988  3,342,601 9,440,624  
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 
2079  64,877,402 - -  16,320,705  13,632,426  3,342,601 98,173,134  

Changes in FY 2079/080  39,276,264 -    -    -    3,387,606  (325,173) 42,338,697 
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 
2080  104,153,666   -    -  16,320,705  17,020,032  3,017,428 140,511,831 

Changes in FY 2080/081  (14,976,256) 109,308     -      23,697,126 1,820,826  -   10,651,004 
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 
2081 89,177,410 109,308     -    40,017,831 18,840,858  3,017,428 151,162,835 

  
Details of amount transferred to Regulatory Reserve (RR) for AIR is as under: 

Particulars Amount  
Total Accrued Interest at End of Ashadh as per 2.2 Report 272,177,949 
AIR Suspended on Bad Loans (52,840,505) 
AIR on Loans Other than on Bad Loans 219,337,444 
AIR Recovered Before 32nd of Shrawan (77,786,000) 
Net AIR for Purpose on 32nd of Shrawan   141,551,444 
Total RR to be Maintained for AIR   89,177,410  
Opening Balance of RR for AIR          104,153,665  
Additional RR Made for AIR in Current Year   (14,976,256)  

 
 Other Reserve  
Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are presented under 
thus by disclosing accounting heads.  
 
3.20 Earnings per Share 
The financial institution measures earning per share based on the earning attributable to the equity 
shareholders for the period.  The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares 
for the relevant period as required by NAS 33 - Earnings Per Share. 
 
There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that would require dilution of EPS, therefore diluted EPS 
has not been computed and disclosed.  

 
3.21 Segmental Reporting 
The financial institution’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 geographical segments. 
Geographical segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
financial institution’s management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the geographical segments. All transactions between geographical segments are 
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Opening Balance As on 1st 
Shrawan 2075  - - - - - - - 

Changes in FY 2075/076  28,264,603 - 96,373 22,897,812  4,955,315 - 56,214,103  
Balance As on 31st Ashadh 
2076  28,264,603  - 96,373  22,897,812  4,955,315  - 56,214,103  

Changes in FY 2076/077  19,905,235  - - - (4,955,315) - 14,949,920  
Balance As on 31st Ashadh 
2077  48,169,838  - 96,373  22,897,812  -    - 71,164,023  

Changes in FY 2077/078    11,446,205 -  (96,373) (5,148,783) 11,367,438  - 17,568,487  
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 
2078  59,616,043 - -  17,749,029  11,367,438  - 88,732,510  

Changes in FY 2078/079 5,261,359 - - (1,428,324) 2,264,988  3,342,601 9,440,624  
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 
2079  64,877,402 - -  16,320,705  13,632,426  3,342,601 98,173,134  

Changes in FY 2079/080  39,276,264 -    -    -    3,387,606  (325,173) 42,338,697 
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 
2080  104,153,666   -    -  16,320,705  17,020,032  3,017,428 140,511,831 

Changes in FY 2080/081  (14,976,256) 109,308     -      23,697,126 1,820,826  -   10,651,004 
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 
2081 89,177,410 109,308     -    40,017,831 18,840,858  3,017,428 151,162,835 

  
Details of amount transferred to Regulatory Reserve (RR) for AIR is as under: 

Particulars Amount  
Total Accrued Interest at End of Ashadh as per 2.2 Report 272,177,949 
AIR Suspended on Bad Loans (52,840,505) 
AIR on Loans Other than on Bad Loans 219,337,444 
AIR Recovered Before 32nd of Shrawan (77,786,000) 
Net AIR for Purpose on 32nd of Shrawan   141,551,444 
Total RR to be Maintained for AIR   89,177,410  
Opening Balance of RR for AIR          104,153,665  
Additional RR Made for AIR in Current Year   (14,976,256)  

 
 Other Reserve  
Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are presented under 
thus by disclosing accounting heads.  
 
3.20 Earnings per Share 
The financial institution measures earning per share based on the earning attributable to the equity 
shareholders for the period.  The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares 
for the relevant period as required by NAS 33 - Earnings Per Share. 
 
There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that would require dilution of EPS, therefore diluted EPS 
has not been computed and disclosed.  

 
3.21 Segmental Reporting 
The financial institution’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 geographical segments. 
Geographical segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
financial institution’s management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the geographical segments. All transactions between geographical segments are 

conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated in Head 
Office. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining 
geographical segment performance. 
Segmental information has been provided under Disclosures & Additional Information.  
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more 
of the financial institution’s total revenue in any of the periods reported. 
 
3.22 Interim Financial Reporting 
Interim reports corresponding to the financial statements had been reported in accordance with the 
regulatory reporting requirements. Those statements have been published quarterly in national level 
newspaper.  
 
3.23 Debenture Issue Expenses 
The finance company has issued 9.5% debenture amounting to Rs. 500,000,000.00 in FY 2077-78. 
 
3.24 Proposed Dividend 
The Finance Company has decided to distribute cash dividend of 6.35 % (including for tax purpose) for 
the year.  
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conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated in Head 
Office. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining 
geographical segment performance. 
Segmental information has been provided under Disclosures & Additional Information.  
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more 
of the financial institution’s total revenue in any of the periods reported. 
 
3.22 Interim Financial Reporting 
Interim reports corresponding to the financial statements had been reported in accordance with the 
regulatory reporting requirements. Those statements have been published quarterly in national level 
newspaper.  
 
3.23 Debenture Issue Expenses 
The finance company has issued 9.5% debenture amounting to Rs. 500,000,000.00 in FY 2077-78. 
 
3.24 Proposed Dividend 
The Finance Company has decided to distribute cash dividend of 6.35 % (including for tax purpose) for 
the year.  
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Manjushree Finance Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Cash in Hand  95,965,428  132,782,463 
Balances with B/FIs  269,960,837  875,076,041 
Money at Call and Short Notice  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total  365,926,265  1,007,858,504 

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Statutory Balances with NRB  838,736,447  655,465,614 
Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreement  -    -   
Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB  -    -   
Total  838,736,447  655,465,614 

4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Placement with Domestic B/FIs  -    -   
Placement with Foreign B/FIs  -    -   
Less: Allowances for Impairement  -    -   
Total  -    -   

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap  -    -   

Forward Exchange Contract  -    -   

Others  -    -   

Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap  -    -   
Forward Exchange Contract  -    -   
Others  -    -   
Total  -    -   
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4.5 Other Trading Assets
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Treasury Bills  -    -   

Government Bond  -    -   

NRB Bonds  -    -   

Domestic Corporate Bonds  -    -   

Equities  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total  -    -   
Pledged  -    -   
Non- Pledged  -    -   

4.6 Loans and advances to B/FIs
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Loan to Microfinance Institutions  1,343,060,344  971,649,694 

Other  -    -   

Less: Allowances for Impairment  (15,691,709)  (12,613,303)

Total  1,327,368,635  959,036,391 

Note: The above amount represents provided to Microfinance Institutions in the normal course of  business, which 
includes accured interest amounting to Rs. 35,417,919.	
	

4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Balance as at Shrawan 1  12,613,303  12,917,218 
Impairment Loss for the Year:
Charge for the Year  -    -   

Recoveries/Reversal  3,078,406  (303,915)

Amount Written off  -    -   

Balance as at Ashadh End  15,691,709  12,613,303 

4.7 Loans and Advances to Customers
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Loans and Advances Measured at Amortized  14,586,508,837  11,730,280,875 

Less: Impairment Allowances

Individual Impairment  (587,210,862)  (439,272,601)

Portfolio Impairment  -     -    

Net Amount  13,999,297,975  11,291,008,274 
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Loan and Advances Measured at FVTPL  -    -   

Total  13,999,297,975  11,291,008,274 

4.7.1 Analysis of  Loan and Advances  - By Product	
       	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Product
Term Loans  3,909,016,736  1,976,389,926 

Overdraft  774,165,234  379,558,320 

Trust Receipt/Import Loans

Demand and Other Working Capital Loans  618,214,825  642,511,727 

Personal Residential Loans  4,097,780,672  3,184,351,981 

Real Estate Loans  1,093,279,452  1,241,820,961 

Margin Lending Loans  776,466,310  541,015,551 

Hire Purchase Loans  125,458,796  163,507,011 

Deprived Sector Loans  485,402,714  835,654,241 

Bills Purchased  -    -   

Staffs Loans  175,994,474  203,326,532 

Other  2,346,810,099  2,373,028,120 

Sub-Total  14,402,589,312  11,541,164,369 
Interest Receivable  183,919,525  189,116,505 

Total  14,586,508,837  11,730,280,875 

4.7.2 Analysis of  Loan and Advances  - By Currency	       
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Nepalese Rupee  14,586,508,837  11,730,280,875 

Indian Rupee  -    -   

United States Dollar  -    -   

Great Britain Pound  -    -   

Euro  -    -   

Japanese Yen  -    -   

Chinese Yuan  -    -   

Other  -    -   

Total  14,586,508,837  11,730,280,875 

4.7.3 Analysis of  Loan and Advances - By Collateral	        
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Secured
Moveable/Immoveable Assets  12,741,220,651  10,018,253,921 

Non Governmental Securities  776,466,310  541,015,561 

Gold and Silver  -    -   
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Guarantee of Domestic BFIs  -    -   

Government Guarantee  -    -   

Guarantee of International Rated Bank  -    -   

Collateral of Export Document  -    -   

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt  124,873,994  234,873,511 

Collatereal of Government Securities  -    -   

Institutional Guarantee  -    -   

Counter Guarantee  -    -   

Personal Guarantee  583,960,651  539,250,134 

Other Collateral  359,987,231  396,887,748 

Sub Total  14,586,508,837  11,730,280,875 

Unsecured  -    -   

Total  14,586,508,837  11,730,280,875 

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment	        
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Specific Allowances for Impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1  439,272,601  347,839,464 
Impairment Loss for the Year:  147,938,262  91,433,137 

Charge for the Year  147,938,262  91,433,137 

Recoveries/Reversal During the Year  -    -   

Write- offs  -    -   

Exchange Rate Variance on Foreign Currency  -    -   

Other Movement  -    -   

Balance at Ashadh End  587,210,862  439,272,601 
Collective Allowances for Impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment Loss for the Year:  -    -   

Charge/(Reversal) for the Year  -    -   

Exchange Rate Variance on Foreign Currency  -    -   

Other Movement  -    -   

Balance at Ashadh End  -    -   
Total Allowances for Impairment  587,210,862  439,272,601 

4.8 Investment in Securities
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Investment Securities Designated at FVTPL  -     -    

Investment Securities Measured at Amortized Cost  3,936,766,450  2,532,181,595 

Investment in Equity Measured at FVTOCI  195,852,641  64,970,784 

Total  4,132,619,091  2,597,152,379 
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4.8.1 Investment in Securities Measured at Amortized Cost
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Debt Securities  181,968   -    

Government Bond  1,869,265,900  1,898,067,895 

Government Treasury Bills  1,067,318,582  634,113,700 

Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds  -    -   

Nepal Rastra Bank Deposit Instruments  1,000,000,000  -   

Other  -    -   

Less: Specific Allowances for Impairment  -    -   

Total  3,936,766,450  2,532,181,595 

4.8.2 Investment in Equity Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Equity Instrument
Quoted Equity Securities  193,074,609  28,675,284 

Unquoted Equity Securities  2,960,000  36,295,500 

Total  196,034,609  64,970,784 

4.8.3 Information Relating to Investment in Equities
	

Particulars
31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

 Cost   Fair Value  Cost   Fair Value 
Investment in Quoted Mutual Funds
"Sanima Growth Fund  
(111,780 Units of Rs.9.82 Each)"

  1,097,733   1,133,449   1,097,732.91   1,116,682.20 

"NIBL Growth Fund  
(100,000 Units of Rs.10 Each)"

  1,000,000   1,064,000   1,000,000.00   1,064,000.00 

"Sunrise Focused Equity Fund  
(107,100 Units of Rs.9.88 Each)"

  2,041,926   1,719,680   1,057,718.14   1,036,728.00 

"Prabhu Smart Fund  
(602,000 Units of Rs.9.73 Each)"

  8,932,721   8,767,203   5,858,608.01   5,959,800.00 

"NIC Asia Select Fund 30  
(270,408 Units of Rs.8.49 Each)"

  2,296,600   2,595,917   2,296,600.11   2,430,967.92 

RBB Mutual Fund 1  
(3,400 Units of Rs.7.52 Each)

  2,242,684   2,263,584   25,561.12   27,472.00 

Nabil Equity Fund  
(56,127 Units of Rs.9.54 Each)

  -     -     535,186.98   539,380.47 

Kumari Equity Fund  
(158,825 Units of Rs.8.79 Each)

  1,395,783   1,534,250   1,395,782.91   1,615,250.25 

NMB Sulav Investment Fund 2  
(41675 Units of Rs. 9.46 Each)

  2,897,728   2,937,269   394,069.82   416,333.25 
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Sunrise Bluechip Fund  
(25,600 Units of Rs.7.63 Each)

  195,385   211,712   195,385.26   200,960.00 

Sunrise First Mutual Fund  
(71,450 Units of Rs.10.7 Each)

  34,709,374   31,934,677   764,179.44   791,666.00 

Prabhu Select Fund  
(553,911 Units of Rs.8.93 Each)

  10,745,910   11,690,836   4,944,090.30   4,902,112.35 

NMB 50  
(51,700 Units of Rs.10.73 Each)

  554,922   519,068   554,921.87   542,850.00 

NIC Asia Flexi CAP Fund  
(57,301 Units of Rs.8.48 Each)

  485,749   530,034   485,748.74   582,751.17 

NIC Asia Balance Fund  
(209,953 Units of Rs.9.16 Each)

  1,922,876   2,015,549   1,922,876.25   1,958,861.49 

Laxmi Unnati Kosh  
(194,030 Units of Rs.9.05 Each)

  1,756,469   1,746,270   1,756,469.45   1,821,941.70 

NIC Asia Growth Fund  
(131,950 Units of Rs.9.99 Each)

  1,318,416   1,306,305   1,318,415.73   1,357,765.50 

Global IME Balanced Fund 1  
(14,970 Units of Rs.8.61 Each)

  128,888   136,227   128,887.75   139,819.80 

Nabil Balanced Fund 2  
(138,085 Units of Rs.8.75 Each)

  1,208,678   1,242,765   1,208,677.64   1,215,148.00 

Kumari Dhanbriddi Yojana  
(95,099 Units of Rs.9.08 Each)

  863,575   919,607   863,574.89   954,793.96 

Citizens Mutual Fund 1 
(2,713,155 units of Rs. 8.31 Each)

 22,548,501.38   26,154,814   -     -   

Himalayan 80-20  
(1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 Each)

 10,000,000.00   9,990,000   -     -   

Kumari Sabal Yojana 
750,000 units of Rs 10 Each)

 7,500,000.00   7,500,000   -     -   

Laxmi Equity Fund 
330,425 units of Rs 9.52 Each)

 3,146,451.79   3,129,125   -     -   

Laxmi Value Fund II 
500,000 units of 10 Each)

 5,000,000.00   4,620,000   -     -   

NIBL Stable Fund 
500,000 units of 10 Each)

 5,000,000.00   5,000,000   -     -   

NICAsia Growth Fund 2 
1,000,000 units of 10 Each)

 10,000,000.00   8,200,000   -     -   

Sanima Equity Fund 
151,000 units of Rs 11.31 Each)

 1,708,543.19   1,647,410   -     -   

Siddhartha Equity Fund 
656,466 units of Rs 9.01 Each)

 5,915,899.65   5,507,750   -     -   

Sanima Large Gap Fund 
489,170 units of Rs 7.96 Each)

 3,893,982.07   4,544,389   -     -   

Investment through PMS  10,000,000.00   10,000,000   -     -   
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NIFRA Urja Rinpatra7%-2085/86 
200 units 909.84 Each)

 181,968.27   177,720   -     -   

Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund 
(200,0000 Units of Rs.10 Each )

  20,000,000   20,000,000   20,000,000.00   20,460,000.00 

Kumari Sunaulo Lagani Yojana  
(250,000 Units of Rs.10 Each )

  2,500,000   2,960,000   2,500,000.00  2,662,500.00 

RBB Mutual Fund 2 
(1,000,000 Units of Rs.10 Each )

  10,000,000   9,500,000   10,000,000.00   10,080,000.00 

Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 3 
(300,000 Units of Rs.10 Each )

  3,000,000   2,835,000   3,000,000.00   3,093,000.00 

Subtotal  196,190,763  196,034,609  63,304,487  64,970,784 

4.9 Current Tax Assets/Liability	
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Current Tax Assets  133,962,782  125,880,773 
Current year Income Tax Assets  133,962,782  125,880,773 

Tax Assets of Prior Periods  -   

Current Tax Liabilities  101,535,512  110,288,401 
Current Year Income Tax Liabilities  101,535,512  110,288,401 

Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods  -    -   

 101,535,512  110,288,401 

Total of  Income Tax Assets/(Liabilities)  32,427,270  15,592,372 

4.10 Investment in Subsidiaries	
	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries  -    -   

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries  -    -   

Total Investment  -    -   
Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Carrying Amount  -    -   

4.10.1 Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
	

Particulars
31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

 Cost   Fair Value  Cost   Fair Value 
…...............................................................Ltd

…...........................shares of Rs…........ Each  -    -    -    -   

…..............................................................Ltd

…...........................shares of Rs….......... Each  -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -   
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4.10.2 Investment In Unquoted Subsidiaries
	

Particulars
31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

 Cost   Fair Value  Cost   Fair Value 
…...............................................................Ltd

…...........................shares of Rs…........ Each  -    -    -    -   

…..............................................................Ltd

…...........................shares of Rs….......... Each  -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -   

4.10.3 Information Relating to Subsidiaries of  the Bank
	

Particulars
Percentage of  Owneship

31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
….................Ltd  -    -    -    -   

….................Ltd  -    -    -    -   

4.10.4: Non Controlling Interest of  the Subsidiaries
	

Particulars
Group

31st Ashadh 2081
Equity Interest Held by NCI (%)  …....... 

Profit (Loss) Allocated During the Year  -   

Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashadh End  -   

Dividend Paid to NCI  -   
 -   

31st Ashadh 2080
Equity Interest Held by NCI (%)  -   

Profit (Loss) Allocated During the Year  -   

Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashadh End  -   

Dividend Paid to NCI  -   

4.11 Investment in Associates
	

Particulars
31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

 Cost   Fair Value  Cost   Fair Value 
Investment in Quoted Associates

Investment in Unquoted Associates  -    -    -    -   

Total Investment
Less: Impairment Allowances  -    -    -    -   

Net Carrying Amount  -    -    -    -   
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4.11.1 Investment in Quoted Associates
	

Particulars
31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

 Cost   Fair Value  Cost   Fair Value 
…...............................................................Ltd

…...........................shares of Rs…........ Each  -    -    -    -   

…...............................................................Ltd

…...........................shares of Rs…........ Each  -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -   

4.11.2 Investment in Unquoted Associates
	

Particulars
31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

 Cost   Fair Value  Cost   Fair Value 
 -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -   

4.11.3 Information Relating to Associates of  the Bank
	

Particulars
 Percentage of  Ownership

31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
 -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -   

4.11.4: Equity Value of  Associates

Particulars  Group 
31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

 -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -   

4.12 Investment Properties

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Investment Properties Measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrwawan 01  25,905,880  25,905,880 

Addition/(Disposal) During the Year  37,614,485  -   

Net Changes in Fair Value During the Year

Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount  63,520,366  25,905,880 
Investment Properties Measured at Cost

Balance as on Shrawan 01  -    -   

Addition/(Disposal) During the Year  -    -   

Adjustment/Transfer  -    -   
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Accumulated Depreciation  -    -   

Accumulated Impairment Loss  -    -   

Net Amount  -    -   
Total  63,520,366  25,905,880 

4.12.1 Detail of  Investment Property

Name and Address of  Borrower Date of  Assuming of  
Non-Banking Assets Total Non-Banking Assets

Raju Prasad Yadav 2081/2/24  1,200,000 

Laxmi Nepali Sarki 2081/2/30  5,000,000 

Pramila Kumari Barai 2081/3/6  3,100,000 

Roman Traders 2081/3/28  8,055,837 

Mamina Darai 2081/3/29  4,917,130 

Masina Damai 2081/3/29  1,735,593 

Durga Dharikar 2081/3/32  2,893,306 

Tulsi Chaudhary 2081/3/31  8,618,399 

Akhilesh Ray Rajput 2081/3/31  2,413,101 

Himalaya Traders 2081/3/31  13,981,373 

Himalaya Thapa Magar 2081/3/31  8,575,627 

Shuva Gangajal Traders 2081/3/31  3,030,000 

Total  63,520,366 
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4.15 Deferred Taxes Assets/(Liabilities)

Particulars Deferred 
Tax Assets

Deferred 
Tax 

Liabilities

31st Ashadh 2080
 Net Deferred 
Tax Assets /
(Liabilities) 

Deferred Tax on Temporary Differences on Following Items:
        Loans and Advances to BFIs  -    -    -   

        Loans and Advances to Customers  -    -    -   

        Investment Properties  -    -    -   

        Investment Securities  -    (499,889)  (499,889)

        Investment in Associates  -    -    -   

        Property and Equipment  (25,157,101)  -    (25,157,101)

        Employees' Defined Benefit Plan  3,552,141  -    3,552,141 

        Employees' Leave Liability  3,400,217  -    3,400,217 

        Lease Liabilities  35,724,665  -    35,724,665 

        Provisions LLP  -    -    -   

        Other Temporary Differences  -    -    -   

Deferred Tax on Temporary Differences  17,519,922  (499,889)  17,020,033 

Deferred Tax on Carry Forward of Unused Tax Losses  -    -    -   

Deferred Tax Due to Changes in Tax Rate  -    -    -   

Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as at End of 2079/80  -    -    17,020,033 
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2079  -    -    13,632,426 

Origination/(Reversal) During the Year  -    -    3,387,606 
Deferred Tax (Expense)/Income Recognized in Profit or Loss  -    -    4,026,856 

Deferred Tax (Expense)/Income Recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income

 -    -    (639,249)

Deferred Tax (Expense)/Income Recognized Directly in 
Equity

 -    -    -   

Particulars Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred 
Tax 

Liabilities

31st Ashadh 2081
 Net Deferred 
Tax Assets /
(Liabilities) 

Deferred Tax on Temporary Differences on Following Items:  -    -    -   
        Loans and Advances to BFIs  -    -    -   

        Loans and Advances to Customers  -    -    -   

        Investment Properties  -    -    -   

        Investment Securities  -    546,735  546,735 

        Investment in Associates  -    -    -   

        Property and Equipment  (30,374,882)  -    (30,374,882)

        Employees' Defined Benefit Plan  3,584,628  -    3,584,628 

        Employees' Leave Liability  3,255,244  -    3,255,244 

        Lease Liabilities  41,829,134  -    41,829,134 

        Provisions LLP  -    -    -   

        Lease Under NFRS  -    -    -   

        Other Temporary Differences  -   

Deferred Tax on Temporary Differences  18,294,124  546,735  18,840,859 
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Deferred Tax on Carry Forward of Unused Tax Losses  -    -    -   

Deferred Tax Due to Changes in Tax Rate  -    -    -   
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as at End of 2080/81  -    -    18,840,859 

Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as at Shrawan 1, 2080  -    -    17,020,033 
Origination/(Reversal) During the Year  -    -    1,820,826 

Deferred Tax (Expense)/Income Recognized in Profit or Loss  -    -    1,274,091 
Deferred Tax (Expense)/Income Recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income

 -    -    546,735 

Deferred Tax (Expense)/Income Recognized Directly 
in Equity

 -   

4.16 Other Assets

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Assets Held for Sale  -    -   

Other Non-Banking Assets  -    -   

Bills Receivable  -    -   

Accounts Receivable  1,872,537  12,741,799 

Accrued Income  -    -   

Prepayments and Deposits  29,618,103  9,398,056 

Income Tax Deposit  -    -   

Deferred Employee Expenditure  183,880,465  72,985,726 

Others  11,274,902  4,005,517 

Stationery Stock  3,141,142  4,005,517 

Commission Receivable  -     -    

Deposit  -     -    

Other  8,133,760   -    

Total  226,646,007  99,131,097 

4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Money Market Deposits   -      -    

Interbank Borrowing  -    -   

Other Deposits from BFIs  1,204,819,219  1,124,170,620 

Settlement and Clearing Accounts  -    -   

Other Deposits from BFIs  -    -   

Total  1,204,819,219  1,124,170,620 
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4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Refinance from NRB  -    -   

Standing Liquidity Facility  -    -   

Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB  -     -    

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements  -     -    

Other Payable to NRB 603,662,927  195,678,864 

Total  603,662,927  195,678,864 

4.19 Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Held for Trading
    Interest Rate Swap  -    -   

    Currency Swap  -    -   

    Forward Exchange Contracts  -    -   

    Others  -    -   

Held for Risk Management
    Interest Rate Swap  -    -   

    Currency Swap  -    -   

    Forward Exchange Contracts  -    -   

    Others  -    -   

Total  -    -   

4.20 Deposits from Customers

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Institutions Customers  5,346,989,689  3,080,986,159 
   Term Deposits  4,303,067,183  2,235,878,766 

   Call Deposits  927,692,007  845,059,893 

   Current Deposits  116,183,000  -   

   Other  47,500  47,500 

Individual Customers  11,066,528,710  9,660,309,453 
   Term Deposits  8,570,149,280  7,757,672,861 

   Saving Deposits  2,429,660,230  1,900,898,583 

   Current Deposits  65,995,460  -   

   Other  723,740  1,738,010 

Total 16,413,518,399  12,741,295,612 
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4.20.1 Currency wise Analysis of  Deposit form Customers

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Nepalese Rupee  16,413,518,399  12,741,295,612 

Indian Rupee  -    -   

United State dollar  -    -   

Great Britain pound  -    -   

Euro  -    -   

Japenese yen  -    -   

Chinese Yuan  -    -   

Other  -    -   

Total  16,413,518,399  12,741,295,612 

4.21 Borrowings

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government  -    -   

Other Institutions  -    -   

Other  -    -   

Sub Total  -    -   

Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions  -    -   

Multilateral Development Banks  -    -   

Other Institutions  -    -   

Sub Total  -    -   

Total  -    -   

4.22 Provisions

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Provisions for Redundancy 

Provision for Restructuring  -    -   

Pending Legal Issues and Tax Litigation  -    -   

Onerous Contracts  -    -   

Other  -    -   

Total  -    -   



MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

behind your happiness

100

4.22.1 Movement in Provisions

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Balance at Shrawan 1

Provisions Made During the year  -    -   

Provisions Used During the Year  -    -   

Provisions Reversed During the Year  -    -   

Unwind of Discount  -    -   

Balance at  Ashadh end  -    -   

4.23 Other Liabilities

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Liabilities for Emloyees Defined Benefit 
Obligations

 11,948,761  11,840,471 

Liabilities for Emloyees Defined Contribution 
Obligations

 -    -   

Liabilities for Leave  10,850,814  11,334,055 

Short Term Employee Benefits  -    -   

Bills Payable  -    -   

Creditors and Accruals  55,958,788  17,877,104 

Interest Payable on Deposits  2,800,998  1,524,091 

Interest Payable on Borrowing  22,822,667  22,822,667 

Liabilities on Defered Grant Income  -    -   

Unpaid Dividend  -    -   

Liabilities Under Finance Lease  139,430,446  119,082,216 

Employee Bonus Payable  36,097,422  39,260,308 

Other Liabilities  15,761,217  13,732,062 

Audit Fee Payable  557,500  401,400 

TDS Payable  15,203,717  13,188,585 

Others  -    142,077 

Total  295,671,113  237,472,974 
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4.23.1 Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Present Value of Non-funded Obligations  11,948,761  11,840,471 

Total Present Value of Obligations  11,948,761  11,840,471 

Fare Value of Plan Assets  -    -   

Present Value of Net Obligations  11,948,761  11,840,471 

Recognized Liability for Defined Benefit Obligations  11,948,761  11,840,471 

4.23.2 Plan Assets

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Equity Securities  -    -   

Government bonds  -    -   

Bank deposit  -    -   

Other  -    -   

Total  -    -   

4.23.3 Movement in the Present Value of  Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1  11,840,471  9,231,067 

Actuarial Losses/ (Gain)  -    (464,534)

Benefits Paid by the Plan  (5,362,841)  (591,266)

Current Service Cost and Interest  5,471,130  3,665,204 

Defined Benefit Obligations at Ashadh End  11,948,761  11,840,471 

4.23.4 Movement in the Fair Value of  Plan Assets

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Shrawan 1  -    -   

Contributions Paid into the Plan  -    -   

Benefit Paid During the Year  -    -   

Actuarial (Losse)/ Gain  -    -   

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Fair Value of  Plan Assets at Ashadh End  -    -   

4.23.5 Amount Recognized in Profit or Loss

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Current Service cost  4,405,488  2,866,194 

Interest on Obligation  1,065,642  799,010 

Expected Return on Plan Assets  -    -   

Total  5,471,130  3,665,204 
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4.23.6 Amount Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Actual (Gain)/Loss  -    (464,534)

Total  -    (464,534)

4.23.7 Acturial Assumptions

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Discount Rate 9.00% 9.00%

Exepected Return on Plan Asset  -    -   

Future Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

Withdrawal Rate   -    -   

4.24 Debt Secutities Issued

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Debt Securities Issued Designated as at Fair Value through Profit 
or Loss

 -    -   

Debt Securities Issued at Amortised Cost  500,000,000  500,000,000 

Total  500,000,000  500,000,000 

4.25 Subordinate Liabilities

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Redeemable Preference Shares  -    -   

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares (Liabilities 
Component)

 -    -   

Other  -    -   

Total  -    -   

4.26 Share Capital

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Ordinary Shares 1,351,552,849 1,351,552,849

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component)   -     -   

Irredemable Preference Shares (Equity Component)   -     -   

Perpetual Debt (Equity Component Only)   -     -   

Calls in Advance in Ordinary Shares   -     -   

Total 1,351,552,849 1,351,552,849
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4.26.1 Share Capital Detail

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Authorised Capital

13,600,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each  1,360,000,000  1,000,000,000 

Issued Capital

13,515,528.4880 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 79/80) 1,351,552,849

13,515,528.4880 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 80/81) 1,351,552,849

Suscribed and Paid up Capital

13,515,528.4880 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 79/80) 1,351,552,849

13,515,528.4880 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 80/81) 1,351,552,849

Total 1,351,552,849 1,351,552,849

4.26.2 Ordinary Share Ownership
	

Particulars
31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

% Holding Amount % Holding Amount
Domestic ownership 100.00% 1,351,552,849 100.00%  1,351,552,849 
Nepal Government   -     -     -     -   

"A" Class Licenced Institutions   -     -     -     -   

Other Licenced Institutions   -     -     -     -   

Other Institutions & Individuals 5.62%  75,957,270 5.62%  75,957,270 

Public 94.38%  1,275,595,579 94.38%  1,275,595,579 

Other  -    -    -    -   

Foreign Ownership  -    -    -    -   
Total 100.00%  1,351,552,849 100.00%  1,351,552,849 

4.27 Reserves

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Statutory General Reserve  359,480,590  314,557,517 

Exchange Equilisation Reserve

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve  15,327,093  13,089,750 

Capital Redemption Reserve  166,666,666  166,666,666 

Regulatory Reserve  151,162,835  140,511,831 

Investment Adjustment Reserve  -    -   

Capital Reserve  -    -   

Assets Revaluation Reserve  -    -   

Fair Value Reserve  (109,308)  1,166,408 

Dividend Equalisation Reserve  -    -   

Debenture Redemption Reserve  -    -   

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve  (3,017,427)  (3,017,427)
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Special Reserve  -    -   

Other Reserve  185,598  -   

Total  689,696,048  632,974,746 

4.28 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Contingent Liabilities  800,000  300,000 

Undrawn and Undisbursed Facilities  -    -   

Capital Commitment  -    -   

Lease Commitment  -    -   

Litigation  -    -   

Total  800,000  300,000 

4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Acceptance and Documentary Credit  -    -   

Bills for Collection  -    -   

Forward Exchange Contracts  -    -   

Guarantees  800,000  300,000 

Underwriting Commitment  -    -   

Other Commitments  -    -   

Total  800,000  300,000 

4.28.2: Undrawn and Undisbursed Facilities

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Undisbursed Amount of Loans  -    -   

Undrawn Limits of Overdrafts  -    -   

Undrawn Limits of Credit Cards  -    -   

Undrawn Limits of Letter of Credit  -    -   

Undrawn Limits of Guarantee  -    -   

Total  -    -   

4.28.3: Capital Commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of  the bank but provision has not been made in financial 
statements

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Capital Commitments in Relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and Contracted for  -    -   

Approved but not Contracted for  -    -   

Sub Total  -    -   

Capital Commitments in Relation to Intangible assets
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Approved and Contracted for  -    -   

Approved but not Contracted for  -    -   

Sub Total  -    -   

Total  -    -   

4.28.4: Lease Commitments

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Operating Lease Commitments  -    -   

"Future Minimum Lease Payments under Non-cancellable  
Operating Lease, Where the Bank is Lessee"

 -    -   

Not Later than 1 year  -    -   

Later than 1 Year but not Later than 5  Years  -    -   

Later than 5 Years  -    -   

Sub Total  -    -   
Finance Lease Commitments

Future Minimum Lease Payments Under Non-cancellable 
Operating Lease, Where the Bank is Lessee

Not Later than 1 year  -    -   

Later than 1 Year but not Later than 5 Years  -    -   

Later than 5 Years  -    -   

Sub Total  -    -   
Grand Total  -    -   

4.28.5: Litigation

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Contingent Tax Liabilities  -    -   

4.29  Interest Income

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Cash and Cash Equivalent  6,679,602  23,423,213 

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  -    -   

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions  -    -   

Loan and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions  174,199,225  138,650,139 

Loans and Advances to Customers  1,804,512,949  1,717,367,010 

Investment Securities  250,963,418  207,400,847 

Loan and Advances to Staff  30,407,970  24,214,937 

Other Interest Income  -    -   

Less: Interest Refund to Customer  -    -   

Total  2,266,763,164  2,111,056,147 
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4.30 Interest Expense

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions  -    -   

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  -    -   

Deposits from Customers  1,468,289,292  1,344,184,009 

Borrowing  1,491,644  18,493,717 

Debt Securities Issued  47,500,000  47,500,001 

Subordinated Liabilities  -    -   

Other Charges  -    -   

Total  1,517,280,936  1,410,177,727 

4.31 Fees and Commission Income

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Loan Administration Fees  -    -   

Service Fees  78,305,480  50,564,602 

Consortium Fees  -    -   

Commitment Fees  -    -   

DD/TT/Swift Fees  -    -   

Credit Card/ATM Issuance and Renewal Fees  -    -   

Renewal Fees  -    -   

Prepayment and Swap Fees  -    -   

Investment Banking Fees  -    -   

Asset Management Fees  -    -   

Brokerage Fees  -    -   

Remittance Fees  -    -   

Commission On Letter of Credit  -    -   

Commission On Guarantee Contracts Issued  -    -   

Commission On Share Underwriting/Issue  -    -   

Locker Rental  -    -   

Other Fees and Commision Income  9,287,675  7,115,633 

Total Fees And Commission Income  87,593,155  57,680,235 

4.31.1 Other Fees and Commission Income

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Bancassurance Commission  154,219  352,771 

DTB Income  3,296,247  2,126,292 

Other Commission  85,574  238,267 

Other Income  5,751,635  4,398,303 

Total  9,287,675  7,115,633 
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4.32 Fees and Commission Expense

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
ATM Management Fees  -    -   

Visa/Master Card Fees  -    -   

Guarantee Commission  -    -   

Brokerage  -    -   

Dd/TT/Swift Fees  -    -   

Remittance Fees and Commission  -    -   

Other Fees and Commission Expense  -    -   

Total  -    -   

4.33 Net Trading Income

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Changes in Fair Value of Trading Assets  -    -   

Gain/Loss on Disposal of Trading Assets  -    -   

Interest Income on Trading Assets  -    -   

Dividend Income on Trading Assets  -    -   

Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transation  -    -   

Other  -    -   

Net Trading Income  -    -   

4.34 Other Operating Income

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Foreign Exchange Revauation Gain  -     -   

Gain/Loss on Sale of Investment Securities  215,693   1,317 

Fair Value Gain/Loss on Investment Properties  -     -   

Dividend on Equity Instruments  8,189,002   -   

Gain/Loss on Sale of Property and Equipment  1,164,096   43,525 

Gain/Loss on Sale of Investment Property  594,000   -   

Operating Lease Income  -     -   

Gain/Loss on Sale of Gold and Silver  -     -   

Other Operating Income  811,306   -   

Total  10,974,098   44,842 

4.35 Impairment Charge/(Reversal) for Loan and Other Losses

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Impairment Charge/(Reversal) on Loan and Advances to BFIs  3,078,406  (303,915)

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) on Loan and Advances to 
Customers

 147,938,262  91,433,137 
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Impairment Charge/(Reversal) on Financial Investment  -    -   

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) on Placement with BFIs  -    -   

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) on Property and Equipment  -    -   

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) on Goodwill and Intangible Assets  -    -   

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) on Investment Properties  -    -   

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) on Other Assets  -   

Receivables  258,264  759,216 

Total  151,274,932  91,888,438 

4.36 Personnel Expenses

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Salary  101,375,065  73,305,580 

Allowances  40,938,288  31,204,629 

Gratuity Expense  5,471,130  3,665,204 

Provident Fund  7,952,083  6,161,419 

Uniform  -    -   

Training & Development Expense  2,949,709  3,143,767 

Leave Encashment  6,633,290  5,420,209 

Medical  7,300,095  5,768,337 

Insurance  -    -   

Employees Incentive  -    -   

Cash-Settled Share-Based Payments  -    -   

Pension Expense  -    -   

Finance Expense Under NFRS  2,997,100  5,724,638 

Other Expenses Related to Staff  14,519,260  18,796,379 

Sub Total  190,136,020  153,190,162 
Employees Bonus  36,097,421  39,260,308 

Total  226,233,440  192,450,470 

4.36.1 Finance Expense Under NFRS

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Finance Expense of Exit Loan  1,154,575  106,117 

Finance Expense of Continued Loan  841,348  4,825,019 

Finance Expense of New Loan  1,001,178  793,503 

Total  2,997,100  5,724,638 
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4.36.2 Other Expenses Related to Staff

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Staff Exellance Award  1,834,464  2,500 

Other Staff Cost  1,637,534  2,608,521 

Refreshment  3,548,191  1,750,891 

Leave Travel Allowance  6,927,571  5,162,096 

Travelling & Daily Allowance  1,958,000  1,001,250 

Total  15,905,760  10,525,257 

4.37 Other Operating Expenses

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Directors' Fee  2,296,000  2,566,000 

Directors' Expense  46,945  80,320 

Auditors' Remuneration  565,000  406,800 

Other Audit Related Expense  48,565  12,488 

Professional and Legal Expense  255,177  369,500 

Office Administration Expense (4.37 A)  59,166,008  65,716,413 

Operating Lease Expense  -    -   

Operating Expense of Investment Properties  -    -   

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense  8,811  206,188 

Onerous Lease Provisions  -    -   

Finance Expense Under Lease  7,956,900  6,843,275 

Other Expenses  7,490,785  -   

Total  77,834,191  76,200,984 

4.37 A Office Administration Expenses

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Water & Electricity  6,947,303  6,691,739 

Repair & Maintenance  3,936,639  3,701,364 

      (a) Building  -    -   

      (b) Vehicle  1,343,485  1,052,747 

      (c) Computer & Accessories  -    3,120 

      (d) Office Equipment & Furniture  1,015,386  398,254 

      (e) Others  1,577,768  2,247,242 

Insurance  5,978,318  5,141,469 

Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax  7,473,196  7,074,878 

Printing & Stationery  5,150,661  3,592,323 

Newspapers, Books & Journals  32,180  43,695 

Advertisements  2,312,562  8,682,317 

Donation  61,000  500 
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Security Expenses  10,511,967  10,485,722 

Deposit & Loan Guarantee Premium  -    -   

Travel Allowance & Expenses  2,690,876  2,029,873 

Entertainment  277,521  304,278 

Annual/Special General Meeting Expenses  828,756  637,026 

Other  -   

Fuel Expenses  4,724,843  4,114,878 

Annual Fee  1,645,708  2,994,584 

Other Office Expense  6,594,479  10,221,768 

Total  59,166,008  65,716,413 

4.38 Depreciation and Amortisation

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Depreciation on Property and Equipment  43,259,279  44,196,057 

Depreciation on Investment Property  -    -   

Amortization of Intangible Assets  646,357  524,779 

Total  43,905,637  44,720,836 

4.39 Non Operating Income

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Recovery of Loan Written off  -    -   

Other Income  -    -   

Total  -    -   

4.40 Non Operating Expense

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Loan Written Off  14,943,943  -   

Redundancy Provision  -    -   

Expense of Restructuring  -    -   

Other Expense  8,980,554  -   

Total  23,924,497  -   
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4.41 Income Tax Expenses

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Current Tax Expenses  101,535,512  110,370,458 
Current Year  101,535,512  110,370,458 

Adjustment for Prior Years  -    -   

Deferred Tax Expenses  (1,274,091)  (4,026,856)
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences  (1,274,091)  (4,026,856)

Change in Tax Rate

Recognition of Previously Unrecognized Tax Losses  -    -   

Total  100,261,421  106,343,603 

4.41.1: Reconciliation of  Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Profit Before Tax  324,876,785  353,342,769 

Tax Amount at the Rate of 30%  97,463,035  106,002,831 

Add: Tax Effect of the Expenses that are not Deductible for Tax 
Purpose

 4,072,476  4,367,628 

Less: Tax Effect on Exempt Income  -    -   

Add/Less: Tax Effect on other Items  -    -   

Total  101,535,512  110,370,458 
Effective Tax Rate 31.25% 31.24%
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5.1 	Risk Management
	 In compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive on 6 "Corporate Governance", the Board of Finance Com-

pany has established a Risk Management Committee with clear terms of reference. As at the date of this 
report, the Finance Company's Risk Management Committee comprised of the following: 

S.N. Members of Risk Management Committee Designation

1 Mr. Dipak Thapa Director, Coordinator

3 Mr. Ram Hari Sharma Director, Member

4 Chief Operating Officer Member

5 Chief Risk Officer Member-Secretary

	 The Committee meets eleven times during the fiscal year. The committee oversees and reviews the fundamen-
tal prudential risks including operational, credit, market, reputational, capital and liquidity risk etc. 

	 The responsibilities of Risk Management Committee are as follows: 
a.	 Formulate policies and guidelines for identification, measurement, monitoring and control all major risk 

categories. 
b.	 Ensuring the Finance Company has clear, comprehensive, and well documented policies and procedure. 
c.	 Defining the Finance Company's overall risk tolerance in relation to credit risk.
d.	 Ensuring that Finance Company's significant risks exposure is maintained at prudent levels and consistent 

with the available capital.

	 Apart from Board Level Risk Management Committee the other committees and groups as mentioned below 
supports for Overall Risk Management. 

i) 	 Risk Governance
	 Risk management committee of the Finance Company has formed to review the credit risk, market risk and 

liquidity risk of the Finance. Apart from this the Finance Company has formed the Assets Liability Commit-
tee (ALCO) to monitor Liquidity risk as well as market risk and Anti-Money Laundering Prevention com-
mittee (AML) to monitor the operational risk. The committee and subcommittee has effectively discharged 
their duties & responsibility. 

	 Risk management committee analyse the Stress testing of the Finance Company as required by Nepal Rastra 
Bank and its impact and corrective action to mitigate the risk. 

	 Through its risk management framework, the Finance Company seeks to efficiently manage credit, market 
and liquidity risks which arise directly through the Finance Company's commercial activities as well as oper-
ational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking. 
As part of this framework, the Finance Company uses a set of principles that describe its risk management 
culture. The Finance has developed Risk Management Policy to manage Credit risk, Market risk and liquidity 
risk. 

Manjushree Finance Limited
DISCLOSURES & ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

As on 31st Ashadh, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
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	 The major risk areas and mitigation mechanism is as given below:

1) 	 Credit Risk
	 Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of counterparty to meet its obligations to pay the Finance 

Company in accordance with agreed terms. 

	 A standardized loan application forms has been in use for facilitating collection and analysis of all the 
relevant data for evaluating credit worthiness and proper evaluation of the credit risk of the prospective bor-
rower. The factors considered in evaluating loan applications normally included prospects of the business, 
management of the firm/company, financial analysis- income statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement, 
key financial indicators, key risk and mitigates. Further, inspection and supervision are also conducted before 
approval of the loan for pre-analysis and after the disbursement of loan as well for monitoring the utilization 
of loan.

2) 	 Operational Risk
	 Operational risk is the prospect of loss of resulting from inadequate or failed procedures, systems or policies, 

employee errors, system failures, fraud or other criminal activity, any event that disrupts business processes. 

	 For the control of operational risk of institution, it has Financial Administration Policy, Employee Bylaws, 
Operational manual, AML, KYC & CFT policy, and Guidelines for AML, KYC & CFT, Suspicious Transac-
tion identification Procedure, politically exposed person identification procedure, which guides the day to 
day operation.

	 Each risk control owner is responsible for identifying risks that are material and for maintaining an effective 
control environment across the organization. Risk control owners have responsibility for the control of oper-
ational risk arising from the management of the following activities: External Rules & Regulations, Liability, 
Legal Enforceability, Damage or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety & Security, Internal Fraud or Dishonesty, 
External Fraud, Information Security, Processing Failure, and Model. Operational risks can arise from all 
business lines and from all activities carried out by the Finance Company. 

3) 	 Market Risk
	 Risks arising out of adverse movements in interest rates and equity prices are covered under Market Risk 

Management. Market Risk is the potential for loss of earnings or economic value due to adverse changes in 
financial market rates or prices. Institution exposure to market risk arises principally from customer driven 
transactions. 

4) 	 Liquidity Risk
	 Liquidity risk is the potential that the Finance Company either does not have sufficient liquid financial 

resources available to meet all its obligations as they fall due or can only access these financial resources at 
excessive cost. 

5) 	 Reputational Risk
	 Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from damages to reputation of institution, in lost revenue; in-

creased operating, capital or regulatory costs; or destruction of shareholder value. 

	 Reputational risk is managed by the management committee which are responsible for protecting the institu-
tion’s reputation locally and has the responsibility to ensure that the Finance Company does not undertake 
any activities that may cause material damage to the reputation of institution.
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6)	 Employee Benefit Risk
	 Employee benefit risk is the potential risk of loss due to having to meet shortfall in the Finance Company's 

defined benefits gratuity and leave encashment schemes. 

	 The gross obligation for gratuity is calculated considering the salary at the time of retirement of the individ-
ual staff and number of years’ service with the finance. The home leave can be accumulated for maximum 
period of 60 days for total period served by individual staff. The gross obligation for leave encashment is 
calculated considering the last drawn salary multiplied by no of eligible days for leave encashment.

7)	 Internal Control
	 The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activities in a man-

ner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause 
loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience 
to external events. To achieve this, the Board has adopted policies and procedures of risk identification, risk 
evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.  

	 The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Commit-
tees, Management, and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the Finance 
Company's system of internal control during the year and provided feedback to the Board as appropriate. 
The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control 
structures across the Company through its program of business/unit audits. Internal Audit reports are quar-
terly forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief Executive Offi-
cer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.  

8)	 Any Other Risk
	 Compliance Risk
	 Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, material financial loss, or loss to reputation due 

to failure to comply with laws, rules and standards.

	 MFL is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of accountability, transparency 
and business ethics. The Finance Company aims at a zero tolerance of misconduct and corruption. 

	 Strategic Risk
	 Strategic risk is the risk in achieving Finance Company's strategic objectives, both from internal and external 

events and scenarios which prevent from achieving strategic objectives.

	 Interest Rate Risk
	 Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to interest rate adjust-

ment within a specified period. 

	 AML/CFT Risk
	 AML/CFT risk is related with providing financial services to money launders and terrorists for channelling 

of money derived from crime or aimed at funding terrorism.

	 The strictness of the provisions made in laws and directives reflect the seriousness of this issue; non-compli-
ance of which may cause significant reputational risk as well as may result in adverse consequences.

	 A Board level committee namely, AML/CFT Committee has been formed as required by the NRB Directives. 
Furthermore, a separate AML, KYC & CFT Unit is established which looks after the effective implementation 
and compliance of AML, KYC & CFT related prevailing Acts, Rules and Directives.
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5.2 Capital Management
5.2.1 Qualitative Disclosures
	 The Finance Company has maintained the capital adequacy as per Capital adequacy framework, 2007 (Up-

dated July 2008) as required by Nepal Rastra Bank. The main objective of this framework is to develop a 
safe and sound financial system by way of a sufficient amount of qualitative capital and risk management 
practices. The total equity of the Finance Company comprises paid-up capital, statutory reserves and other 
reserves. The Finance Company has subordinate term debt. Core Capital fund and Total Capital Fund as per 
Basel II is 12.87% and 14.32% as at Ashadh End 2081.

	 Assessment of the capital adequacy of the Finance Company is done on a regular basis taking into consid-
eration the exposure of bank. Also, the analysis of possible impact on capital adequacy is being done on 
a regular basis taking into consideration the future impacts on assumptive basis. Capital adequacy of the 
Finance Company and impact in capital due to future change in nature and size of business is discussed in 
Risk Management Committee and is summarized in board. Regular monitoring of the nature of business is 
being done so that unexpected negative impact could not take place in capital adequacy of Finance Compa-
ny. Reporting to the regulatory body is being done as prescribed by the compliance department.

	 The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which requires board 
and senior management oversight, monitoring, reporting, and internal control reviews at regular intervals to 
ensure the alignment of regulatory capital requirement with the true risk profile of the Finance Company and 
thus ensure long-term safety and soundness of the Finance Company. The key components of an effective 
ICAAP are discussed below.

a.	 Board and Senior Management Oversight
	 The Board and senior management are responsible for understanding the nature and level of risk being 

taken by the Finance Company and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for 
ensuring that the formality and sophistication of the risk management processes is commensurate with the 
complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the foundation for an effective as-
sessment of the adequacy of a Finance Company's capital position.

	 The board of directors of the Finance Company is responsible for setting the Finance Company's tolerance 
for risks. The board also ensures that management establishes a mechanism for assessing various risks; devel-
ops a system to relate these risks to the Finance Company's capital level and sets up a method for monitoring 
compliance with internal policies. It is equally important that the board instills strong internal controls and 
thereby an effective control environment through adoption of written policies and procedures and ensures 
that the policies and procedures are effectively communicated throughout the Finance Company.

b.	 Sound Capital Assessment
	 Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. To be able to make a sound 

capital assessment, the Finance Company should, at minimum, have the following: 
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•	 Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the Finance Company identifies, measures, and reports all 
material risks. 

•	 A process that relates capital to the level of risk.
•	 A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the Finance Company's 

strategic focus and business plan and 
•	 A process of internal control, reviews, and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall management process. 

c.	 Comprehensive Assessment of Risk
	 All material risks faced by the Finance Company should be addressed in the capital assessment process. Nepal 

Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely. However, the Finance Company should 
develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. To make a comprehensive assessment of risks, 
the process should, at minimum, address the following forms of risk.
1.	 Credit Risk
2.	 Credit Concentration Risk
3.	 Operational Risk
4.	 Market Risk
5.	 Liquidity Risk

d.	 Monitoring and Reporting 
	 The Finance Company has established an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk exposures and 

assessing how the Finance Company's changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The Finance Compa-
ny's senior management or board of directors, on a regular basis, receives reports on the Finance Company's 
risk profile and capital needs. These reports allow senior management to: 

•	 Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels. 
•	 Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital assessment measurement 

system. 
•	 Determine that the Finance Company holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in compliance 

with established capital adequacy goals; and 
•	 Assess its future capital requirements based on the Finance Company's reported risk profile and make neces-

sary adjustments to the Finance Company's strategic plan accordingly. 

e.	 Internal Control Review
	 The Finance Company's internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment process. Effective 

control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and, where appropriate, the involve-
ment of internal or external audits. The Finance Company's board of directors has a responsibility to ensure 
that management establishes a system for assessing the various risks, develops a system to relate risk to the 
Finance Company's capital level, and establishes a method for monitoring compliance with internal policies. 
The board should regularly verify whether its system of internal controls is adequate to ensure well-ordered 
and prudent conduct of business. The bank should conduct periodic reviews of its risk management process 
to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be reviewed include: 

•	 Appropriateness of the Finance Company's capital assessment process given the nature, scope, and complex-
ity of its activities. 

•	 Identification of large exposures and risk concentrations. 
•	 Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the Finance Company's assessment process. 
•	 Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and 
•	 Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs. 
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5.2.2 Quantitative Disclosures

1. 	 Capital Structure & Capital Adequacy
	 Tier I Capital & Breakdown of Its Components

Particulars Amount (Rs ‘000)
 Paid up Equity Share Capital       1,351,552.85 

 Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares                                -   

 Share Premium                   - 

 Proposed Bonus Equity Shares                                -   

 Statutory General Reserves     359,480.59 

 Retained Earnings   174,925.00 

 Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss)                 - 

 Capital Redemption Reserve            166,666.67

 Capital Adjustment Reserve                               -   

 Dividend Equalization Reserves                                -   

 Other Free Reserve                                -   

 Less: Goodwill                                -   

 Less: Fictitious Assets                               -   

 Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions                                   -   

 Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests                                      -   

 Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits                                      -   

 Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments                                -   

 Less: Reciprocal crossholdings                                 -   

 Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized                               -   

 Less: Other Deductions  -    

Total Tier I Capital 2,052,625.11

	 Tier II Capital & Breakdown of Its Components
Particulars Amount (Rs ‘000)

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share                     -   

Subordinated Term Debt -

Hybrid Capital Instruments                       -   

General Loan Loss Provision (limited to 1.65% of total RWE)         231,113.72  

Exchange Equalization Reserve                     -   

Investment Adjustment Reserve                     -   

Asset Revaluation Reserve                    -   

Other Reserves       - 

Total Tier II Capital 2,283,738.83 
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	 Total Qualifying Capital	
Particulars Amount (Rs ‘000)

Core Capital (Tier I) 2,052,625.11         

Supplementary Capital (Tier II) 231,113.72 

Total Capital Fund 2,283,738.83

	 Capital Adequacy Ratio
	 Tier I and Total Capital Fund of the Finance Company as per Base II as on Ashad 2081 is 12.87% and 14.32% 

of Risk Weighted Exposures.

2. 	 Risk Exposure
	 Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk, Market Risk & Operational Risk

Risk Weighted Exposures Current 
Period

 Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk   14,298,304.82 

 Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk   1,192,070.96 

 Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk  -

Adjustments under Pillar II

ALM policies & practices are not satisfactory, add 1% of net interest income to RWE -

Add .....% of the total deposit due to insufficient Liquid Assets -

Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 2% of gross income  151,720.70 

If overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 2% of RWE  309,807.52 

If desired level of disclosure requirement has not been achieved, Add .....% of RWE -

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II) 15,951,904.00

5.2.3 Compliance With External Requirement
	 The Finance Company, at all times, has complied with the externally imposed capital requirement.

5.3 Classification of  Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities					              

Financial Assets Amortized Cost
Fair Value 

Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Fair Value 
Through Profit 

or Loss
 Total 

Cash in Hand  95,965,428  -    -    95,965,428 

Balances with B/FIs  269,960,837  -    -    269,960,837 

Money at Call and Short Notice  -    -    -    -   

Interbank Placement  -    -    -    -   

Balance at NRB  838,736,447  -    -    838,736,447 

Derivative Financial Instrument  -    -    -    -   

Loans & Advances  15,929,569,181  -    -    15,929,569,181 

Government Bonds  1,869,265,900  -    -    1,869,265,900 
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Government Treasury Bills  1,067,318,582  -    -    1,067,318,582 

Equity Investments  -    196,034,609  -    196,034,609 

Other Assets  31,490,640  -    -    31,490,640 

Total 20,102,307,016  196,034,609  -    20,298,341,624 

Fair Value Through Profit or 
Loss (FVTPL)

Financial Liabilities Amortized Cost  Held for 
Trading 

Designated at 
FVTPL

 Total 

Deposits from Customers  16,413,518,399  -    -    16,413,518,399 

Due to Banks & Financial 
Institutions

 1,204,819,219  -    -    1,204,819,219 

Due to Nepal Rastra Banks  603,662,927  -    -    603,662,927 

Debt Securities  500,000,000  -    -    500,000,000 

Employee Related Liabilities  58,896,997  -    -    58,896,997 

Bills Payable  -    -    -    -   

Creditors and Accruals  55,958,788  -    -    55,958,788 

Interest Payable on Deposit  2,800,998  -    -    2,800,998 

Interest Payable on Borrowing  22,822,667  -    -    22,822,667 

Unpaid Dividend  -    -    -    -   

Liabilities Under Finance Lease  119,082,216  -    -    119,082,216 

Other Liabilities  15,761,217  -    -    15,761,217 

Total 18,997,323,428  -    -    18,997,323,428 

5.4 Operating Segment Information
						    
1. 	 General information						    
a) 	 Factors that management used to identify the entitys reportable segments					   

-Based on geographical segment								      
b) 	 Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues	

- Loan & advances to customer and other anciliary services					   
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3.Reconciliations of  Reportable Segment Revenues, Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities
(a) Revenue

Particulars Amount
Total Revenues for Reportable Segment  2,354,356,319 

Other Revenues  -   

Elimination of Intersegment Revenues  -   

Entity’s Revenues  2,354,356,319 

(b) Profit or Loss
Particulars Amount

Total Profit or Loss for Reportable Segments  324,876,785 

Other Profit or Loss  -   

Elimination of Intersegment Profits  -   

Unallocated Amounts:  -   

Profit before Income Tax  324,876,785 

(c) Assets
Particulars Amount

Total Assets for Reportable Segments  21,215,004,700 

Other Assets  -   

Unallocated Amounts  -   

Entity’s Assets  21,215,004,700 

(d) Liabilities
Particulars Amount

Total Liabilities for Reportable Segments  19,017,671,659 

Other Liabilities  -   

Unallocated Liabilities 

Entity’s Liabilities  19,017,671,659 

	4.Information about Products and Services	
	Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above
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	5.Information about Geographical Areas	
	Revenue from following geographical areas

(A) Domestic Amount
Koshi Province  486,141,394 

Madhesh Province  79,941,200 

Bagmati Province  1,105,137,855 

Gandaki Province  78,346,996 

Lumbini Province  441,865,474 

Sudurpaschim Province  162,923,400 

Sub Total  2,354,356,319 
(B) Foreign Amount

Total  2,354,356,319 

6.Information about Major Customers	
Revenue from a single external customer doesnot exceed 10 percent or more of the entity's revenue	

5.5 Share Options and Share Based Payment	
The financial institution does not have any share option and share based payment.		
		
5.6 Contingent Liabilities and Pending Legal Cases	
Pending Legal Cases	
At the end of Ashadh, 2081, administrative review against the tax assessed by Inland Revenue Office under Section 
101 for F.Y. 2073/74, 2074-75 are 2075-76  are yet to be decided.		
		
Contingent Liabilities
Where the financial institution undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued for 
which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial 
statements as contingent liabilities"	
	
Commitments
Where the financial institution has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf 
of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Bank 
has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statement as 
commitments"	Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are presented in note 4.28	
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5.7 Related Parties Disclosures	 	
Following has been identified as Related Parties for the financial institution under NAS 24 Related Parties:

a. 	Directors
b. 	Key Management Personnel of the Bank
c. 	Relatives of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Directors Directors

Mr. Yadav Adhikari Mr. Yadav Adhikari

Ms. Indira Pandit (Ghimire) Ms. Indira Pandit (Ghimire)

Mr. Suman Prasad Adhikari Mr. Suman Prasad Adhikari

Mr. Satish Gautam Mr. Dil Man Singh Chand

Mr. Ram Hari Sharma Mr. Arun Neupane

Mr. Dipak Thapa Mr. Chinta Mani Gautam

Mr. Arun Neupane Mr. Ram Hari Sharma

Key Managerial Personnel Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Tej Raj Timilsina, CEO Mr. Narayan Subedi, CEO

Mr. Padam Thakulla, DCEO Mr. Tej Raj Timilsina, DCEO

Transaction During the Year	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Directors

Directors Sitting Fees  -    -   

Interest Paid to Directors on Deposits  4,379,459  4,060,021 

Other Directors' Expenses (If Any)  -    -   

Total  4,379,459  4,060,021 

Key Management Personnel

Remuneration and Benefit Paid 11,214,256  16,423,852 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
(a) Mr. Narayan Subedi, CEO (till 2080/09/16) 3,735,340

(b) Mr. Tej Raj Timilsina , CEO (effective from 2080/09/17)  3,338,949 

Deputy Chief Executive Officer (DCEO)
(a)  Mr. Tej Raj Timilsina ( till 2080/09/16)  2,229,541 

(b) Mr. Padam Thakulla (effective from 2080/11/06)  1,910,426 

Post-Retirement Benefits  -    -   

Other Long-term Benefits  -    -   

Borrowing During the Year  15,011,968  -   

Interest on Borrowing  305,099  -   

Interest on Account Balances  239,715  780,991 

Other Transactions Benefits, if Any  -    -   

Total 26,771,039  17,204,843 
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Reporting Date Balances	

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Directors Deposits  65,784,429.33  40,300,917.96 

KMP Deposits  3,483,049.45  10,664,358.99 

Borrowings  -    -   

Other Receivable Payables, if Any  -    -   

Total  69,267,478.78  50,965,276.95 

5.8 Merger and Acquisition	
The financial institution has not undertaken any mergers and acquisition during the year.		
		
5.9 Additional Disclosures of Non-Consolidated Entities	
Not Applicable		
		
5.10 Disclosure Related to ROU Asset and Lease Liability	
As per NFRS-16, the Financial Intitution has recognised the Right to Use Assets and Liability under Finance 
Lease. Right to Use Assets and Liability under Finance Lease is defined as present value of lease rent to be 
paid over the lease term. Right to use Assets( ROU Assets) is shown as discounted value of rent payment after 
deduction of depreciation where as Libilities under Lease revised over the lease period. As per NFRS-16 "Leases", 
The recognisition, impact and maturity  are as presented below:

FY 2080-81		

Particulars  ROU Assets  Liabilities Under Lease 
Recognised at Shrawan 1  113,155,166   119,082,216 

Add  : Addition During the Year  40,055,790   40,055,790 

Less : Depreciation  (17,902,062)   -   

Add  : Interest on Lease  -     7,956,900 

Less : Lease Payment  -     (27,664,460)

Balance on Ashadh End  135,308,894   139,430,446 

FY 2079-80		

Particulars  ROU Assets  Liabilities Under Lease 
Recognised at Shrawan 1  103,481,761   107,258,301 

Add  : Addition During the Year  29,607,194   29,607,194 

Less : Depreciation  (19,933,789)   -   

Add  : Interest on Lease  -     6,843,275 

Less : Lease Payment  -     (24,626,554)

Balance on Ashadh End  113,155,166   119,082,216 
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Maturity of  Lease Liability 	  

Particulars  31st Ashadh 2081  31st Ashadh 2080 
Below 1 Year  -     -   

From 1 Year to 5 Years  98,626,247 81,397,725

Above 5 Years  40,804,199 37,684,491

Total  139,430,446 119,082,216

5.11 Events after Reporting Date	
"The financial institution monitors and assess events that may have potential impact to qualify 
as adjusting and / or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period.  All adjusting 
events are adjusted in the books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material 
events are discloses in the notes with possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable. 
There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to the year end till the signing of these financial 
statements."			 
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Manjushree Finance Limited
COMPARISION OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As on 31st Ashadh, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
NPR 

 As per Unaudited  As per Audited 
31 Ashadh 2081 31 Ashadh 2081 In Amount %

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1                   365,926,264.80                      365,926,265 0                               -
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2                   838,736,447.26                      838,736,447 -                            -

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3                                      -                                       -   -                            -

Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4                                      -                                       -   -                            -
Other Trading Assets 4.5                                      -                                       -   -                            -
Loan and Advances to B/FIs 4.6                1,327,368,635.15                   1,327,368,635 -                            -             

Loans and Advances to Customers  4.7               14,249,009,788.16                  13,999,297,975 249,711,813              1.8             Adjustment of staff loan as per NFRS and
AIR on loans to customers

Investment in Securities 4.8                4,132,619,091.13                   4,132,619,091 -                            -             
Current Tax Assets 4.9                     13,244,722.80                        32,427,270 (19,182,547)               Due to change in profit
Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10                                      -                                       -   -                            -
Investment in Associates 4.11                                      -                                       -   -                            -
Investment Property 4.12                     63,520,365.78                        63,520,366 -                            -

Property and Equipment 4.13                   225,421,699.99                      225,421,700 -                            -             

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14                       3,040,944.85                          3,040,945 -                            -             

Deferred Tax Assets 4.15                     17,747,388.55                        18,840,859 (1,093,471)                 (6.2)            Recalculated

Other Assets 4.16                     45,213,811.00                      226,646,007 (181,432,196)             (401.3)        Adjustment of staff loan as per NFRS and
AIR on customer loans

Total Assets                   21,281,849,159                 21,233,845,560                 48,003,600 

Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17                     1,301,014,750                   1,204,819,219 96,195,531.1              7.4             Regrouping 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18                        603,662,927                      603,662,927 -                            -             
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.19                                      -                                       -   -                            -             
Deposit from Customers 4.20               16,317,800,995.75                  16,413,518,399 (95,717,403.4)            (0.6)            Regrouping
Borrowings 4.21                                      -                                       -   -                            -             
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9                                      -                                       -   -                            -             
Provisions 4.22                                      -                                       -   -                            -             
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.15                                      -                                       -   -                            -             
Other Liabilities                                                                                                                                                           4.23                        278,262,953                      295,671,113 (17,408,159.9)            (6.26)          Regrouping of AIP
Debt Securities Issued 4.24                        523,737,640                      500,000,000 23,737,639.7              4.5             Regrouping of AIP
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25                                      -                                       -   -                            -             
                                                                                                                                                                      -                                -                 -   
Total Liabilities                   19,024,479,266                  19,017,671,659                   6,807,607 

Equity
Share Capital                                                                                                                                                                  4.26                1,351,552,848.80                   1,351,552,849 -                            -             
Share Premium                                      -                                       -   -                            

Retained Earning                        107,618,924                      174,925,005 (67,306,080)               (62.5)          
Due to change in profit, AIR recovered till
Shrawan end (Considered till Shrawan 16th
in unaudited)  and allocation of profit

Reserves 4.27                        798,198,120                      689,696,048                108,502,072 13.6           As above

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 2,257,369,893                   2,216,173,901                  41,195,992                (48.9)         
Non-controlling Interests                                                                                                                                                                                -                                       -                                -   -             
Total Equity                    2,257,369,893                    2,216,173,901                  41,195,992          (48.9)
Total Liabilities and Equity                   21,281,849,158                  21,233,845,561                 48,003,600          (49.9)
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.28 300,000                             300,000                                                        -   -             
Net Assets Value per Share 167.02 163.97                           3.05 1.8            

Manjushree Finance  Limited
Comparision of Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Ashadh 2081

Particulars Notes  Variance  Reasons for Variance 



MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

behind your happiness

128

M
an

ju
sh

re
e 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Li
m

ite
d

CO
M

PA
R

IS
IO

N
 O

F 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

PR
O

FI
T 

O
R

 L
O

SS
A

s 
on

 3
1

st
 A

sh
ad

h,
 2

0
8

1
 (

Ju
ly

 1
5

, 
2

0
2

4
)

 N
PR

 
PP
aarr

ttii
ccuu

llaa
rrss

NN
oott

eess
  AA

ss  
pp
eerr

  UU
nn

aauu
dd
iitt

eedd
  

  AA
ss  

pp
eerr

  AA
uu
dd
iitt

eedd
  

  RR
eeaa

ssoo
nn

ss  
ffoo

rr  
VV

aarr
iiaa

nn
ccee

  
  22

0088
00--

8811
  

  22
0088

00--
8811

  
AA

mm
oouu

nn
tt

%%

In
te

re
st

 I
n
co

m
e

4.
29

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2,
27

2,
59

1,
02

3 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
,2

66
,7

63
,1

64
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 5
,8

27
,8

59
.1

2 
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.2

6 
 D

ue
 t

o 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
of

 s
ta

ff
 l
oa

n
 a

s 
pe

r 
N

FR
S,

 
ch

an
ge

 i
n
 A

IR
 d

ue
 t

o 
ch

an
ge

 i
n
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n
 o

f 
lo

an
s 

In
te

re
st

 E
xp

en
se

4.
30

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 (

1,
51

7,
26

8,
57

4)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,5

17
,2

80
,9

36
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
2,

36
1.

66
 

  
  

  
  

  
(0

.0
0)

 I
n
te

re
st

 o
n
 d

eb
en

tu
re

 
NN

eett
  II

nn
ttee

rree
sstt

  II
nn

ccoo
mm

ee
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
7755

55,,
3322

22,,
4444

99  
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  77
4499

,,44
8822

,,22
2288

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 5

,8
40

,2
20

.7
9 

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.7
7 

 A
s 

ab
ov

e 
Fe

es
 a

n
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 I
n
co

m
e

4.
31

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

87
,5

93
,1

55
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 8

7,
59

3,
15

5 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

Fe
es

 a
n
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

4.
32

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 - 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

NN
eett

  FF
eeee

  aa
nn

dd
  CC

oomm
mm

iiss
ssii

oonn
  II

nn
ccoo

mm
ee

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
8877

,,55
9933

,,11
5555

  
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  88

77,,
5599

33,,
1155

55  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

NN
eett

  II
nn

ttee
rree

sstt
  FF

eeee
  aa

nn
dd
  CC

oomm
mm

iiss
ssii

oonn
  II

nn
ccoo

mm
ee

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

8844
22,,

9911
55,,

6600
44  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  88

3377
,,00

7755
,,33

8833
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 5
,8

40
,2

20
.7

9 
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.6

9 
 A

s 
ab

ov
e 

N
et

 T
ra

di
n
g 

In
co

m
e

4.
33

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 - 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

ti
n
g 

In
co

m
e

4.
34

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
9,

62
5,

19
5 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

0,
97

4,
09

8 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,3
48

,9
02

.1
4)

  
  

  
  

(1
4.

01
)

 D
iv

id
en

d 
fr

om
 m

ut
ua

l 
fu

n
ds

 
TT

oott
aall

  OO
pp
eerr

aatt
iinn

gg  
IInn

ccoo
mm

ee
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
8855

22,,
5544

00,,
7799

99  
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  88
4488

,,00
4499

,,44
8811

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 4

,4
91

,3
18

.6
5 

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.5
3 

 A
s 

ab
ov

e 
Im

pa
ir

m
en

t 
C

h
ar

ge
/(

R
ev

er
sa

l)
 f

or
 L

oa
n
s 

an
d 

O
th

er
 

Lo
ss

es
4.

35
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
91

,6
87

,4
08

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

15
1,

27
4,

93
2 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(5

9,
58

7,
52

3.
16

)
  

  
  

  
(6

4.
99

)
 D

ue
 t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 i

n
 i

m
pa

ir
m

en
t 

ch
ar

ge
 

NN
eett

  OO
pp
eerr

aatt
iinn

gg  
IInn

ccoo
mm

ee
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
7766

00,,
8855

33,,
3399

11  
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  66
9966

,,77
7744

,,55
4499

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 6
4,

07
8,

84
1.

81
 

  
  

  
  

  
 8

.4
2 

 D
ue

 t
o 

ab
ov

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 

OO
pp
eerr

aatt
iinn

gg  
EE

xxpp
eenn

ssee
ss

Pe
rs

on
al

 E
xp

en
se

4.
36

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

29
,9

38
,0

53
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
22

6,
23

3,
44

0 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 3

,7
04

,6
13

.1
4 

  
  

  
  

  
 1

.6
1 

 D
ue

 t
o 

in
te

re
st

 o
n
 s

ta
ff

 l
oa

n
 a

n
d 

ch
an

ge
 i

n
 s

ta
ff

 
bo

n
us

 c
on

si
de

ri
n
g 

ab
ov

e 
ch

an
ge

s 

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

ti
n
g 

E
xp

en
se

s
4.

37
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
77

,8
93

,0
00

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 7
7,

83
4,

19
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 5
8,

80
9.

49
 

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
8 

 C
SR

 e
xp

en
se

 a
n
d 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

of
 e

rr
or

 i
n
 e

xp
en

se
 

bo
ok

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n
 a

n
d 

A
m

or
ti

sa
ti

on
4.

38
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
43

,9
05

,6
37

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 4
3,

90
5,

63
7 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0.
00

 
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

0 
OO

pp
eerr

aatt
iinn

gg  
PP
rroo

ffii
tt

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

4400
99,,

1111
66,,

7700
11  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  33

4488
,,88

0011
,,22

8811
  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  66
00,,

3311
55,,

4411
99..

1199
  

    
    

    
    

1144
..77

44  
N

on
 O

pe
ra

ti
n
g 

In
co

m
e

4.
39

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 - 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

N
on

 O
pe

ra
ti

n
g 

E
xp

en
se

4.
40

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

23
,9

24
,4

97
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

3,
92

4,
49

7 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

PP
rroo

ffii
tt  

BB
eeff

oorr
ee  

SShh
aarr

ee  
ooff

  RR
eess

uu
lltt

ss  
ooff

  AA
ssss

oocc
iiaa

ttee
ss  

&&
  

JJoo
iinn

tt  
VV

eenn
ttuu

rree
ss

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

3388
55,,

1199
22,,

2200
44  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  33

2244
,,88

7766
,,77

8855
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 6

0,
31

5,
41

9.
19

 
  

  
  

  
 1

5.
66

 
 D

ue
 t

o 
ab

ov
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 

Sh
ar

e 
of

 R
es

ul
ts

 o
f 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

&
 J

oi
n
t 

V
en

tu
re

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 - 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

PP
rroo

ffii
tt  

BB
eeff

oorr
ee  

IInn
ccoo

mm
ee  

TT
aaxx

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

3388
55,,

1199
22,,

2200
44  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  33

2244
,,88

7766
,,77

8855
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 6

0,
31

5,
41

9.
19

 
  

  
  

  
 1

5.
66

 
 D

ue
 t

o 
ab

ov
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 

In
co

m
e 

T
ax

 E
xp

en
se

4.
41

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

19
,3

72
,0

38
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
10

0,
26

1,
42

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
9,

11
0,

61
7.

24
 

  
  

  
  

 1
6.

01
 

 D
ue

 t
o 

ab
ov

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

n
d 

di
sa

llo
w

ed
 e

xp
en

se
s 

C
ur

re
n
t 

T
ax

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

19
,5

52
,6

59
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
10

1,
53

5,
51

2 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
8,

01
7,

14
6.

64
 

  
  

  
  

 1
5.

07
 

 D
ue

 t
o 

ab
ov

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
T

ax
 I

n
co

m
e

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 (

18
0,

62
0)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,2

74
,0

91
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
,0

93
,4

70
.6

0 
  

  
  

(6
05

.4
0)

 R
ec

al
cu

la
ti

on
 o

f 
de

fe
rr

ed
 t

ax
 

PP
rroo

ffii
tt  

ffoo
rr  

tthh
ee  

PP
eerr

iioo
dd

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

2266
55,,

8822
00,,

1166
66  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  22

2244
,,66

1155
,,33

6644
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 4

1,
20

4,
80

1.
94

 
  

  
  

  
 1

5.
50

 
 D

ue
 t

o 
ab

ov
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 
PP
rroo

ffii
tt  

AA
tttt

rrii
bbuu

ttaa
bbll

ee  
ttoo

::
E

qu
it

y 
H

ol
de

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
B

an
k

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

65
,8

20
,1

66
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
22

4,
61

5,
36

4 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 4
1,

20
4,

80
1.

94
 

  
  

  
  

 1
5.

50
 

N
on

-C
on

tr
ol

li
n
g 

In
te

re
st

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 - 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 - 
  

PP
rroo

ffii
tt  

ffoo
rr  

tthh
ee  

PP
eerr

iioo
dd

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

2266
55,,

8822
00,,

1166
66  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  22

2244
,,66

1155
,,33

6644
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 4

1,
20

4,
80

1.
94

 
  

  
  

  
 1

5.
50

 
EE

aarr
nn

iinn
ggss

  pp
eerr

  SS
hh

aarr
ee::

  

B
as

ic
 e

ar
n
in

gs
 p

er
 s

h
ar

e
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
19

.6
7 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

6.
62

 

D
il
ut

ed
 e

ar
n
in

gs
 p

er
 S

h
ar

e
19

.6
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

16
.6

2
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

MM
aann

jjuu
sshh

rree
ee  

FFii
nn

aann
ccee

    
LL
iimm

iitt
eedd

C
om

pa
ri

si
on

 o
f 

St
at

em
en

t 
of

 P
ro

fi
t 

or
 L

os
s

Fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
n
de

d 
31

 A
sh

ad
h
 2

08
1

  VV
aarr

iiaa
nn

ccee
  



MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

behind your happiness

129

ANNUAL REPORT 2080-081

M
an

ju
sh

re
e 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Li
m

ite
d

CO
M

PA
R

AT
IV

E 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

O
TH

ER
 C

O
M

PR
EH

EN
SI

V
E 

IN
CO

M
E

A
s 

on
 3

1
st

 A
sh

ad
h,

 2
0

8
1

 (
Ju

ly
 1

5
, 
2

0
2

4
)

N
PR

PPaa
rrtt

iicc
uull

aarr
ss

NN
oott

eess
  AA

ss  pp
eerr

  UU
nnaa

uudd
iittee

dd  
  AA

ss  pp
eerr

  AA
uudd

iittee
dd  

  RR
eeaa

ssoo
nnss

  ffoo
rr  VV

aarr
iiaa

nncc
ee  

  22
0088

00--
8811

  
  22

0088
00--

8811
  

IInn
  AA

mm
oouu

nntt
%%

PPrr
ooff

iitt  
ffoo

rr  tt
hhee

  PP
eerr

iioo
dd

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

5,
82

0,
16

6 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
4,

61
5,

36
4 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
1,

20
4,

80
2 

15
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
D

ue
 to

 c
ha

ng
e i

n 
ne

t p
ro

fit
OO

tthh
eerr

  CC
oomm

pprr
eehh

eenn
ssiivv

ee  
IInn

ccoo
mm

ee,,  
NN

eett
  oo

ff  II
nncc

oomm
ee  

TTaa
xx

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

AA))
  IItt

eemm
ss  tt

hhaa
tt  WW

iillll
  nn

oott
  bb

ee  
RRee

ccll
aass

ssiiff
iiee

dd  
ttoo

  PP
rroo

ffiitt
  oo

rr  LL
ooss

ss
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
• 

G
ai

ns
/(

Lo
sse

s) 
fro

m
 In

ve
stm

en
t i

n 
Eq

ui
ty

 In
str

um
en

ts 
M

ea
su

re
d 

at
 

Fa
ir 

Va
lu

e
   

   
   

   
   

   
 (1

,8
22

,4
51

.0
5)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  (

1,
82

2,
45

1)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
D

ue
to

re
va

lu
at

io
n

of
in

ve
stm

en
t s

ec
ur

iti
es

• 
G

ai
ns

/(
Lo

sse
s) 

on
 R

ev
al

ua
tio

n
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
• 

Ac
tu

ria
l G

ai
n/

(L
os

se
s) 

on
 D

ef
in

ed
 B

en
ef

it 
Pl

an
s

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
• 

In
co

m
e T

ax
 R

ela
tin

g 
to

 A
bo

ve
 It

em
s

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

6,
73

5 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

54
6,

73
5 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

NN
eett

  OO
tthh

eerr
  CC

oomm
pprr

eehh
eenn

ssiivv
ee  

IInn
ccoo

mm
ee  

tthh
aatt

  WW
iillll

  nn
oott

  BB
ee  

RRee
ccll

aass
ssiiff

iiee
dd  

ttoo
  

PPrr
ooff

iitt  
oorr

  LL
ooss

ss
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

((11
,,22

7755
,,77

1166
))

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
((11

,,22
7755

,,77
1166

))
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

    --
      

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

BB))
  IItt

eemm
ss  tt

hhaa
tt  aa

rree
  oo

rr  MM
aayy

  bb
ee  

RRee
ccll

aass
ssiiff

iiee
dd  

ttoo
  PP

rroo
ffiitt

  oo
rr  LL

ooss
ss

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

--    
  

• 
G

ai
ns

/(
Lo

sse
s) 

on
 C

as
h 

Fl
ow

 H
ed

ge
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
--    

  
• 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 G
ai

ns
/(

Lo
sse

s)(
Ar

isi
ng

 fr
om

 T
ra

ns
la

tin
g 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
sse

ts 
of

 F
or

eig
n 

O
pe

ra
tio

n)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
--    

  

• 
In

co
m

e T
ax

 R
ela

tin
g 

to
 A

bo
ve

 It
em

s
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
--    

  
• 

Re
cl

as
sif

y 
to

 P
ro

fit
 o

r L
os

s
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
--    

  
NN

eett
  OO

tthh
eerr

  CC
oomm

pprr
eehh

eenn
ssiivv

ee  
IInn

ccoo
mm

ee  
tthh

aatt
  aa

rree
  oo

rr  MM
aayy

  bb
ee  

RRee
ccll

aass
ssiiff

iiee
dd  

ttoo
  PP

rroo
ffiitt

  oo
rr  LL

ooss
ss

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

--    
  

CC
))  SS

hhaa
rree

  oo
ff  OO

tthh
eerr

  CC
oomm

pprr
eehh

eenn
ssiivv

ee  
IInn

ccoo
mm

ee  
ooff

  AA
ssss

oocc
iiaa

ttee
  AA

cccc
oouu

nntt
eedd

  
aass

  pp
eerr

  EE
qquu

iittyy
  MM

eett
hhoo

dd
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
--    

  

OO
tthh

eerr
  CC

oomm
pprr

eehh
eenn

ssiivv
ee  

IInn
ccoo

mm
ee  

ffoo
rr  tt

hhee
  PP

eerr
iioo

dd,,
  NN

eett
  oo

ff  II
nncc

oomm
ee  

TTaa
xx

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
((11

,,22
7755

,,77
1166

))
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

((11
,,22

7755
,,77

1166
))

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
    --

      
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

TToo
ttaa

ll  CC
oomm

pprr
eehh

eenn
ssiivv

ee  
IInn

ccoo
mm

ee  
ffoo

rr  tt
hhee

  PP
eerr

iioo
dd

      
      

      
      

      
      

  22
6644

,,55
4444

,,44
5500

  
      

      
      

      
      

      
  22

2233
,,33

3399
,,66

4488
  

      
      

      
      

      
  44

11,,
2200

44,,
8800

22  
      

      
      

      
      

  11
55..

5500
  

 D
ue

 to
 a

bo
ve

 
TToo

ttaa
ll  CC

oomm
pprr

eehh
eenn

ssiivv
ee  

IInn
ccoo

mm
ee  

AAtt
ttrr

iibb
uutt

aabb
llee

  TT
oo::

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
Eq

ui
ty

 H
ol

de
rs

 o
f t

he
 B

an
k

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

4,
54

4,
45

0 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
3,

33
9,

64
8 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
1,

20
4,

80
2 

15
.5

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
As

 a
bo

ve
N

on
-C

on
tro

lli
ng

 In
te

re
st

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

     
   

   
   

   
   

   
  (

0)
TToo

ttaa
ll  CC

oomm
pprr

eehh
eenn

ssiivv
ee  

IInn
ccoo

mm
ee  

ffoo
rr  tt

hhee
  PP

eerr
iioo

dd
      

      
      

      
      

      
  22

6644
,,55

4444
,,44

5500
  

      
      

      
      

      
      

  22
2233

,,33
3399

,,66
4488

  
      

      
      

      
      

  44
11,,

2200
44,,

8800
22  

      
      

      
      

      
  11

55..
5500

  
 D

ue
 to

 a
bo

ve
 

MM
aann

jjuu
sshh

rree
ee  

FFii
nnaa

nncc
ee  

  LL
iimm

iittee
dd

CC
oomm

ppaa
rraa

ttiivv
ee  

SStt
aatt

eemm
eenn

tt  oo
ff  OO

tthh
eerr

  CC
oomm

pprr
eehh

eenn
ssiivv

ee  
IInn

ccoo
mm

ee
Fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 3

1 
As

ha
dh

 2
08

1

  CC
hhaa

nngg
eess

  



MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

behind your happiness

130

Other Disclosures				  
Corporate Social Responsibility Fund				  
NRB Directive 6 requires BFIs to create Corporate Social Responsibility Fund and appropriate an amount 
equivalent to 1% of net profit annually into this fund for covering expenditure related to CSR activities in the 
subsequent year. Accordingly, the institution had opening reserve of NPR 13,089,750. This year, the institution 
has also appropriated 1% of net profit i.e. Rs. 2,246,154 and  utilized Rs. 8,811 for CSR activities during the year. 
Therefore, amount of CSR Fund at end of the year is NPR 15,327,093 which is shown under Other Reserve in 
Statement of Changes in Equity.	

Particulars  31st Ashadh 2081  31st Ashadh 2080 
Opening CSR Fund  13,089,750  10,825,947 

Add : 1% of profit this year  2,246,154  2,469,992 

Less : CSR Expenses  8,811  206,188 

Closing CSR Fund  15,327,093  13,089,750 

Employee's Training Fund
The financial institution has incurred Rs. 29,49,709 towards training and development of employees during the 
year. As per  NRB Directives, minimum required expense towards training & development calculated as 3% of 
salary and allowance expense of previous year is Rs. 3,135,306. Hence, shortfall amount of Rs. 185,598 has been 
transferred to employee's training fund.				  

Particulars  31st Ashadh 2081  31st Ashadh 2080 
Opening Training Fund  -    -   

Add : 3% of Last Year Staff Expenses  3,135,306  2,821,923 

Actual Staff Training Expenses  2,949,709  (3,143,767)

Closing Training Fund  185,598  -   

Non Performing Assets
The Finance's non performing assets stood at 3.22% as at balance sheet date. Total non performing assets 
as at Balance sheet date is  Rs. 500,808,858 and loan loss provision calculated as per NRB Directives is Rs. 
371,788,850.				  

Particulars  31st Ashadh 2081  31st Ashadh 2080 
Performing Loan  15,033,355,173  11,906,656,244 

Good  13,718,790,456  11,165,043,568 

Watch List  1,314,564,718  741,612,676 

Non-Performing Loan (NPL)  500,808,858  401,435,649 
Sub Standard  108,383,534  79,498,422 

Doubtful  92,089,266  172,676,982 

Bad  300,336,058  149,260,246 

Gross Loans and Advances  15,534,164,032  12,308,091,894 
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Loan Loss Provision Calculated as per NRB Directives	

Particulars  31st Ashadh 2081  31st Ashadh 2080 
Performing Loan  231,113,721  196,412,562 

Good  164,625,485  145,145,566 

Watch List  66,488,236  51,266,995 

Non-Performing Loan (NPL)  371,788,850  255,473,342 
Sub Standard  27,095,884  19,874,605 

Doubtful  46,044,633  86,338,491 

Bad  298,648,333  149,260,246 

Total Loan Loss Provision  602,902,571  451,885,903 

Non Banking Assets
Non-Banking Assets are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by the 
fiancne in the course of loan recovery. Such assets are booked at fair market value or total amount due from the 
borrower, whichever is lower. 				  

Particulars Date of  Assuming of  Non Banking Assets Total Non Banking Assets
Raju Prasad Yadav 2081/2/24  1,200,000 

Laxmi Nepali Sarki 2081/2/30  5,000,000 

Pramila Kumari Barai 2081/3/6  3,100,000 

Roman Traders 2081/3/28  8,055,837 

Mamina Darai 2081/3/29  4,917,130 

Masina Damai 2081/3/29  1,735,593 

Durga Dharikar 2081/3/32  2,893,306 

Tulsi Chaudhary 2081/3/31  8,618,399 

Akhilesh Ray Rajput 2081/3/31  2,413,101 

Himalaya Traders 2081/3/31  13,981,373 

Himalaya Thapa Magar 2081/3/31  8,575,627 

Shuva Gangajal Traders 2081/3/31  3,030,000 

Total  63,520,366 

Disposal of  NBA During the Year

Name of  Borrower NBA Amount Disposal Amount
Anmol Fashion  13,406,000   14,000,000 

New Ishwori Books  25,905,880   25,905,880 

Total  39,311,880  39,905,880 
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Gain/Loss on Disposal of NBA
1. Anmol Fashion
Particular Amount
 NBA Amount   13,406,000 

 Disposal Amount   14,000,000 

 Gain on Disposal of NBA   594,000 

Adjustment for AIR & Interest Recovered Till Shrawan 32, 2081
At the end of the year, total AIR on loan except bad loan was Rs. 219,337,444. Amount of incremental AIR from 
the end of previous year of Rs. 28,825,301 has been added to the interest income.		
		
As per requirements of the NRB Directives, Rs. 14,976,256 has been transferred to retained earning from 
regulatory reserve as the total amount of regulatoy reserve to be made due to AIR is Rs. 89,177,410 , which was 
Rs. 10,41,53,665. Interest recovered till shrawan end, 2081 amounting to Rs.7,77,86,000 has been adjusted as per 
the NRB directive to determine the amount regulatory reserve due to AIR.		
		
Additional Disclosures:
1. Refinance Loan and Business Continuity

Particulars No. of  Customers Amount
Refinance Loan - -

Business Continuity Loan - -

2. Subsidized Loan
Particulars No. of  Customers Amount

Subsidized Loan 9  4,638,711 

3. Loan Written off 
During the year, following loans are written off with due approval of the Board of Directors

Borrower Name Principal Written off
Keshab bahadur Thapa  2,976,366.81 

Anmol Fashion  3,192,342.36 

Raju Prasad Yadav  877,572.44 

Reshab Travels & Tours Pvt.Ltd.  368,000.00 

Dipak Lama  933,454.15 

Bhairab Kunda Hydropower  6,596,206.85 

Total  14,943,942.61 
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g]kfn /fi6« a}saf6 k|fKt jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg ;DaGwL lgb]{zgsf] k|ltpQ/ ;DjGwdfM

g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, ljQLo ;+:yf ;'kl/j]If0f ljefusf] kq ;+Vof lj=;+=;'=lj=÷u}/:ynut÷ d~h'>L÷)*!÷*@ r=g+= !&%, 
ldlt @)*!÷)(÷)! sf] kq cGt/ut o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg ug{ k|fKt 
l:js[t kqdf pNn]lvt lgb]{zgx?sf] ;DjGwdf o; ;+:yfsf] ldlt @)*!÷)(÷)# df ePsf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] @**cf}+ 
a}7ssf] lg0f{o adf]lhd b]xfo cg';f/sf] k|ltpQ/ k]z ul/Psf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf] nflu cg'/f]w 5 .

!=	 lgb]{zg g++= -s_ sf ;DjGwdfM txfFsf] lgb]{zg adf]lhd o; ;+:yfn] k|jfx ug]{ shf{x? k|jfx kZrft clgjfo{ ?kdf 
shf{ ;b'kof]lutfsf] ;'lglZrttf ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf] nflu cg'/f]w 5 .

@=	 lgb]{zg g++= -v_ sf ;DjGwdfM txfFsf] lgb]{zg adf]lhd shf{ ;"rgf tyf sfnf];"rL ;DaGwL lgofdsLo Joj:yfsf] 
k'0f{ kfngf ug{ o; ;+:yf ;b}j ;hu, ;r]t / k|lta4 /xg] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf] nflu cg'/f]w 5 .

#=	 lgb]{zg g++= -u_ sf ;DjGwdfM txfFsf] lgb]{zg adf]lhd shf{ Joj:yfkg, u|fxs klxrfg -KYC_, ;~rfng hf]lvd 
nufotsf ljifodf cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIfs, jfXo n]vfk/LIfs tyf txfF a}+saf6 cf}NofPsf s}lkmotx?nfO{ k'gM  
gbf]xf]l/g] ul/ sfo{ ug{ cfjZos Joj:yf ldnfO{sf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf] nflu cg'/f]w 5 .
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ljj/0f ;"rsf+s
cf=j=

@)*).)*!
cf=j=

@)&(.)*)
cf=j=

@)&*.)&(
cf=j=

@)&&.)&*
cf=j=

@)&^.)&&

!= v'b gfkmf÷s"n cfDbfgL k|ltzt k|ltzt   9.50   11.39   8.09   51.86   41.70 

@= k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL ?   16.62   18.28   8.09   51.51   34.28 

#= k|lt z]o/ jhf/ d"No ?   602.90   550.00   447.00   1,280.00   308.00 

$= d"No cfDbfgL cg'kft (PE Ratio) cg'kft   36.28   30.10   55.25   21.91   8.98 

%= z]o/ k"+hLdf nfef+++z -jf]g; ;lxt_ k|ltzt   -     -     -     46.00   23.50 

^= z]o/ k"+hLdf gub nfef+; e'QmfgL k|ltzt 6.35% 5.263%   -     6.00   5.50 

&= Jofh cfDbfgL÷shf{ tyf ;fk6 k|ltzt   12.42   14.61   12.79   11.49   15.53 

*= sd{rf/L vr{÷s"n ;~rfng vr{ k|ltzt 65.01% 61.41%   55.03   67.01   66.44 

(= s"n lgIf]k tyf ;fk6Ldf Jofh vr{ k|ltzt   8.10   9.68   8.90   6.37   9.20 

!)= ;6xL 36a9 cfDbfgL÷s"n cfDbfgL k|ltzt - - - - -

!!= sd{rf/L af]g;÷s"n sd{rf/L vr{ k|ltzt   15.96   20.40   9.50   45.92   27.03 

!@= v'b gfkmf÷shf{ ;fk6 k|ltzt   1.41   1.94   1.02   6.01   3.67 

!#= v'b gfkmf÷s"n ;DklQ k|ltzt   1.06   1.46   0.72   3.63   2.85 

!$= s"n shf{÷lgIf]k k|ltzt   85.08   87.23   87.92   84.43   91.64 

!%= s"n ;~rfng vr{÷s"n ;DklQ k|ltzt   1.64   1.86   1.02   1.87   2.62 

!^= hf]lvd efl/t ;DklQ k"+hLsf]ifsf] 
kof{Kttf

-s_ k|fylds k"+hL k|ltzt 12.87 14.03 13.29   21.63   15.89 

-v_ k'/s k"+hL k|ltzt 1.45 3.98   4.76   7.81   0.94 

-u_ s"n k"+hL sf]if k|ltzt 14.32 18.01   18.06   29.44   16.83 

!&= lgis[o shf{÷s"n shf{ k|ltzt 3.22   3.26   2.11   2.01   3.36 

!*= cfwf/ Aofhb/ (Base Rate) k|ltzt   11.16   12.34   11.99   8.98   10.67 

!(= Aofhb/ cGt/ 
(Weighted Average Interest Rate 
Spread )

k|ltzt   4.59   4.58   3.61   4.18   4.51 

@)= a's g]6jy{ ? 2,216,173,901 2,063,966,480 1,808,153,198 1,755,399,433 1,303,321,673

@!= s"n z]o/ ;+Vof   13,515,528.488  13,515,528.488  13,515,528.49 9,653,948.92   8,181,312.64 

@@= s"n sd{rf/L ;+Vof   245   240   258   173   147 

d~h'>L kmfO{gfG; lnld6]8
ljQLo emnsx¿

sDtLdf ljut % jif{sf] kl/;"rsx?
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